
  
 
 

TENTATIVE AGENDA & MEETING NOTICE 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 15, 2016 
5:30 P.M. 

WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 
COMMISSIONERS’ BOARD ROOM 

 
TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 

     

5:30 1  CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER   
 2  APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

October 18, 2016, Regular Meeting 
October 18, 2016, Closed Session 

 1 

 3  APPROVAL OF THE NOVEMBER 15, 2016, AGENDA  9 
5:35 4  PUBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON 

PROPOSED ROAD NAMES 
MR. JEFF VIRGINIA 11 

5:40 5  PRESENTATION OF FISCAL YEAR 2016 AUDIT MS. MISTY WATSON 15 
5:45 6  REQUEST TO MODIFY CUSTODIAL SERVICES CONTRACT MR. ROBERT MARSH 129 
5:50 7  TAX MATTERS 

A. Monthly Collections Report  
B. Refunds & Releases 
C. Property Tax Appeal 

MR. LARRY WARREN  
133 
135 
145 

5:55 8  FINANCE MATTERS 
A. Proposed Juvenile Crime Prevention Council 

(JCPC) Budget Amendment 
B. Vaya Health (Formerly Smoky Mountain Center) 

Quarterly Report 
C. Proposed Inmate Catastrophic Insurance Contract 

Renewal 

MS. MARGARET PIERCE  
151 

 
155 

 
159 

6:00 9  MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Proposed Forest Service Lease 
B. Out-of-State Travel Request – Parks and Recreation 
C. Property Donation 
D. December Meeting Schedule 
E. Proposed Amendment to the County’s Holiday 

Schedule 
F. Announcements 

MR. DERON GEOUQUE  
163 
179 
187 
195 
197 

 
201 

6:05 10  PUBLIC COMMENT  202 
7:05 11  BREAK  202 
7:10 12  CLOSED SESSION 

Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
 202 

7:30 13  ADJOURN   
 



AGENDA ITEM 2: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
October 18, 2016, Regular Meeting  
October 18, 2016, Closed Session 
 
 
 
 
  

111516 BCC Meeting

1

111516 BCC Meeting

1



MINUTES 
 

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 18, 2016 

 
The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting, as scheduled, on Tuesday, 
October 18, 2016, at 5:30 P.M. in the Commissioners' Board Room of the Watauga County 
Administration Building, Boone, North Carolina. 
 
  PRESENT: Jimmy Hodges, Chairman 
    David Blust, Vice-Chairman 
    Billy Kennedy, Commissioner 
    John Welch, Commissioner 

Perry Yates, Commissioner 
Stacy C. Eggers, IV, County Attorney 

    Deron Geouque, County Manager 
    Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 
Chairman Hodges called the meeting to order at 5:30 P.M. 
 
Commissioner Yates opened with a prayer and Commissioner Welch led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Chairman Hodges called for additions and/or corrections to the October 4, 2016, regular meeting 
minutes. 
 
Vice-Chairman Blust, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to approve the October 4, 2016, 
regular meeting minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Chairman Hodges called for additions and/or corrections to the October 18, 2016, agenda.   
 
County Manager Geouque requested to add a Closed Session for Attorney/Client Matters, per 
G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) and Land Acquisition, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(5)(i). 
 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to approve the 
October 18, 2016, agenda as amended. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

DRAFT 

111516 BCC Meeting

2

111516 BCC Meeting

2



PUBLIC HEARINGS 
A.  Public Hearing to Allow Citizen Comment on Proposed Amendments to the Ordinance 

to Regulate Solicitation in Watauga County 
 

A public hearing was held to allow citizen comment on proposed amendments to the Ordinance 
to Regulate Solicitation in Watauga County.  Changes have been incorporated into the ordinance 
addressing the safety and protection of children and animals. 
 
Chairman Hodges called the public hearing to order at 5:32 P.M. 
 
With no public comment, Chairman Hodges closed the public hearing at 5:32 P.M. 
 

[Clerk’s Note:  The Chairman opened and closed the next public hearing then returned to this topic for 
further discussion and action.] 
 

Sheriff Hagaman stated that 13 permits had been issued since the Ordinance took effect with no 
issues.  The Sheriff also stated that a packet with helpful information is given to each applicant. 
 
After further discussion, Vice-Chairman Blust, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to 
adopt the Ordinance to Regulate Solicitation in Watauga County as amended. 
 

VOTE: Aye-3(Hodges, Blust, Welch) 
 Nay-2(Kennedy, Yates) 

 
B.  Public Hearing to Allow Citizen Comment on the Proposed Transfer of Property from 

the Beaver Dam Fire District to the Cove Creek Fire District 
 

A public hearing was held to allow citizen comment on the proposed transfer of property from 
the Beaver Dam Fire District to the Cove Creek Fire District. 
 
Chairman Hodges called the public hearing to order at 5:33 P.M. 
 
Communications and Emergency Services Director, Jeff Virginia, stated that the proposed 
changes would enhance response time and was agreeable with both Fire Departments. 
 
With no public comment Chairman Hodges closed the public hearing at 5:35 P.M. 
 

[Clerk’s Note:  The Chairman returned to the previous topic prior to further discussion and action on this 
topic.] 
 

County Manager Geouque recommended the effective date for the changes be July 1, 2017, for 
tax purposes. 
 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to approve the transfer of 
property as requested with the effective date to be July 1, 2017. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

111516 BCC Meeting

3

111516 BCC Meeting

3



SHERIFF’S OFFICE PATROL VEHICLE EQUIPMENT AND INSTALLATION BID 
AWARD 
Captain Kelly Redmon requested to utilize the North Carolina Sheriff’s Association bid for new 
equipment and the installation for six (6) new patrol vehicles.  The North Carolina Sheriff’s 
Association awarded Dana Safety Supply the bid for equipment and installation.  The cost for 
accessory equipment and installation per vehicle is slightly less than last year’s amount.  
Adequate funds are included in the Fiscal Year 2017 budget to cover the expenditure. 
 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to award the bid to Dana Safety 
Supply for accessory equipment and installation, in the amount of $32,532.72, for six (6) 
recently purchased vehicles as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

ECONOMIC IMPACT OF A RECREATION CENTER 
Dr. Scott St. Clair and Dr. John Whitehead presented information regarding the potential 
economic impact if a recreation center was constructed in the County.  Dr. St. Clair shared that 
the High Country Recreation encourages a multi-generational indoor recreation facility of which 
all ages of children in the County would have access.  Dr. Whitehead shared data to show 
benefits for the community including economic impacts as well as health care savings.  Dr. 
Whitehead concluded that the benefits would exceed costs.  Dr. St. Clair requested to have time 
at the FY 2018 Annual Pre-Budget Retreat to share more details.  County Manager Geouque 
stated that the Parks and Recreation Department currently has options to structure fees that allow 
for all children to participate.  The presentation was given for information only; therefore, no 
action was required. 

NCDOT AGREEMENT REGARDING THE REPLACEMENT OF THE BRIDGE 
LOCATED AT HIGHWAY 321 AND AHO ROAD 
Mr. Joe Furman stated that the Middle Fork Greenway Association was recently made aware of 
plans by the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) to replace the bridge 
located at Highway 321 and Aho Road.  The greenway plans originally called for the trail to go 
over the bridge.  However, with NCDOT now replacing the bridge, the opportunity exists to 
locate the trail under the bridge allowing for a safer and more user friendly crossing.  In order for 
the trail to go under the bridge, NCDOT would require a forty percent (40%) match.  Staff 
understands that the Middle Fork Greenway Association is willing to cover this cost and change 
orders that may occur with the trail relocation.  However, the County would still be required to 
be the signatory on the agreement.  Currently, the projected match is estimated at $160,000.  The 
Middle Fork Greenway Association has received $200,000 in funding from the County Tourism 
Development Authority (TDA) and the County received $100,000 to be used for the Middle Fork 
Greenway. 
 

111516 BCC Meeting

4

111516 BCC Meeting

4



Mr. Furman presented the NCDOT agreement and a formal letter from the Middle Fork 
Greenway committing to fund the forty percent (40%) match and change orders that may occur 
with the trail relocation.  NCDOT is in the bidding process and needs a response quickly so as to 
not impact their timetable. 
 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to approve the contract with the 
North Carolina Department of Transportation regarding the bridge replacement located at 
Highway 321 and Aho Road and approve the local match and any additional costs to be allocated 
by the Middle Fork Greenway Association with $100,000 to be allocated from the State funds 
accepted at the October 4, 2016, meeting, and the remainder of the 40% local match to be paid 
by the Middle Fork Greenway. 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

PAVING BID AWARD FOR MEDIC BASE 3 
County Manager Geouque presented the following bids for the paving at the new Medic Base 3: 
 

Bidder       Amount 
Moretz Paving, Inc.     $15,000 
Tri-County Paving, Inc.    $15,056 
Shatley Construction/Paving Co., Inc.  $19,076 

 
The County Manager stated that the final grade was recently completed by County personnel 
leaving the parking lot ready for paving.  The opening of the facility is still scheduled for January 
1, 2017, and deferring paving could delay the opening of the facility. 
 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to award the bid to the lowest 
responsive bidder, Moretz Paving, Inc., in the amount of $15,000, for paving at Medic Base 3. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

BUDGET AMENDMENTS 
Ms. Margaret Pierce, Finance Director, reviewed the following budget amendments: 
 

Account # Description Debit Credit 
103586-332004 Senior Center Grant  $14,503 
105550-449900 Senior Center Grant $14,503  
    

The amendment recognized the acceptance of the Senior Center grant funds.  The local match is 
included in the FY 2017 POA budget. 
 

103980-398121 Transfer from Capital Projects Fund  $290,250 
105911-470050 Computer/Technology Request $290,250  
213991-399101 Fund Balance Appropriation  $290,250 
219800-498010 Transfer to General Fund $290,250  

111516 BCC Meeting

5

111516 BCC Meeting

5



    

The amendment allocated funds from Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) set aside funds for 
projects as requested by the Watauga County School system for technology. 
 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to approve the budget 
amendments as presented by Ms. Pierce. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A. Property Donation 
 

County Manager Geouque stated that he was contacted by Mr. Richard Promin who wished to 
donate property he owns to the County.  The property consists of a one acre lot located in Saddle 
Hill (221 Blowing Rock) area.  The tax value is $52,000 on the lot and the taxes are current.  
Staff is unaware of any liens on the property or any property owner’s association dues.  Mr. 
Promin has spoken with the Blue Ridge Parkway and they indicated there were no funds 
available to pay for the necessary requirements to accept the donation.  Staff contacted the Blue 
Ridge Conservancy who also had no interest in acquiring the property. 
 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to table consideration of the 
donation to allow time to request more information.   
 
County Attorney Eggers stated that it would cost approximately $400-$500 for a title search to 
be performed on the property. 
 
A vote was not taken on the above motion; however, after discussion and by consensus, the 
Board agreed to table consideration of the donation to allow time to request more information 
from the home owner regarding whether a right-of-way to the property exists. 
 

B. Proposed Update to County Management and Sheriff’s Office Records Retention and 
Disposition Schedule 

 

County Manager Geouque stated that the Government Records Section of the State Archives of 
North Carolina has sent amendments that are now available to the County Management and 
Sheriff’s Office records retention schedules.  These amendments clarify the retention for 911 
calls received as text messages and reflect the legislation governing body-worn cameras for law 
enforcement personnel, which went into effect October 1, 2016. 
 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to adopt the changes to the 
County Management and Sheriff’s Office records retention schedules as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
 

111516 BCC Meeting

6

111516 BCC Meeting

6



C. Recommended Contract Awards for Employee Medical, Dental, and Life Insurance 
 

County Manager Geouque presented renewal rates for employee medical, dental, and life 
insurance benefits.  The renewal rate received from Blue Cross Blue Shield (BCBS) for medical 
insurance is a 10.5% increase.  The initial increase was 25.9%; however, staff was able to 
negotiate a reduction to 14.5%.  Analysis of additional claims information was provided along 
with additional negotiations which allowed for the further reduction to the proposed 10.5% 
increase.  County Manager Geouque also recommended the County fund $1,000 into each 
employee’s Health Savings Account (HSA) which helps to offset the high deductible insurance 
plan.  Adequate funds have been budgeted to cover the renewal rates. 
 
Dental and life insurance premiums will remain unchanged due to the current rate locks.  The 
current providers are Delta Dental and Symetra Financial, respectively.   
 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to approve Blue Cross Blue 
Shield for the County employee’s medical plan at the 10.5% increase over the current year and 
for the County to fund $1,000 into each employee’s Health Savings Account (HSA). 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
D. Boards and Commissions 

 

County Manager Geouque presented the following: 
 
Economic Development Commission 
County Manager Geouque stated that there are two vacancies on the Economic Development 
Commission (EDC).  One is an unfulfilled term expiring June, 2017, and the other is an 
unfulfilled term expiring June, 2018.  Those seats were occupied by individuals who have moved 
from Watauga County.  The EDC has fourteen members; nine are appointees, the other five 
serve by virtue of their organization, including one Commissioner.  All members vote.  No 
applications have been received. 
 

E. Announcements 
 

County Manager Geouque announced the following: 
 

• Due to the Board of Elections requiring the use of the Board Room the week of 
October 31, 2016, for one-stop voting the November 1, 2016, Board of Commissioners 
meeting has been cancelled. 

 

• A public hearing is scheduled on Tuesday, November 15, 2016, at 5:30 P.M. to allow 
citizen comment on proposed road names in Watauga County. 

 

• The Appalachian State University Master Plan Committee is hosting a presentation by 
Duda|Paine (the Durham, NC firm contracted to develop the plan) regarding initial 
feedback for the University Master Plan on Thursday, October 20, 2016, from 
10:00 A.M. - 1:00 P.M. in the Plemmons Student Union. 

111516 BCC Meeting

7

111516 BCC Meeting

7



PUBLIC COMMENT 
Mr. David Stapleton shared concerns regarding homeless people loitering in the New River 
Heights neighborhood. 

CLOSED SESSION 
At 6:40 P.M., Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to enter 
Closed Session to discuss Land Acquisition, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(5)(i). 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commission Welch, moved to resume the open meeting at 
7:06 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

ADJOURN 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Chairman Hodges, moved to adjourn the meeting at 
7:06 P.M. 
 
 
 
Jimmy Hodges, Chairman 
 
ATTEST:  Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 

111516 BCC Meeting

8

111516 BCC Meeting

8



AGENDA ITEM 3: 

APPROVAL OF THE NOVEMBER 15, 2016, AGENDA 
 
 
 
  

111516 BCC Meeting

9

111516 BCC Meeting

9



Blank Page 
 
 

111516 BCC Meeting

10

111516 BCC Meeting

10



AGENDA ITEM 4: 

PUBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON PROPOSED ROAD NAMES 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:   
 
A public hearing has been scheduled to allow citizen comment on the new private and public 
road names as listed in the attached memo.  The public hearing is required by N.C.G.S. 153A-
239.1.   
 
Board action is requested to approve the road names as submitted. 
 
 
  

111516 BCC Meeting

11

111516 BCC Meeting

11



 
Public Hearing Notice 

 
 
The Watauga County Board of Commissioners will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, 

November 15, 2016, at 5:30 P.M. in the Commissioners’ Boardroom located in the 

Watauga County Administration Building at 814 West King Street, Boone, North 

Carolina.  The purpose of the public hearing is to allow citizen comment on the following 

new road names:   

names for new roads – River Creek Lane, This Way, Whitewater Run, Chestnut Ridge 

Parkway, Eagle Crest Ridge, Patsys Place, Skyridge Way, Spring House Way, Sweet 

Meadow Trail, Timberwalk Drive, Twilight Point, White Trail Lane, Misty Maple Trail, 

Mossy Branch Lane, Soaring Eagle Lane, South Willow Ridge Lane, Watauga Campus 

Way, Butler Lane, Farmer Brown Road, Sams Lane, Strait and Narrow Way, 

Ramblestone Terrace, River Rim Trail, Riddles Fork Crossing, Wayne Woodring 

Mountain Road, Fernwood, Madisyn Oaks Lane, Rock Water East, Rock Water West, 

Spur Cove Lane, Spur Edge, Bubbling Brook Road, Moon Shine Nvno, Old Indian Nvno, 

Chappell Farm Road, Gods Country Road, Nit Noi Row, North Chappell Road, Echo 

Point Drive, Lylas Way, Mary Ellen Lane, New Horizons Way, and Falcon Trace; and 

name changes for existing roads:  from Turbo Drive to Archers Crossing and from 

Skiview Lane to Skyview Lane. Interested parties are encouraged to attend.  For 

information or questions, please call (828) 265-8000. 

 

     Jimmy Hodges, Chairman 
     Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
 

111516 BCC Meeting

12

111516 BCC Meeting

12



PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 

 
 
BALD MOUNTAIN 
River Creek Lane 
 
BEAVER DAM 
This Way 
Whitewater Run 
 
BLOWING ROCK 
Chestnut Ridge Parkway* 
Eagle Crest Ridge* 
Patsys Place 
Skyridge Way* 
Spring House Way* 
Sweet Meadow Trail* 
Timberwalk Drive* 
Twilight Point* 
White Trail Lane* 
 
BLUE RIDGE 
Misty Maple Trail* 
Mossy Branch Lane* 
Soaring Eagle Lane* 
 
BRUSHY FORK 
South Willow Ridge Lane* 
Watauga Campus Way 
 
COVE CREEK 
Butler Lane 
Farmer Brown Road 
Sams Lane* 
Strait and Narrow Way 
 
ELK 
Ramblestone Terrace* 
 
LAUREL CREEK 
River Rim Trail* 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 
MEAT CAMP 
Riddles Fork Crossing* 
Wayne Woodring Mountain Road* 
 
NEW RIVER 
Turbo Drive changed to Archers Crossing 
Fernwood* 
Madisyn Oaks Lane* 
Rock Water East* 
Rock Water West* 
Spur Cove Lane* 
Spur Edge* 
 
NORTH FORK 
Bubbling Brook Road* 
Moon Shine Nvno* 
Old Indian Nvno* 
 
SHAWNEEHAW 
Chappell Farm Road* 
Gods Country Road 
Nit Noi Row 
North Chappell Road* 
 
STONY FORK 
Echo Point Drive 
Lylas Way* 
Mary Ellen Lane 
New Horizons Way 
 
WATAUGA 
Falcon Trace* 
Change Skiview Lane to Skyview Lane* 
 
 
 
*Indicates roads named in a recorded 
subdivision 
 
 
 

111516 BCC Meeting

13

111516 BCC Meeting

13



Blank Page 
 
 

111516 BCC Meeting

14

111516 BCC Meeting

14



AGENDA ITEM 5: 

PRESENTATION OF FISCAL YEAR 2016 AUDIT 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:   
 
Ms. Misty Watson will present the Fiscal Year 2016 County audit. The County’s financial position 
remains strong due to the direction provided by the Commissioners and through execution of that 
direction by County staff. Below are some of the financial highlights: 
 
 The total assets of the County exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by 

$126,284,553. 
 

 The County’s unassigned fund balance for the general fund was $21,607,950 at the end of the 
year, representing 46.34% of total General Fund expenditures. This is an increase of 
$3,415,887 in the unassigned fund balance from the previous year.  

 

 The collection rate for property taxes was 98.76% which was an increase from last year’s 
98.37%. The County is still above the statewide average of 97.57% for entities of similar 
populations in 2015.  

 

 Outstanding debt principal decreased by $4,117,361. Total outstanding debt principal at 
June 30, 2016 is $43,156,110. Watauga County’s legal debt limit is $672,414,671 so the 
County continues to be well below the state limits.  
 

 Moody’s Investor Services updated their review of the County’s financials and reported the 
County is in a strong financial position. 

 

 No material weaknesses were found in our accounting systems or internal controls.  
 

The audit is presented for information only; however, staff is requesting the Board transfer the 
$3,415,887 increase in the unassigned fund balance to the Capital Project Fund, OPEB Liability, and 
additional capital items as identified.  Staff recommends the following distribution of these funds: 
 

 Amount   Category 
   $300,000    School CIP   

 $2,000,000   Recreation/Pool Complex 
    $250,000   Facilities Maintenance 

   $250,000   Emergency Communications 
   $470,887   OPEB Liability  
   $105,000   Sheriff’s Office Vehicles  
     $40,000   New HVAC for Old AppalCart Facility  

 

This will continue the process of replenishing the CIP Fund and returning the balance to pre-
recession levels and also provide funds for capital items.           
 
Board action is required to approve the transfer of the $3,415,887 increase in the unassigned fund 
balance to the Capital Project Fund for future County projects and the other capital items identified. 
 
  

111516 BCC Meeting

15

111516 BCC Meeting

15



Misty D. Watson, CPA, PA

PO Box 2122
Boone, NC  28607

WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

111516 BCC Meeting

16

111516 BCC Meeting

16



David Blust, Vice Chairman John Welch

Billy Kennedy Perry Yates

Deron T. Geouque County Manager

Margaret Pierce Finance Director

Stacy C. Eggers, IV County Attorney

Amy Shook Register of Deeds

Larry Warren Tax Administrator

COUNTY OFFICIALS

Jimmy Hodges, Chairman

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

111516 BCC Meeting

17

111516 BCC Meeting

17



Page
Independent Auditor's Report 1-3

Management's Discussion and Analysis 4-10

Basic Financial Statements:

Government-wide Financial Statements:

Exhibit A Statement of Net Position 11

Exhibit B Statement of Activities 12-13

Fund Financial Statements:

Exhibit C Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds and Reconciliation of the Governmental
Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position 14

Exhibit D-1 Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - 
Governmental Funds 15

Exhibit D-2 Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 16

Exhibit E Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget
and Actual - General Fund 17

Exhibit F Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Fund 18

Exhibit G Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position - 
Proprietary Fund 19

Exhibit H Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fund 20

Exhibit I Statement of Fiduciary Net Position - Fiduciary Funds 21

Exhibit J Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position - Fiduciary Funds 22

Notes to the Financial Statements 23-57

Required Supplemental Financial Data:

Schedule 1 Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance Irrevocable Trust - 
Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability 58

Schedule 2 Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance Irrevocable Trust - 
Schedule of the Net Pension Liability 59

Schedule 3 Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance Irrevocable Trust - 
Schedule of the Employer Contributions 60

Schedule 4 Other Postemployment Benefits - Schedule of Funding Progress, Employer
Contributions and Required Notes 61

Schedule 5 Schedule of County's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset) (LGERS) 62

Watauga County, North Carolina
Table of Contents

June 30, 2016

i

111516 BCC Meeting

18

111516 BCC Meeting

18



Watauga County, North Carolina
Table of Contents

June 30, 2016

Page
Schedule 6 Schedule of County's Contributions (LGERS) 63

Schedule 7 Schedule of County's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset) (RODSPF) 64

Schedule 8 Schedule of County's Contributions (RODSPF) 65

Combining and Individual Fund Statements and Schedules:

Statement
1 Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - 

General Fund - Budget and Actual 66-71

2 Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Governmental Funds 72

3 Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances - Nonmajor Governmental Funds 73

Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 
 Balances - Budget and Actual:

4 Federal Equitable Sharing Fund 74

5 State Substance Abuse Tax Fund 75

6 Emergency Telephone System Fund 76

7 Fire District Funds 77

8 Occupancy Tax Fund 78

9 CDBG - Scattered Site Housing Fund 79

10 Capital Projects Fund 80

11 Solid Waste Fund 81

12 Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position - Pension Trust Funds 82

13 Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position - Pension Trust Funds 83

14 Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - Agency Funds 84

Other Schedules:

15 Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable 85

16 Analysis of Current Tax Levy - County-Wide Levy 86

17-A Secondary Market Disclosures 87

17-B Ten Largest Taxpayers 88

18 Analysis of Current Tax Levy - Fire Districts 89

ii

111516 BCC Meeting

19

111516 BCC Meeting

19



Watauga County, North Carolina
Table of Contents

June 30, 2016

Compliance Section: Page

90-91

92-93

94-95

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 96-97

Summary Schedule of Prior Year's Audit Findings 98

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards 99-101

Reporting on Compliance and Internal Control over Financial Reporting Based
on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major Federal
Program and Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with OMB
Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit Implementation Act

Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major State
Program and Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with OMB
Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit Implementation Act

iii

111516 BCC Meeting

20

111516 BCC Meeting

20



FINANCIAL SECTION

111516 BCC Meeting

21

111516 BCC Meeting

21



MISTY D. WATSON, CPA, P.A. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT 

PO BOX 2122 
BOONE, NORTH CAROLINA 28607 

TELEPHONE (828) 263-1100 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
To the Board of Commissioners 
Watauga County, North Carolina 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of Watauga County, North Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2016 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Watauga County’s 
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
My responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on my audit. I did not audit 
the financial statements of AppalCART, which represents 88.3 percent, 88.4 percent, and 74.3 percent, 
respectively, of the assets, net position, and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented 
component units.   Those statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been 
furnished to us, and my opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for AppalCART is based 
solely on the report of the other auditors.  I conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Governmental Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller of the United States. Those 
standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement.  The financial statements of Watauga County 
District U Tourism Development Authority were not audited in accordance with Governmental Auditing 
Standards. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, I express no such opinion.  An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial statements. 
 
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinions. 

  1

111516 BCC Meeting

22

111516 BCC Meeting

22



Opinions 
In my opinion, based upon my audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements 
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component 
units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Watauga County as of June 
30, 2016, and the respective changes in financial position, and cash flows, where applicable thereof 
and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  

 
Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 through 10, the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation 
Allowance Irrevocable Trust’s Schedules of the Changes in the Net Pension (Asset) Liability, Net 
Pension (Asset) Liability and Employer Contributions, on page 58 through 60, respectively, the Other 
Post Employment Benefits and Schedules of Funding Progress and Employer Contributions on page 
61, the Local Government Employees’ Retirement System’s Schedules of the Proportionate Share of 
the Net Pension (Asset) Liability and Contributions, on pages 62 through 63, respectively, and the 
Register of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund Schedule of the County’s Proportionate Share of Net 
Pension Liability (Asset) and Contributions, on pages 64 through 65, respectively, be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an 
essential part of the financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context.  I and other auditors have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management’s responses to my inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge I 
obtained during my audit of the basic financial statements.  I do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence 
to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Supplementary and Other Information 

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Watauga County’s basic financial statements.  The combining and individual fund 
financial statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules as well as the accompanying schedule of 
expenditures of federal and state awards as required by U.S. Office and Management and Budget Title 
2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and the State Single Audit Implementation Act 
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements.   
 
The combining and individual fund financial statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules and the 
schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards are the responsibility of management and were 
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures; including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
by us and other auditors. In my opinion, based on my audit, the procedures performed as described 
above, and the report of other auditors the combining and individual fund financial statements, 

  
 2

111516 BCC Meeting

23

111516 BCC Meeting

23



budgetary schedules, other schedules and the schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards 
are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, I have also issued my report dated October 7, 
2016 on my consideration of the Watauga County’s internal control over financial reporting and on my 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and 
other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of my testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Watauga County’s 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 
Misty D. Watson, CPA, PA 
Boone, NC 28607 
October 7, 2016 

 
 

  
 3

111516 BCC Meeting

24

111516 BCC Meeting

24



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION            
AND ANALYSIS

111516 BCC Meeting

25

111516 BCC Meeting

25



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Watauga County 
Year Ended June 30, 2016 

As management of Watauga County, we offer readers of Watauga County’s financial statements this narrative overview and 
analysis of the financial activities of the County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016.  We encourage users to read the 
information presented here in conjunction with additional information we have furnished in the County's financial statements and 
notes which follow this narrative. 
 
Financial Highlights 

 
• The assets of the County exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by $136,284,553. 
• The County’s total net position increased by $7,918,785 primarily due to an increase in cash assets from revenues 

exceeding budget projections and a reduction in outstanding liabilities coupled with operating expenditures below 
expected levels. 

• The County’s unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $21,607,950 at the end of the year, representing 
46.34% of total General Fund expenditures. This is an increase of $3,415,887 in unassigned fund balance over the 
previous year.  

• Total County debt decreased by $4,117,361 in outstanding principal. 
• The Brookshire Underpass Greenway extension project under Hwy 421 was opened.  
• The household hazardous waste collection facility was completed to allow for 5-7 more disposal dates. 
• Moody’s Investors Service reaffirmed the County’s Aa3 credit rating and stated the County has a very strong 

financial position. 
• For the second year, the County was able to allocate funds to the Capital Projects Fund as part of the original 

budget ordinance denoting a continued rebound from the recession. 
• The fiscal year 2014-15 increase in unassigned fund balance of $1,443,552 was appropriated to the Capital Project 

Fund for the County’s CIP in addition to the initially budgeted $825,000. 
 

Overview of the Financial Statements 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Watauga County’s basic financial statements.  The 
County’s basic financial statements consist of three components, 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial 
statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.  
 
The basic financial statements present two different views of the County's finances through the use of government-wide 
statements and fund financial statements.  In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains other supplemental 
information that will enhance the reader's understanding of the financial condition of Watauga County.     
 
Required Components of Annual Financial Report 
Figure 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4 

 

111516 BCC Meeting

26

111516 BCC Meeting

26



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Basic Financial Statements 
The first two statements (Exhibits A and B) in the basic financial statements are the Government-wide Financial Statements.  
They provide both short and long-term information about the County’s financial status. 
The next statements (Exhibits C through J) are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the activities of the 
individual parts of the County's government. These statements provide more detail than the government-wide statements. There 
are four parts to the fund financial statements: 1) the governmental fund statements, 2) the budgetary comparison statements 3) 
the proprietary fund statements and 4) the fiduciary fund statements.  
 
The next sections of the basic financial statements are the notes. The notes to the financial statements explain in detail some of 
the data contained in those statements.  Directly following the notes is the supplemental information. This section first contains 
required supplemental information about the County's pension plans and the other postemployment benefits plan, followed by 
additional supplemental information. This supplemental information is provided to show details about the County’s individual 
funds. Budgetary information required by the General Statutes also can be found in this part of the statements. 
 
Government-wide Financial Statements 
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the County’s finances, 
similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business.  The government-wide statements provide short and long-
term information about the County’s financial status as a whole. 
 
The two government-wide statements report the County’s net position and how the net position has changed.  Net position is the 
difference between the County’s total assets and deferred outflows of resources and total liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources.  Measuring net position is one way to gauge the County’s financial condition. 
 
Government-wide financial statements may be divided into as many as three categories:  1) governmental activities, 2)  business-
type activities, and 3) component units.  The governmental activities include most of the County's basic services such as public 
safety, parks and recreation, and general administration.  Property taxes and state and federal grant funds finance most of these 
activities.  The business-type activities are those that the County charges customers to provide.  This includes solid waste 
services offered by Watauga County.  The final category is the component units.  AppalCART is a separate governmental entity, 
which operates a transportation authority in Watauga County.  Watauga County Board of Commissioners appoints the eight 
member governing body.  Watauga County provides some financial support and AppalCART is financially accountable to the 
County. The Watauga County District U Tourism Development Authority (TDA) is a separate governmental entity created to 
administer occupancy tax funds collected to promote tourism in the County. The six voting members of the Authority Board are 
appointed by the County Board of Commissioners.  
 
Fund Financial Statements 
The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the County’s most significant activities.  A fund is a grouping of 
related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  
Watauga County, like all governmental entities in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or non-
compliance) with finance-related legal requirements, such as the General Statutes or the County’s budget ordinance.  All County 
funds can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 
 
Governmental Funds – Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as governmental activities in the 
government-wide financial statements.  Most of the County’s activities are accounted for in governmental funds.  These funds 
focus on how assets can readily be converted into cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at year-end that will be available 
for spending in the next year.  Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting 
which focuses on current financial resources.  As a result, the governmental fund financial statements give the reader a detailed 
short-term view that helps him or her determine if there are more or less financial resources available to finance the County’s 
programs.  The relationship between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation that is a part of the fund financial statements. 
 
The County adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General Statutes.  The budget is a legally adopted 
document that incorporates input from the citizens of the County, the management of the County, and the decisions of the Board 
about which services to provide and how to pay for them.  It also authorizes the County to obtain funds from identified sources to 
finance these current period activities.  The budgetary statement provided for the General Fund demonstrates how well the 

5 

 

111516 BCC Meeting

27

111516 BCC Meeting

27



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

County complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the County succeeded in providing the services as planned when 
the budget was adopted.  The budgetary comparison statement uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using 
the same format, language, and classifications as the legal budget document.  The statement shows three columns: 1) the final 
budget as amended by the board, 2) the actual resources, charges to appropriations, and ending balances in the General Fund, 
and 3) the difference or variance between the final budget and the actual resources and charges.  To account for the difference 
between the budgetary basis of accounting and the modified accrual basis, a reconciliation showing the differences in the 
reported activities is shown at the end of the budgetary statement. 
 
Proprietary Funds - Watauga County has one proprietary fund, the Solid Waste Fund.  Enterprise funds are used to report the 
same functions presented as business-like activities in the government-wide financial statements.  Watauga County uses 
enterprise funds to account for its solid waste operations.  This fund is the same as those separate activities shown in the 
business-type activities in the Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities. 
 
Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside of the government.  
Watauga County has eight fiduciary funds, two of which are pension trust funds and the other six are agency funds. 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements – The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data 
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  The notes to the financial statements start on page 23 of this 
report. 
 
Other Information – In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report includes certain required 
supplementary information concerning Watauga County's progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its 
employees and other postemployment benefits.  Required supplementary information can be found beginning on page 56 of this 
report. 
 
Government-Wide Financial Analysis 
Watauga County’s Net Position 
Figure 2 

 Governmental Business-type   
 Activities Activities Total 
 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 
Current and other assets $    35,690,173 $  39,533,033 $  4,897,264 $  5,862,432 $   40,587,437 $   45,395,465 
Net capital assets 139,527,310 137,566,874 4,658,480 4,593,317 144,185,790 142,160,191 
     Total assets 175,217,483 177,099,907 9,555,744 10,455,749 184,773,227 $ 187,555,656 
       
Total deferred outflows of resources 729,287 718,757 64,737 60,289 794,024 779,046 
       
Long-term liabilities outstanding 48,274,945 49,333,032 98,309 172,660 48,373,254 49,505,692 
Other liabilities 5,604,966 1,834,602 169,425 282,485 5,774,391 2,117,087 
     Total liabilities 53,879,911 51,167,634 267,734 455,145 54,147,645 51,622,779 
       
Total deferred inflows of resources 2,344,468 394,202 216,948 33,168 2,561,416 427,370 
       
Net position:       
     Net investment in capital assets 92,898,978 94,926,875 4,658,480 4,593,317 97,557,458 99,520,192 
     Restricted 6,383,437 5,136,888 - - 6,383,437 5,136,888 
     Unrestricted 20,439,976 26,193,065 4,477,319 5,434,408 24,917,295 31,627,473 
               Total net position $  119,722,391 $126,256,828 $  9,135,799 $ 10,027,725 $ 128,858,190 $ 136,284,553 
 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government’s financial condition.  The assets of the 
County exceeded liabilities by $136,284,553 at June 30, 2016. The County’s net position increased by a total of $7,918,785 for the 
fiscal year. Net position is reported in three categories:  Net investment in capital assets of $99,520,192; restricted net position of 
$5,136,888; and unrestricted net position of $31,627,473.  

6 

 

111516 BCC Meeting

28

111516 BCC Meeting

28



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The net investment in capital assets is defined as the County's investment in County owned capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, 
automotive equipment, office and other equipment), less any related debt still outstanding that was issued to acquire those items. 
The County uses these assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. 
Although the County's investment in its capital assets is reported net of the outstanding debt, the resources needed to repay that 
debt must be provided by other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.  At June 30, 2016, 
the increase in this category of net position correlates to reduced outstanding debt along with increased capital assets. 

 
Another category of net position is restricted net position. This represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on 
how they may be used. The County has restricted assets due to statutory requirements for Register of Deeds Automation 
Enhancement Funds, Tax Revaluation, and Stabilization by State Statutes. Special revenues collected and unspent account for 
the balance of the restricted funds. 
 
The final category of net position is unrestricted net position. This balance may be used to meet the government's ongoing 
obligations to citizens and creditors. Several particular aspects of the County's financial operations affected the reporting of total 
unrestricted net position: 
 

• Higher current cash and cash equivalent assets;  
• Reductions in outstanding liabilities from debt principal paid;  
• Reduction in restricted net position increases unrestricted net position. 

 
Watauga County Changes in Net Position 
Figure 3 
 Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total 

 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 
Revenues       
Program revenues:       
Charges for services $   1,532,806 $  1,891,176 $4,346,485 $4,628,031 $    5,879,291 $    6,519,207 
Operating grants and contributions 4,973,943 5,694,785 113,697 153,795 5,087,640 5,848,580 
Capital grants 707,700 1,087,312 - - 707,700 1,087,312 
General revenues:       
Property taxes 30,935,535 30,972,900 - - 30,935,535 30,972,900 
Other taxes 12,260,357 13,445,818 - - 12,260,357 13,445,818 
Grant and contributions not restricted to 
specific programs 1,961,409 3,278,098 - - 1,961,409 3,278,098 
Other 2,034,114 136,602 22,164 23,689 2,056,278 160,291 
     Total revenues 54,405,864 56,506,691 4,482,346 4,805,515 58,888,210 61,312,206 
       
Expenses       
General government 9,442,939 10,139,596 - - 9,442,939 10,139,596 
Public safety 12,617,487 12,944,370 - - 12,617,487 12,944,370 
Transportation 167,182 209,838 - - 167,182 209,838 
Economic & physical development 521,052 664,986 - - 521,052 664,986 
Environment protection 355,573 331,923 - - 355,573 331,923 
Humans services 7,536,917 7,735,723 - - 7,536,917 7,735,723 
Cultural and recreation 1,142,379 1,293,315 - - 1,142,379 1,293,315 
Education 13,307,102 14,425,668 - - 13,307,102 14,425,668 
Interest on long-term debt 1,881,412 1,734,413 - - 1,881,412 1,734,413 
Solid Waste - - 4,081,333 3,913,589 4,081,333 3,913,589 
     Total expenses 46,972,043 49,479,832 4,081,333 3,913,589 51,053,376 53,393,421 
       
Increase (decrease) in net position before 
transfers and special items 7,433,821 7,026,859 401,013 891,926 7,834,834 7,918,785 

Transfers 40,392 - (40,392) - - - 
Increase (decrease) in net position after 
transfer and special items 7,474,213 7,026,859 360,621 891,926 7,834,834 7,918,785 

Net position, beginning, previously reported 111,807,321 119,722,391 8,734,589 9,135,799 120,541,910 128,858,190 
Restatement 440,857 (492,422) 40,589 - 481,446 (492,422) 
Net position, beginning, restated 112,248,178 119,229,969 8,775,178 9,135,799 121,023,356 128,365,768 
Net position, ending $119,722,391 $126,256,828 $9,135,799 $10,027,725 $128,858,190 $136,284,553 
 

7 

 

111516 BCC Meeting

29

111516 BCC Meeting

29



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Governmental activities:  Governmental activities increased the County’s net position by $7,026,859 before prior year 
adjustments, thereby accounting for 88.74% of the total growth in the net position of Watauga County.  Key elements of this 
increase are as follows: 
 

• Sales tax increases due to the improved economic factors, particularly in the tourism industry resulted in revenues above 
projection;  

• Continued high property tax collections at a rate of 98.81% for FY 15-16, an increase of 44 basis points over last year; 
• Close monitoring of expenditures throughout the year with actual expenditures well below budget.  

 
Business-type activities:  Business-type activities increased Watauga County’s net position by $891,926 (11.26%).  Key 
elements of this increase are as follows: 
 

• Revenues in excess of projections for sale of recycled materials due to anticipated volume reductions not materializing; 
• Revenues for solid waste fees were above projections due to higher tax collection rates; 
• Contracted increases in the waste hauling contract were below projected increase along with continued fuel escalator 

credits in excess of anticipated amounts. 
 
Financial Analysis of the County’s Funds 
Watauga County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal and accounting 
requirements. 
 
Governmental Funds – The focus of Watauga County’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, 
outflows, and balances of usable resources.  Such information is useful in assessing the County’s financing requirements.  
Specifically, fund balance available for appropriation can be a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for 
spending at the end of the fiscal year. 
 
The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the County.  At the end of the current fiscal year, the unassigned fund balance of 
the General Fund increased to $21,607,950 while total fund balance increased to $26,408,144.  As a measure of the General 
Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures.  
Unassigned fund balance represents 45.79 percent of total General Fund expenditures ($47,189,556), while total fund balance 
represents 55.96 percent of that same amount. 
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights - During the fiscal year, the County revised the budget on several occasions.  Generally, 
budget amendments fall into one of three categories:  1) amendments made to adjust the estimates that are used to prepare the 
original budget ordinance once more exact information is available; 2) amendments made to recognize new funding amounts from 
external sources, such as Federal and State grants; and 3) increases in appropriations that become necessary to maintain 
services. Total amendments to the General Fund increased revenues, transfers and expenditures by $4,472,492 with 
approximately $1.44 million of the amendments related to funds set aside for future capital needs of the County, $466,774 for 
school lottery projects, and approximately $660,000 for additional projects and grant funding received. The actual operating 
revenues for the General Fund were $1,975,005 more than the budgeted amount.  Actual operating expenses were less than 
budgeted by $3,611,260. Unfinished projects which are budgeted but not completed account for $1,940,979 (53.75%) of the total 
amount under budget for expenditures.  
 
Proprietary Funds - Watauga County's proprietary fund is used to provide information on the solid waste enterprise.  Unrestricted 
net position of the Solid Waste Fund at the end of the fiscal year amounted to $5,434,408.  The total increase in proprietary net 
position was $891,926. Anticipated rate per ton and fuel escalator increases in the waste hauling contract tied to the national CPI 
were not realized with the continued recession recovery creating savings. 
 
Capital Asset and Debt Administration 
 
Capital Assets:  Watauga County's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities as of June 30, 
2016, totals $142,160,191 (net of depreciation).  These assets include buildings, land, machinery and equipment, park facilities, 
and vehicles.  Major capital asset transactions during the year include: 
 

• Purchased new vehicles and equipment for County governmental departments; 

8 

 

111516 BCC Meeting

30

111516 BCC Meeting

30



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

• Continued work on the new ambulance base site and the greenway/underpass at Brookshire Park and Hwy 421; 
• Completion of a new building for household hazardous waste collection. 

 
Watauga County's Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation 
Figure 4 
 

 Governmental 
Activities 

Business 
Activities 

Total 

 2016 2016 2016 
Land $  44,213,150 $      975,497 $    45,188,647 
Buildings 81,703,572 3,036,287 84,739,859 
Other improvements 3,254,625 144,778 3,399,403 
Leasehold improvements 5,428,270 6,795 5,435,065 
Equipment 1,144,183 273,713 1,417,896 
Vehicles 710,772 156,247 867,019 
Construction in progress 1,096,702 - 1,096,702 
Intangible assets 15,600 - 15,600 
Total $  137,566,874 $  4,593,317 $  142,160,191 

 
Additional information on the County's capital assets can be found in note 3 of the Basic Financial Statements. 
 
Long-term Debt.  As of June 30, 2016, Watauga County had no bonded debt outstanding or authorized.   
 
Watauga County's Outstanding Debt 
Figure 5 
 

Governmental Activities 
 2016 2015 
Installment purchase $   43,156,110 $  47,273,471 

 
Watauga County's total debt decreased by $4,117,361 or (8.71%) during the past fiscal year due to scheduled debt service 
payments. No new debt was issued. The State of North Carolina limits the amount of debt that a unit of government can issue to 8 
percent of the total assessed value of taxable property located within that government's boundaries less outstanding debt 
principal.  The legal debt margin for Watauga County as of June 30, 2016 is $672,414,671.  Additional information regarding 
Watauga County's long-term debt can be found in Note 3.B.7.b of this report. 

 
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates 
 
The following key economic factors reflect the fiscal environment the County is working in: 
 

- The County continues to experience growth in tourism and has seen continued revenue increases 
for more than seven years related to tourism; 

- The County’s unemployment rate of 4.5% as of July 2016 is slightly lower than the state average of 
4.6% and the federal rate of 4.9% and is consistent with the trends seen before the economic 
recession; 

- Appalachian State University provides continued stability to the local economy as a major employer 
and source of overall positive economic impact from the student population; 

- Construction and real estate sales have continued to show increases, consistent with state and 
national trends. 

 
 

9 

 

111516 BCC Meeting

31

111516 BCC Meeting

31



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017 
 
Governmental activities – The County’s property tax rate is maintained at 31.3 cents per $100 in property valuation for the 
eleventh year in a row. Tax revenues are expected to remain level with minor growth for new construction. Sales tax revenue is 
projected with a 3 percent increase based on state projections and more history with the ad valorem method of distribution. Other 
revenues are expected to maintain current levels with minor increases. 
 
Budgeted expenditures in the General Fund include increased school current expense and capital funding of just over $409,000, 
department budgets with minor increases predominately due to personnel salary and benefit increases. Capital purchases are 
allocated mainly for vehicle replacements with other projects still limited to primarily repairs and maintenance. A major project to 
replace the roof and HVAC units at the West Annex is planned at $234,000. Completion during Fiscal Year 16-17 is expected on 
the new ambulance base in the western part of the County and the Brookshire/Hwy 421 underpass greenway project. Funds are 
allocated to be set aside again this year for future capital school projects of $400,000 (a $25,000 increase over FY 15-16) and 
$500,000 for county projects.  
 
Businesses-type activities – Budgeted revenues for solid waste fees are projected at current year amounts with property 
owners continuing to receive 2,000 pounds of free disposal at the transfer station. Budgeted expenditures include funding for an 
increase in waste hauling expenses due to potential contracted increases in April 2017. Funds have also been budgeted for 
capital replacements of a snowplow, pickup truck, tire trailer, recycling containers, road tractor, and a trash truck estimated at 
$381,250. 
 
Requests for Information 
 
This report is designed to provide an overview of the County’s finances for those with an interest in this area.  Questions 
concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for additional information should be directed to the Watauga 
County Finance Director, 814 West King Street, Suite 216, Boone, NC  28607. The report can also be found on our website 
www.wataugacounty.org/main/App_Pages/Dept/Finance/countyAudits.aspx.  

10 

 

111516 BCC Meeting

32

111516 BCC Meeting

32

http://www.wataugacounty.org/main/App_Pages/Dept/Finance/countyAudits.aspx


BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

111516 BCC Meeting

33

111516 BCC Meeting

33



Exhibit A

Watauga County
District U Tourism

Governmental Business-type  Development
Activities Activities Total AppalCART Authority

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 33,583,709         $ 5,297,107        $ 38,880,816   $ 2,231,237     $ 1,491,637              
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 815,078              -                       815,078        -                    -                             
Receivables (net) 1,404,657           456,377           1,861,034     8,514            -                             
Due from other governments 3,041,172           37,550             3,078,722     169,387        334,400                 
Inventory -                          -                       -                    151,043        -                             
Net pension asset - ROD 152,800              -                       152,800        -                    -                             
Intangible asset for advanced funding of OPEB NOO 535,617              71,398             607,015        -                    -                             
Capital assets:
   Land, intangible, and construction in progress 45,325,452         975,497           46,300,949   1,213,392     -                             
   Other capital assets, net of depreciation 92,241,422         3,617,820        95,859,242   10,029,158   -                             
     Total capital assets 137,566,874       4,593,317        142,160,191 11,242,550   -                             
        Total assets 177,099,907       10,455,749      187,555,656 13,802,731   1,826,037              

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension deferrals-LEOSSA 17,055                -                       17,055          -                    -                             
Contributions to pension plan in current fiscal 
year-LEOSSA 7,663                  -                       7,663            -                    -                             
Pension deferrals-LGERS and ROD 16,228                481                  16,709          -                    -                             
Contributions to pension plan in current fiscal 
year-LGERS and ROD 677,811              59,808             737,619        -                    10,241                   
     Total deferred outflows of resources 718,757              60,289             779,046        -                    10,241                   

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,280,042           282,485           1,562,527     169,924        3,674                     
Accrued interest payable 162,452              -                       162,452        -                    -                             
Due to other governments 346,155              -                       346,155        -                    -                             
Liabilities payable from restricted assets 45,953                -                       45,953          -                    -                             
Unamortized liability for bond premiums 3,902,873           -                       3,902,873     -                    -                             
Long-term liabilities:

Net pension liability - LGERS 717,269              63,814             781,083        -                    12,880                   
Net pension liability - LEOSSA 517,233              -                       517,233        -                    -                             
Debt service due within one year 4,082,361           -                       4,082,361     -                    -                             
Due in more than one year 40,113,296         108,846           40,222,142   -                    7,458                     

     Total liabilities 51,167,634         455,145           51,622,779   169,924        24,012                   

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension deferrals 379,946              33,168             413,114        -                    17,613                   
Prepaid taxes and fees 14,256                -                       14,256          -                    -                             
     Total deferred inflows of resources 394,202              33,168             427,370        -                    17,613                   

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 94,926,875         4,593,317        99,520,192   11,242,550   -                             
Restricted for:

Stabilization by State Statute 4,542,332           -                       4,542,332     -                    334,400                 
Public safety 336,694              -                       336,694        -                    -                             
Register of Deeds 78,847                -                       78,847          -                    -                             
Revaluation 179,015              -                       179,015        -                    -                             
Tourism promotion -                          -                       -                    -                    1,460,253              

Unrestricted (deficit) 26,193,065         5,434,408        31,627,473   2,390,257     -                             
Total net position $ 126,256,828       $ 10,027,725      $ 136,284,553 $ 13,632,807   $ 1,794,653              

Primary Government Component Units

Watauga County, North Carolina
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2016

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
 

11

111516 BCC Meeting

34

111516 BCC Meeting

34



Operating Grants Capital Grants
Charges for and and 

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary government:
Governmental Activities:
   General government $ 10,139,596         $ 848,431              $ 335,758                       $ 60,000                
   Public safety 12,944,370         661,585              686,059                       -                          
   Transportation 209,838              -                         142,343                       -                          
   Economic and physical development 664,986              -                         -                                   -                          
   Environmental protection 331,923              -                         27,159                         14,081                
   Human services 7,735,723           74,858                4,502,891                    -                          
   Cultural and recreational 1,293,315           306,302              -                                   453,554              
   Education 14,425,668         -                         575                              559,677              
   Interest on long-term debt 1,734,413           -                         -                                   -                          
     Total governmental activities 49,479,832         1,891,176           5,694,785                    1,087,312           

Business-type activities:
   Solid waste 3,913,589           4,628,031           153,795                       -                          

     Total $ 53,393,421         $ 6,519,207           $ 5,848,580                    $ 1,087,312           

Component units:
AppalCART $ 4,179,067           $ 2,396,963           $ 2,002,783                    $ 201,897              

   Watauga County District U Tourism
    Development Authority $ 1,132,874           $ -                         $ 240,203                       $ -                          

General revenues:
   Taxes:

Property taxes, levied for general purpose
Local option sales tax
Other taxes and licenses
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs
Investment earnings, unrestricted
Miscellaneous, unrestricted

Total general revenues, special items, and transfers
Change in net position

Net position, beginning previously reported
Restatement
Net position, beginning, restated
Net position, ending

Program Revenues

Watauga County, North Carolina
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
 

12

111516 BCC Meeting

35

111516 BCC Meeting

35



Exhibit B

Watauga County
District U

Governmental Business-type Tourism Development
Activities Activities Total AppalCART Authority

$ (8,895,407)            $ -                         $ (8,895,407)            $ $
(11,596,726)          -                         (11,596,726)          

(67,495)                 -                         (67,495)                 
(664,986)               -                         (664,986)               
(290,683)               -                         (290,683)               

(3,157,974)            -                         (3,157,974)            
(533,459)               -                         (533,459)               

(13,865,416)          -                         (13,865,416)          
(1,734,413)            -                         (1,734,413)            

(40,806,559)          -                         (40,806,559)          

-                            868,237              868,237                

(40,806,559)          868,237              (39,938,322)          

422,576                

(892,671)                         

30,972,900           -                         30,972,900           -                            -                                      
11,166,662           -                         11,166,662           -                            -                                      
2,279,156             -                         2,279,156             -                            1,347,531                       
3,278,098             -                         3,278,098             -                            -                                      

114,946                15,785                130,731                2,237                    2,320                              
21,656                  7,904                  29,560                  2,287                    -                                      

47,833,418           23,689                47,857,107           4,524                    1,349,851                       
7,026,859             891,926              7,918,785             427,100                457,180                          

119,722,391         9,135,799           128,858,190         13,205,707           1,337,473                       
(492,422)               -                         (492,422)               -                            -                                      

119,229,969         9,135,799           128,365,768         13,205,707           1,337,473                       
$ 126,256,828         $ 10,027,725         $ 136,284,553         $ 13,632,807           $ 1,794,653                       

Net (Expense) Revenues and Changes in Net Position
Primary Government Component Units

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
 

13

111516 BCC Meeting

36

111516 BCC Meeting

36



Exhibit C

Capital Other Total 
Projects Governmental Governmental 

General Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 24,403,576  $ 9,180,133    $ -                        $ 33,583,709        
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 257,862       -                   557,216            815,078             
Taxes receivable, net 766,466       -                   222,836            989,302             
Due from other governments 3,000,782    -                   40,390              3,041,172          
Accounts receivable, net 58,774         -                   -                        58,774               

     Total assets $ 28,487,460  $ 9,180,133    $ 820,442            $ 38,488,035        

LIABILITIES 
   Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 1,280,042    $ -                   $ -                        $ 1,280,042          
   Due to other governments 21,110         -                   325,045            346,155             
   Liabilities to be paid from restricted assets -                   -                   45,953              45,953               
     Total liabilities 1,301,152    -                   370,998            1,672,150          

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
   Taxes receivable 766,466       -                   110,192            876,658             
   Prepaid taxes 11,698         -                   2,558                14,256               
     Total deferred inflows of resources 778,164       -                   112,750            890,914             

FUND BALANCES
   Restricted for:
     Stabilization for State Statute 4,542,332    -                   -                        4,542,332          
     Public safety -                   -                   336,694            336,694             
     Register of Deeds 78,847         -                   -                        78,847               
     Revaluation 179,015       -                   -                        179,015             
   Committed for:

Capital projects -                   9,180,133    -                        9,180,133          
   Unassigned 21,607,950  -                   -                        21,607,950        
        Total fund balances 26,408,144  9,180,133    336,694            35,924,971        

$ 28,487,460  $ 9,180,133    $ 820,442            $ 38,488,035        

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position (Exhibit A) are different because:

Total Fund Balance, Governmental Funds 35,924,971        

535,617             
Net pension asset - ROD 152,800             

677,811             

  137,566,874      

  356,581             
Deferred inflows of resources for taxes receivable 876,658             
Pension related deferrals-all plans (339,000)            
Net pension liability - LGERS (717,269)            
Net pension liability - LEOSSA (517,233)            

  (48,260,982)       

Net position of governmental activities $ 126,256,828      

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and 
fund balances

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not reported
in the funds.
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and therefore are
unavailable in the funds.

Some liabilities, including debt related payables and other postemployment benefits, are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore  are not reported in the funds.

Watauga County, North Carolina

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2016

The intangible assets resulting from advance contributions to the OPEB NOO in excess of the annual
required contribution are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Contributions to pension plans in the current fiscal year are deferred outflows of resources on the
Statement of Net Position.

Governmental Funds

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
 

14

111516 BCC Meeting

37

111516 BCC Meeting

37



Exhibit D-1

Capital Other Total 
General Projects Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes $ 28,151,345     $ -                 $ 2,987,818           $ 31,139,163         
Other taxes and licenses 12,026,733     -                 1,419,085           13,445,818         
Unrestricted intergovernmental 3,278,098       -                 -                          3,278,098           
Restricted intergovernmental 6,015,642       -                 438,452              6,454,094           
Permits and fees 762,959          -                 -                          762,959              
Sales and services 1,042,046       -                 -                          1,042,046           
Investment earnings 89,212            25,734       1,063                  116,009              
Donations 103,366          -                 -                          103,366              
Miscellaneous 309,745          -                 -                          309,745              
   Total revenues 51,779,146     25,734       4,846,418           56,651,298         

EXPENDITURES
Current:
   General government 7,000,537       -                 1,371,244           8,371,781           
   Public safety 9,652,076       -                 3,513,077           13,165,153         
   Transportation 209,838          -                 -                          209,838              
   Economic and physical development 508,661          -                 137,873              646,534              
   Environmental protection 353,323          -                 -                          353,323              
   Human services 7,425,331       -                 -                          7,425,331           
   Cultural and recreational 1,443,902       -                 -                          1,443,902           
   Education 14,425,668     -                 -                          14,425,668         
Capital outlay -                     -                 27,937                27,937                
Debt service:
   Principal 4,117,361       -                 -                          4,117,361           
   Interest 2,052,859       -                 -                          2,052,859           
     Total expenditures 47,189,556     -                 5,050,131           52,239,687         
        Excess (deficiency) of

        revenues over expenditures 4,589,590       25,734       (203,713)             4,411,611           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of assets 52,013            -                 -                          52,013                
Transfers from other funds 4,100              2,268,552  -                          2,272,652           
Transfers to other funds (2,268,552)     -                 (4,100)                 (2,272,652)          
   Total other financing sources and uses (2,212,439)     2,268,552  (4,100)                 52,013                

   Net change in fund balance 2,377,151       2,294,286  (207,813)             4,463,624           

Fund balances, beginning of year 24,030,993     6,885,847  544,507              31,461,347         
Fund balances, end of year $ 26,408,144     $ 9,180,133  $ 336,694              $ 35,924,971         

Watauga County, North Carolina
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
Governmental Funds

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
 

15

111516 BCC Meeting

38

111516 BCC Meeting

38



Exhibit D-2

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are
   different because:

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 4,463,624        
   

  

Capital outlay expenditures which were capitalized $ 1,485,541  
Sale of assets not fully depreciated (30,356)      
Depreciation expense for governmental assets (3,415,620) 

(1,960,435)       

677,811           

Change in unavailable revenue for tax revenues (166,263)    
(166,263)          

Other postemployment benefits 76,088       
Pension expense-LGERS and ROD (400,262)    
Compensated absences (38,073)      
Pension expense-LEOSSA (61,438)      
Amortization of bond premiums and deferred charges 305,072     
     Combined adjustment (118,613)          

Principal payments on long term debt 4,117,361  
Decrease in accrued interest payable 13,374       

4,130,735        

     Total changes in net position of governmental activities $ 7,026,859        

Watauga County, North Carolina
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, 

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds
To the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction has any effect on net position. This amount is the net effect of
these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the
amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current
period.

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds.

Contributions to the pension plan in the current fiscal year are not included
on the Statement of Activities.

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
 

16

111516 BCC Meeting

39

111516 BCC Meeting

39



Exhibit E

Variance with 
Final Budget-

Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
   Ad valorem taxes $ 27,508,992  $ 27,508,992    $ 28,151,345    $ 642,353            
   Other taxes and licenses 11,203,500  11,318,062    12,026,733    708,671            
   Unrestricted intergovernmental 2,478,350    2,478,350      3,278,098      799,748            
   Restricted intergovernmental 5,245,538    6,461,026      6,015,642      (445,384)           
   Permits and fees 707,395       707,395         762,959         55,564              
   Sales and services 986,087       986,087         1,042,046      55,959              
   Investment earnings 60,000         60,000           89,212           29,212              
   Donations 27,500         27,500           103,366         75,866              
   Miscellaneous 215,119       256,729         309,745         53,016              
     Total revenues 48,432,481  49,804,141    51,779,146    1,975,005         

Expenditures:
   Current:
     General government 7,131,620    8,953,688      7,000,537      1,953,151         
     Public safety 9,861,576    10,034,352    9,652,076      382,276            
     Transportation 67,495         209,838         209,838         -                        
     Economic and Physical Development 494,306       546,274         508,661         37,613              
     Environmental Protection 361,745       391,993         353,323         38,670              
     Human Services 7,927,224    8,045,262      7,425,331      619,931            
     Cultural and Recreation 1,492,856    1,495,542      1,443,902      51,640              
     Education 14,264,834  14,953,647    14,425,668    527,979            
   Debt service:
     Principal retirement 4,117,361    4,117,361      4,117,361      -                        
     Interest and other charges 2,052,859    2,052,859      2,052,859      -                        
        Total expenditures 47,771,876  50,800,816    47,189,556    3,611,260         
 
Revenues over (under) expenditures 660,605       (996,675)       4,589,590      5,586,265         

Other financing sources (uses):
   Gain/(loss) on disposal of assets 35,000         35,000           52,013           17,013              
   Transfers from other funds -                   4,100             4,100             -                        
   Transfers to other funds (825,000)      (2,268,552)    (2,268,552)    -                        
   Fund balance appropriated 129,395       3,226,127      -                    (3,226,127)        
     Total other financing sources (uses) (660,605)      996,675         (2,212,439)    (3,209,114)        

   Net change in fund balance -                   -                    2,377,151      2,377,151         
Fund balance, beginning of year 24,030,993    -                        
Fund balance, end of year $ $ $ 26,408,144    $ -                        

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - 
Watauga County, North Carolina

General Fund

Budget

Budget and Actual - General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
 

17

111516 BCC Meeting

40

111516 BCC Meeting

40



Exhibit F

Enterprise Fund

Solid Waste
Fund

   ASSETS
   Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,297,107                 
Receivables, net 456,377                    
Due from other governments 37,550                      
   Total current assets 5,791,034                 

   Non-current assets:
Intangible asset for advance funding of OPEB NOO 71,398                      
Capital assets:

   Land and construction in progress 975,497                    
  Other capital assets, net of depreciation 3,617,820                 
   Subtotal capital assets 4,593,317                 
   Total non-current assets 4,664,715                 
      Total assets 10,455,749               

  DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

481                           
Contributions to pension plan in current fiscal year 59,808                      
   Total deferred outflows of resources 60,289                      

   LIABILITIES
Net pension liability 63,814                      
Accounts payable 282,485                    
Accrued compensated absences 108,846                    
   Total liabilities 455,145                    

   DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

18,168                      
15,000                      

   Total deferred inflows of resources 33,168                      

   NET POSITION
   Net investment in capital assets 4,593,317                 
   Unrestricted 5,434,408                 
     Total net position $ 10,027,725               

Pensions-differences between expected and actual experience

Watauga County, North Carolina
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Fund
June 30, 2016

Pensions-change in proportion and difference between employer                         
contributions and proportionate share of contributions

Pensions-net difference between projected and actual investment earnings on 
plan investments

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
 

18

111516 BCC Meeting

41

111516 BCC Meeting

41



Exhibit G

Enterprise Fund

Solid Waste
Fund

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services $ 4,317,534          
Sale of recycled materials 310,497             

   Total operating revenues 4,628,031          

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Landfill operations 3,511,294          
Recycling operations 83,264               
Depreciation 318,039             

   Total operating expenses 3,912,597          

      Operating income (loss) 715,434             

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Interest and investment revenue 15,785               
Miscellaneous revenues 7,904                 
Gain/(loss) on disposal of assets (992)                   
Restricted intergovernmental revenues 153,795             

   Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 176,492             

      Change in net position 891,926             

Total net position, beginning 9,135,799          
Total net position, ending $ 10,027,725        

Watauga County, North Carolina
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position

Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
 

19

111516 BCC Meeting

42

111516 BCC Meeting

42



Exhibit H

Enterprise Fund

Solid Waste 
Fund

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers $ 4,499,083              
Cash paid for goods and services (2,222,490)             
Cash paid to employees for services (1,281,743)             

Net cash provided by operating activities 994,850                 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Restricted intergovernmental revenues 153,795                 
Miscellaneous revenues 7,904                     

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 161,699                 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds received from sale of fixed assets 26,839                   
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (280,708)                

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities (253,869)                

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest on investments 15,785                   

Net cash provided by investing activities 15,785                   

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 918,465                 

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1 4,378,642              

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30 $ 5,297,107              

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Operating income (loss) $ 715,434                 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
   provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 318,039                 
Changes in assets, liabilities, deferred outflows and inflows of resources:

Decrease in net pension asset 89,014                   
Decrease in deferred outflow of resources - pensions 4,448                     
Increase in net pension liability 63,814                   
Decrease in deferred inflow of resources - pensions (183,780)                

   Increase in accounts receivable (118,979)                
   Increase in due from other governments (9,969)                    
   Increase in accounts payable 113,061                 
   Increase in intangible asset for advance funding of OPEB NOO (6,769)                    
   Increase in accrued compensated absenses 10,537                   

Total adjustments 279,416                 

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 994,850                 

Watauga County, North Carolina
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
 

20

111516 BCC Meeting

43

111516 BCC Meeting

43



Exhibit I

Pension
Trust Agency
Funds Funds

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,123,594 88,273         
Accounts receivable 2,740        20,416         

1,126,334 108,689       

Liabilities and Net Position

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ -                108,689       

-                108,689       

Net position:

     Assets held in trust $ 1,126,334 -                  

Assets

Watauga County, North Carolina
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2016

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
 

21

111516 BCC Meeting

44

111516 BCC Meeting

44



Exhibit J

Pension
Trust
Funds

Additions:

Employer contributions $ 494,996             
Interest earned 8,605                 

Total additions 503,601             

Deductions:

Benefits 135,427             
Administrative expense 5,036                 

Total deductions 140,463             

Change in net position 363,138             

Net position, beginning 763,196             

Net position, ending $ 1,126,334          

Watauga County, North Carolina
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
 

22

111516 BCC Meeting

45

111516 BCC Meeting

45



 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

The accounting policies of Watauga County and its component units conform to generally accepted 
accounting principles as applicable to governments. The following is a summary of the more 
significant accounting policies: 

 
A. Reporting Entity 

 
The County, which is governed by a five-member Board of Commissioners, is one of the 100 
counties established in North Carolina under North Carolina General Statute 153A-10.  As required 
by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the County along 
with its component units. Component units are legally-separate entities for which the County is 
financially accountable.  The discretely presented component units presented below are reported in 
separate columns in the County's combined financial statements in order to emphasize that they are 
legally separate from the County.   
 
AppalCART 

 
AppalCART is the local transportation authority for Watauga County. Watauga County's Board of 
Commissioners appoints the eight-member governing board of AppalCART and AppalCART 
operates within the County's boundaries for the benefit of the County's residents and Appalachian 
State University. The County provides some financial support to AppalCART but it is not responsible 
for the debts of AppalCART except when such are expressly granted by statute or by the consent of 
the Board of Commissioners of Watauga County. The Board of Commissioners of Watauga County 
has the authority to terminate the existence of AppalCART at any time, provided a 60-day written 
notice is given to AppalCART, and all property and assets of AppalCART shall automatically 
become the property of Watauga County and the County shall succeed to all rights, obligations and 
liabilities of AppalCART.  AppalCART designates its own management, approves its own budget, 
and maintains its own accounting system; however, AppalCART is fiscally accountable to Watauga 
County, and the County has the authority to examine all records and accounts at any time.  
AppalCART, which has a June 30 year-end, is presented as if it were a proprietary fund.  Complete 
financial statements may be obtained from the entity’s administrative offices at AppalCART, 305 
Hwy 105 Bypass, Boone, NC  28607. 
 
Watauga County District U Tourism Development Authority 
 
The North Carolina General Legislation enacted a law which authorized Watauga County to levy a 
room occupancy tax; and the Watauga County Commissioners adopted a resolution levying this tax 
and created the Watauga County District U Tourism Development Authority. The Authority operates 
within Watauga County’s boundaries for the promotion and development of tourism, and the County 
provides room occupancy tax proceeds as their main source of revenue to the Authority, but the 
County is not responsible for the debts and is not entitled to the surpluses of the Authority. Watauga 
County’s Board of Commissioners appoints the six voting members of the Authority. The Watauga 
County District U Tourism Development Authority has a June 30 year end and is presented as if it is 
a governmental fund. Complete financial statements may be obtained from the entity’s 
administrative offices at Watauga County District U Tourism Development Authority, 815 West King 
St., Boone, NC  28607. 
 
B. Basis of Presentation – Basis of Accounting 

 
  Basis of Presentation, Measurement Focus – Basis of Accounting 
 

Government-wide Statements:  The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities 
display information about the primary government (the County) and its component units. These 
statements include the financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary activities. 
Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities. These 
statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the County. 

 23

111516 BCC Meeting

46

111516 BCC Meeting

46



 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and 
other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees 
charged to external parties. 
 
The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues 
for the different business-type activities of the County and for each function of the County's 
governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or 
function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense allocations 
that have been made in the funds have been reversed for the statement of activities. Program 
revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the 
programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, 
including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. 
 
Fund Financial Statements:  The fund financial statements provide information about the County's 
funds, including its fiduciary funds.  Separate statements for each fund category – governmental, 
proprietary, and fiduciary – are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major 
governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining 
governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as non-major funds. 
 
Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange 
transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in 
which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues, such as 
subsidies and investment earnings, result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities. 
 
The County reports the following major governmental funds: 
 
General Fund – This is the County’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of 
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
 
Capital Projects Fund – This is a capital projects fund. It accounts for the County’s reserves set 
aside for future capital needs. 
 
The County reports the following major enterprise fund: 
 
Solid Waste Fund – This fund accounts for the operation, maintenance, and development of the 
County's transfer and disposal sites. 
 
The County reports the following other fund types: 
 
Trust Funds – The County maintains two pension trust funds – the Other PostEmployment Benefits 
Fund and the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance Fund.  Pension trust funds 
are used to report resources that are required to be held in trust for members and beneficiaries of 
defined benefit pension plans, defined contribution plans, or other postemployment benefit plans. 
The Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) Irrevocable Trust Fund accounts for the County’s 
contributions for healthcare coverage provided to qualified retirees. The LEO Special Separation 
Allowance (LEOSSA) Irrevocable Trust Fund accounts for the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special 
Separation Allowance, a single-employer, public employee retirement system. The resources in the 
LEO Special Separation Allowance Fund have been set aside to pay future obligations of the LEO 
Special Separation Allowance. 
  
Agency Funds – Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve the measurement of 
operating results. Agency funds are used to account for assets the County holds on behalf of 
others.  The County maintains the following agency funds: the Social Services Trust Fund, which 
accounts for moneys deposited with the Department of Social Services for the benefit of certain 
individuals; the Vehicle Tax-Towns Fund, which accounts for registered motor vehicle property 
taxes that are collected by the County for various municipalities within the County but are not 

 24

111516 BCC Meeting

47

111516 BCC Meeting

47



 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

revenues to the County; the Inmate Commissary Fund, which accounts for monies deposited with 
the County’s Detention Center for the benefit of certain individuals; the Fines and Forfeitures Fund 
which accounts for various fines and forfeitures that the County is required to remit to the Watauga 
County Board of Education, the Deed of Trust Fee Fund which accounts for fees collected by the 
Register of Deeds which are remitted to the State Treasurer on a monthly basis, and the Town of 
Boone Tax Fund which accounts for property taxes billed and collected by the County on behalf of 
the Town of Boone. 
 
Non-major Funds – The County maintains seven legally budgeted non-major funds. The Federal 
Equitable Sharing Fund, the State Substance Abuse Tax Fund, the Emergency Telephone System 
Fund, the Fire Districts Funds, the Occupancy Tax Fund, and the CDBG Scattered Site Housing 
Fund are all reported as non-major special revenue funds.  
  
Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 
 
In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the County are maintained during 
the year using the modified accrual basis of accounting. 
 
Government-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements – The government-wide, 
proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus, except for the agency funds which have no measurement focus. The 
government-wide, proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the 
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at 
the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange 
transactions, in which the County gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) 
equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On an accrual 
basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.  
Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations are recognized in the fiscal year in which all 
eligibility requirements have been satisfied. 

 
Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, 
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and 
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general 
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes. 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.  
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from provided services and producing and 
delivering goods in connecting with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal 
operating revenues of the County enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services.  
Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative 
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition 
are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 
 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements – Governmental funds are reported using the current 
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this 
method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when 
the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, 
claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the 
extent that they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are 
reported as other financing sources. 
 
The County considers all revenues available if they are collected within 90 days after year-end, 
except for property taxes. Ad valorem property taxes are not accrued as revenue because the 
amount is not susceptible to accrual. At June 30, taxes receivable for property other than motor 
vehicles are materially past due and are not considered to be an available resource to finance the 
operations of the current year. As of September 1, 2013, State law altered the procedures for the 

 25

111516 BCC Meeting

48

111516 BCC Meeting

48



 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

assessment and collection of property taxes on registered motor vehicles in North Carolina.  
Effective with this change in the law, the State of North Carolina is responsible for billing and 
collecting the property taxes on registered motor vehicles on behalf of all municipalities and special 
tax districts.  Property taxes are due when vehicles are registered.  The billed taxes are applicable 
to the fiscal year in which they are received. Uncollected taxes that were billed in periods prior to 
September 1, 2013 and for limited registration license plates are shown as a receivable in these 
financial statements and are offset by deferred inflows of resources.   
  
Sales taxes and certain intergovernmental revenues, such as utilities franchise tax, collected and 
held by the State at year-end on behalf of the County are recognized as revenue. Intergovernmental 
revenues, and sales and services are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not 
measurable until received in cash. All taxes, including those dedicated for specific purposes, are 
reported as general revenues rather than program revenues. Expenditure driven grants are 
recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other grant 
requirements have been satisfied. 
 
Under the terms of grant agreements, the County funds certain programs by a combination of 
specific cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus, when 
program expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net positions available to 
finance the program. It is the County's policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to 
such programs, followed by categorical block grants, and then by general revenues. 
 
All governmental and business-type activities and enterprise funds of the County follow FASB 
Statements and Interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989, Accounting Principals 
Board Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins, unless those pronouncements conflict with 
GASB pronouncements. 

 
C. Budgetary Data 

 
The County's budgets are adopted as required by the North Carolina General Statutes. An annual 
budget is adopted for the General Fund, the Capital Project Fund, the Federal Equitable Sharing, 
the State Substance Abuse Tax, the Emergency Telephone System, Fire Districts, Occupancy Tax 
Special Revenue Funds, and Enterprise funds. All annual appropriations lapse at the fiscal year-
end. A project ordinance is adopted for the CDBG Scattered Site Housing Grant Fund. All budgets 
are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures may not legally exceed 
appropriations at the departmental level for all annually budgeted funds and at the object level for 
the multi-year funds. The budget officer is authorized by the budget ordinance to transfer 
appropriation within a fund not to exceed 10% of the total departmental appropriation of the 
department whose allocation is reduced; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of 
any fund must be approved by the governing board. During the year, several immaterial 
amendments to the original budget were necessary. The budget ordinance must be adopted by July 
1 of the fiscal year or the governing board must adopt an interim budget that covers that time until 
the annual ordinance can be adopted. 

 
 D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources, and Fund Equity 

 
 1. Deposits and Investments 
 

All deposits of the County, AppalCART, and the Watauga County District U Tourism Development 
Authority are made in board-designated official depositories and are secured as required by G.S. 
159-31. The County, AppalCART, and the Authority may designate, as an official depository, any 
bank or savings association whose principal office is located in North Carolina. Also, the County, 
AppalCART, and the Authority may establish time deposit accounts such as NOW and SuperNOW 
accounts, money market accounts, and certificates of deposit. 
 
State law [G.S. 159-30(c)] authorizes the County, AppalCART, and the Authority to invest in 
obligations of the United States or obligations fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by 

 26

111516 BCC Meeting

49

111516 BCC Meeting

49



 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

the United States; obligations of the State of North Carolina; bonds and notes of any North Carolina 
local government or public authority; obligations of certain non-guaranteed federal agencies; certain 
high quality issues of commercial paper and bankers' acceptances; and the North Carolina Capital 
Management Trust (NCCMT).   
 
The majority of the County, AppalCART, and the Authority’s investments are carried at fair value. 
The NCCMT Cash Portfolio, a SEC-registered 2a-7 external investment pool, is measured at 
amortized cost, which is the NCCMT’s share price. The NCCMT Term Portfolio's securities are 
valued at fair value.   

 
 2. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 
The County pools money from several funds, except the OPEB Irrevocable Trust Fund, the 
LEOSSA Irrevocable Trust Fund, the DSS Trust Fund, and the Inmate Commissary Fund, to 
facilitate disbursement and investment and to maximize investment income. Therefore, all cash and 
investments are essentially demand deposits and are considered cash and cash equivalents.  
AppalCART and the Authority consider demand deposits and investments purchased with an 
original maturity of three months or less, which are not limited as to use, to be cash and cash 
equivalents. 

 
 3. Restricted Cash 

 
Money for Tax Revaluation is classified as restricted assets because its use is restricted per NC 
General Statute 153A-150. Money for the Register of Deeds Automation Enhancement Fund is 
restricted by NC General Statute 161-50 to pay for computer equipment and technology needs for 
the Register of Deeds’ office. Federal regulations require equitable sharing funds be used for 
approved law enforcement needs. State substance abuse tax receipts are restricted to law 
enforcement needs. Emergency Telephone System funds are restricted per NC General Statute 
62A-46. Occupancy tax revenues are restricted for disbursement to the Watauga District U Tourism 
Development Authority. Taxes levied on behalf of the fire districts are restricted as payable to the 
districts. 
 

Watauga County Restricted Cash 
Governmental Activities   
    General Fund Tax revaluation $ 179,015 
 Register of Deeds 78,847 
    Federal Equitable Sharing Fund Law enforcement 37,435 
    State Substance Abuse Tax Fund Law enforcement 91,695 
    Emergency Telephone System Fund 911 eligible expenditures 189,367 
    Occupancy Tax Fund Tourism  212,401 
    Fire District Funds Unexpended collections    26,318 

Total Governmental Activities $ 815,078 
 
 4. Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable 

 
                                   In accordance with State Law [G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 159-13(a)], the County levies ad valorem 

taxes on property other than motor vehicles on July 1, the beginning of the fiscal year. The taxes 
are due on September 1 (lien date); however, penalties and interest do not accrue until the following 
January 6. These taxes are based on the assessed values as of January 1, 2015.   

 
 5. Allowances for Doubtful Accounts 

 
All receivables that historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown net of an allowance for 
doubtful accounts. This amount is estimated by analyzing the percentage of receivables that were 
written off in prior years. 
 

 27

111516 BCC Meeting

50

111516 BCC Meeting

50



 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

 6. Inventory 
 

The inventories of AppalCART are maintained for fuel oil, tires, and vehicle parts; valuation is at last 
in first out (LIFO) basis. The cost of the inventory of AppalCART is recorded as an expense when 
consumed. 
 

 7. Capital Assets 
 

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated 
capital assets received prior to June 15, 2016, are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date 
of donation. Donated capital assets received after June 15, 2016, are recorded at their acquisition 
value. Minimum capitalization is $2,000 for all governmental fund assets. On July 1, 1989, the 
County established the Solid Waste Fund to account for the operations of the landfill.  At this time, 
all landfill assets were transferred to this fund at original cost less accumulated depreciation from 
date of purchase.  Property, plant, and equipment acquired after July 1, 1989, are recorded at 
original cost at time of acquisition. After July 1, 2002, the Fund's minimum capitalization cost is 
$2,000. Prior to July 1, 2002, the Fund did not have a minimum capitalization cost. The cost of 
normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend 
assets' lives are not capitalized. 
 
The County holds title to a Watauga County Board of Education property that has not been included 
in capital assets. The property has been deeded to the County to permit installment purchase 
financing. Lease agreements between the County and the Board of Education give the Board of 
Education full use of the facility, full responsibility for maintenance of the facility, and stipulate the 
County will convey title back to the Board of Education once all restrictions of the financing 
agreements have been met. The property is reflected as a capital asset in the financial statements 
of the Watauga County Board of Education. 
 
Capital assets of the County are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the following estimated 
useful lives: 
         Years   
   Buildings     10 to 50 
   Leasehold improvements   10 to 50 
   Other improvements    8 to 99 
   Furniture and equipment    5 to 20 
   Vehicles and motorized equipment  5 
 
Capital assets of the AppalCART are depreciated over their useful lives on a straight-line basis as 
follows: 
         Years 
   Office furniture and equipment   5 to 7 
   Shop equipment    8 
   Vehicles     7 to 12 
   Land improvements    10 
   Buildings     50 

 
 Capital assets of the Watauga County District U Tourism Development Authority are depreciated 

over their useful lives on a straight-line basis as follows: 
          Years 
    Computer equipment     5   
    Furniture and fixtures     7   
 

  8. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources  
 

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred Outflows of 
Resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not 

 28

111516 BCC Meeting

51

111516 BCC Meeting

51



 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

be recognized as an expense or expenditure until then. The County has the following items that 
meet this criterion – pension related deferrals and contributions made to the pension plan in the 
current fiscal year. In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position can also report a 
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, 
Deferred Inflows of Resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future 
period and so will not be recognized as revenue until then. The County has the following items that 
meet the criterion for this category – prepaid taxes and other pension related deferrals. 

 
  9. Long-term Obligations 
 

In the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities on the 
Statements of Net Position. 
 

 10. Compensated Absences 
 

The vacation policies of the County and AppalCART provide for the accumulation of up to thirty 
days earned vacation leave with such leave being fully vested when earned.  An expense and a 
liability for compensated absences and the salary-related payments are recorded as the leave is 
earned in the County's government-wide, proprietary fund and AppalCART statements. The 
vacation policy of the Authority provides for the accumulation of up to fifteen days earned vacation 
leave with such leave being fully vested when earned. On the Authority’s government-wide 
statement, an expense and liability for compensated absences and salary-related payments are 
recorded as the leave is earned. 
 
The sick leave policies of the County, the Authority, and AppalCART provide for an unlimited 
accumulation of earned sick leave. Sick leave does not vest, but any unused sick leave 
accumulated at the time of retirement with the County and the Authority may be used in the 
determination of length of service for retirement benefit purposes. Since none of the entities have 
any obligation for accumulated sick leave until it is actually taken, no accruals for sick leave have 
been made by the County or its component units. 
 
11. Net Position/Fund Balances 
 
Net Position 
 
Net position in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements is classified as net 
investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted.  Restricted net position represents 
constraints on resources that are either a) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or 
laws or regulations of other governments or b) imposed by law through State statutes. 

 
Fund Balances 
 
In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of five classifications 
designed to disclose the hierarchy of constraints placed on how fund balance can be spent. 
 

  The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows: 
 
Nonspendable Fund Balance – This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because 
they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained 
intact. 

 
Inventories – portion of fund balance that is not an available resource because it represents the 
year-end balance of inventories, which are not an expendable resource. 

     
Restricted Fund Balance – This classification includes revenue sources that are restricted to 
specific purposes externally imposed or imposed by law. 

 29

111516 BCC Meeting

52

111516 BCC Meeting

52



 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

 
Restricted for Stabilization by State Statute – portion of fund balance restricted under State 
Statute [G.S. 159-8(a)]. 
 
Restricted for Revaluation – portion of fund balance restricted under State Statute [G.S. 153A-
150]. 
 
Restricted for Register of Deeds – portion of fund balance restricted by revenue source for 
automation and technology enhancements in the Register of Deeds’ office [G.S. 161-11.3]. 
 
Restricted for Public Safety – portion of fund balance representing the aggregate of net 
positions for three special revenue funds: the Emergency Telephone System Fund, the State 
Substance Abuse Tax Fund, and the Federal Equitable Sharing Fund. 
 

Committed Fund Balance – portion of fund balance which can only be used for a specific purpose 
by a majority vote of Watauga County’s governing board (highest body of decision making 
authority). Any change or removal of specific purpose requires majority action by the governing 
board. 
  

Committed for Capital Projects – portion of fund balance set aside for future capital project 
expenditures. 

   
Assigned Fund Balance – portion of fund balance the governing board decides to use for a specific 
purpose. 
 
Unassigned Fund Balance – portion of the total fund balance that has not been restricted, 
committed, or assigned to specific purposes or other funds at year-end. 
 
Watauga County has a revenue spending policy that provides policy for programs with multiple 
revenue sources. The Finance Officer will use resources in the following hierarchy: bond proceeds, 
federal funds, State funds, local non-county funds, and county funds. For the purposes of fund 
balance classification expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balance first, followed in 
order by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and lastly unassigned fund balance. The 
Finance Officer has the authority to deviate from this policy if it is in the best interest of the County.  
 
12. Defined Benefit Pension Plans 
 
The County participates in two cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plans that 
are administered by the State: the Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS) 
and the Registers of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund (RODSPF) (collectively, the “state-
administered defined benefit pension plans”). For the purposes of measuring the net pension asset, 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and pension 
expense, information about the fiduciary net positions of the state-administered defined benefit 
pension plans and additions to/deductions from the state-administered defined pension plans’ 
fiduciary net positions have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the state-
administered defined benefit pension plans. For this purpose, plan member contributions are 
recognized in the period in which the contributions are due. The County’s employer contributions 
are recognized when due and the County has a legal requirement to provide the contributions. 
Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the 
state-administered defined benefit pension plans. Investments are reported at fair value. 

 

 30

111516 BCC Meeting

53

111516 BCC Meeting

53



 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

Note 2 -  Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability 
 
  A. Material Violations of Finance-Related Legal and Contractual Provisions 
 
   There were no instances of noncompliance with North Carolina General Statutes. 
 
Note 3 - Detail Notes on All Funds 
 
  A. Assets 
 
  1. Deposits 
 
   All of the County's, AppalCART's, and the Authority’s deposits are either insured or 

collateralized by using one of two methods.  Under the Dedicated Method, all deposits 
exceeding the federal depository insurance coverage level are collateralized with securities held 
by the County's, AppalCART's, and the Authority’s agents in these units' names.  Under the 
Pooling Method, which is a collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with 
securities held by the State Treasurer's agent in the name of the State Treasurer.  Since the 
State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary capacity for the County, AppalCART, and the Authority, 
these deposits are considered to be held by their agents in the entities' names.  The amount of 
the pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method for non-interest bearing 
deposits and the actual current balance for interest-bearing deposits. Depositories using the 
Pooling Method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled collateral covering 
uninsured deposits.  The State Treasurer does not confirm this information with the County, 
AppalCART, or the Authority.  Because of the inability to measure the exact amount of collateral 
pledged for the County, AppalCART, or the Authority, the potential exists for under-
collateralization, and this risk may increase in periods of high cash flows. However, the State 
Treasurer of North Carolina enforces strict standards of financial stability for each depository 
that collateralizes public deposits under the Pooling Method. 

  
   The State Treasurer enforces standards of minimum capitalization for all pooling method 

financial institutions.  The County, AppalCART, and the Authority rely on the State Treasurer to 
monitor those financial institutions.  The County complies with the provisions of G.S. 159-31 
when designating official depositories and verifying that deposits are properly secured.  The 
County, AppalCART, and the Authority have no formal policy regarding custodial credit risk for 
deposits. As an internal management practice, the County analyzes the financial soundness of 
any financial institution used by the County on an ongoing basis.   

 
   At June 30, 2016, the County's deposits had a carrying amount of $12,061,284 and a bank 

balance of $12,220,525.  Of the bank balance, $1,250,000 was covered by federal depository 
insurance, and $4,709,367 in non-interest bearing deposits and $7,351,917 in interest bearing 
deposits were covered by collateral held under the Pooling Method.  

 
   At June 30, 2016, Watauga County had $2,900 cash on hand. 
 
   At June 30, 2016, AppalCART's deposits had a carrying amount of $722,659 and a bank 

balance of $749,308. Of the bank balance, $369,254 was covered by federal depository 
insurance, and $380,054 in interest bearing deposits were covered by collateral held under the 
Pooling Method.  

 
   At June 30, 2016, the Authority’s deposits had a carrying amount of $587,363 and a bank 

balance of $616,028. Of the balance, $250,000 was covered by federal depository insurance 
and $400,255 in interest bearing deposits was covered by collateral held under the Pooling 
Method. The Authority had no cash on hand. 

 
 

 31

111516 BCC Meeting

54

111516 BCC Meeting

54



 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

  2. Investments 
 
   As of June 30, 2016, the County had the following investments and maturities: 
  

Investments by Type 
Valuation 
Measurement 
Method 

Fair Value Less Than 6 
Months 

6-12 
Months 1-5 Years 

Certificate of Deposit Cost $   5,012,718 $    5,012,718 $                - $                - 

Commercial Paper 
Fair Value  
Level 2  2,980,939  995,031 1,985,908 - 

Government Agencies 
Fair Value  
Level 1 5,171,711 - 100,000 5,071,711 

NC Capital Management 
Trust – Cash Portfolio 

Amortized 
Cost 2,622,719 2,622,719 - - 

NC Capital Management 
Trust – Term Portfolio* 

Fair Value  
Level 1 13,055,490 13,055,490 - - 

Total:  $ 28,843,577 $  21,685,958 $ 2,085,908 $ 5,071,711 
 
*Because the NC Capital Management Trust Term Portfolio has a weighted average maturity of 
less than 90 days, it was presented as an investment with a maturity of less than 6 months. 
 
All investments are measured using the market approach: using prices and other relevant 
information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or a 
group of assets. Ratings are from Standard and Poor’s scale. 
 
Level of fair value hierarchy: Level 1: Debt securities are valued using directly observable, 
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets. Level 2: Debt securities are 
valued using a matrix pricing technique. Matrix pricing is used to value securities based on the 
securities relationship to benchmark quoted prices. 
 

   Interest Rate Risk. The County has no formal investment policy regarding interest rate risk.  As 
a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the 
County’s internal investment procedure limits at least half of the County’s investment portfolio to 
maturities of less than 12 months. Also, the County’s internal management policy recommends 
purchases of securities to be laddered with staggered maturity dates and limits all securities to a 
final maturity of no more than five years. 

 
   Credit Risk. The County has no formal policy regarding credit risk, but has internal management 

procedures that limits the County’s investments to the provisions of G.S. 159-30 and restricts 
the purchase of securities to the highest possible ratings whenever particular types of securities 
are rated. State law limits investments in commercial paper to the top rating issued by nationally 
recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSROs). As of June 30, 2016, the County’s 
investments in commercial paper were rated P1 by Standard & Poor’s and A1 by Moody’s 
Investors Service. The County’s investment in the NC Capital Management Trust Cash Portfolio 
carried a credit rating of AAAm by Standard & Poor’s as of June 30, 2016. The County’s 
investment in the NC Capital Management Trust Term Portfolio is unrated. The Term Portfolio is 
authorized to invest in obligations of the U.S. government and agencies, and in high grade 
money market instruments as permitted under North Carolina General Statutes 159-30 as 
amended. The County’s investments in US Agencies with Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal 
National Mortgage Association, Federal Farm Credit Bank and Federal Home Loan Mortgage 
Corporation are rated AA+ by Standard & Poor’s and AAA by Moody’s Investors Service.  The 
County does have an elevated credit risk due to safekeeping held in a third party arrangement. 

    
At June 30, 2016, AppalCART’s investments stated at fair value, consisted of $1,508,578 in the 
North Carolina Capital Management Trust’s Cash Portfolio, which carried a credit rating of 
AAAm by Standard and Poor’s. AppalCART has no formal policy regarding credit risk on its 
investments. 

 

 32

111516 BCC Meeting

55

111516 BCC Meeting

55



 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

   At June 30, 2016, the Authority’s investments consisted of the following: 
 

Investments by Type 
Valuation 
Measurement 
Method 

Book Value at 
6/30/2016 Maturity Rating 

NC Capital Management Trust – 
Cash Portfolio 

Amortized 
Cost $ 301,829 N/A AAAm 

NC Capital Management Trust – 
Term Portfolio 

Fair Value 
Level 1 602,445 .14 years Unrated 

Total:  $ 904,274   
 
All investments are measured using the market approach: using prices and other relevant 
information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or a 
group of assets. Ratings are from Standard and Poor’s scale. 
 
Level of fair value hierarchy: Level 1: Debt securities valued using directly observable, quoted 
prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets. 

 
   Interest Rate Risk. The Authority has no formal investment policy regarding interest rate risk.  

As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the 
Authority’s internal investment policy limits at least half of the Authority’s investment portfolio to 
maturities of less than 12 months. Also, the Authority’s internal management policy requires 
purchases of securities to be laddered with staggered maturity dates and limits all securities to a 
final maturity of no more than two years. 

 
   Credit risk. The Authority has no formal policy regarding credit risk, but has internal 

management procedures that limits the Authority’s investments to the provisions of G.S. 159-30 
and restricts the purchase of securities to the highest possible ratings whenever particular types 
of securities are rated. The Authority’s investment in the NC Capital Management Trust Cash 
Portfolio carried a credit rating of AAAm by Standard & Poor’s as of June 30, 2016. The 
Authority’s investment in the NC Capital Management Trust Term Portfolio is unrated. The Term 
Portfolio is authorized to invest in obligations of the U.S. government and agencies, and in high 
grade money market instruments as permitted under North Carolina General Statutes 159-30 as 
amended.  

 
    3. Property Tax – Use – Value Assessment on Certain Lands 
 
   In accordance with the general statutes, agriculture, horticulture, and forestland may be taxed 

by the County at the present-use value as opposed to market value.  When the property loses 
its eligibility for use-value taxation, the property tax is recomputed at market value for the 
current year and the three preceding fiscal years, along with the accrued interest from the 
original due date.  This tax is immediately due and payable.  The following are property taxes 
that could become due if present use-value eligibility is lost.  These amounts have not been 
recorded in the financial statements. 

 
Tax Year 
Levied 

 
Tax 

 
     Interest 

 
Total 

2012 $     622,137 $   175,754 $      797,891 
2013        629,116 121,105 750,221 
2014        673,162       68,999 742,161 
2015 676,442                 - 676,442 
Total $  2,600,857  $  365,858  $  2,966,715  

 
 
 
 

 33

111516 BCC Meeting

56

111516 BCC Meeting

56



 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

  4.  Receivables 
 
   Receivables at the government-wide level at June 30, 2016, were as follows: 
 

  Taxes  Interest  
 Accounts Receivable Receivable Total 
Governmental Activities:         
   General $     58,774 $  1,160,756 $   318,844 $  1,538,374 
   Other Governmental                  -     260,711   37,737       298,448 
Total receivables 58,774 1,421,467 356,581    1,836,822 
Allowance for doubtful accounts                 -      (432,165)                 -     (432,165) 
Total-governmental activities $     58,774 $    989,302 $   356,581 $  1,404,657 

Business-type Activities     
   Solid Waste   $   538,737   $                -    $              - $     538,737 
Allowance for doubtful accounts        (82,360)                  -                -       (82,360) 
Total-business-type activities           $   456,377  $                - $              - $     456,377 

 
 
  The due from other governments that is owed to the County consists of the following: 
 
 

Home and Community Block Grant  $          2,234 
Local Option Sales Taxes 1,855,967 
June DMV fees for tag office 10,791 
NC Ag Trust Fund grant reimbursement 25,000 
Caldwell County Inmate Housing Fee 3,489 
Town of Blowing Rock ABC bottle taxes 308 
NC State Treasurer interest on VTS 100 
Avery County ambulance services fee 2,000 
Town of Blowing Rock sales tax agreement payment 46,972 
Town of Boone reimbursement on telephone lines 231 
Town of Boone tax collection fee  22,426 
Town of Boone ABC bottle taxes  1,303 
NC DOR Medicaid Hold Harmless 235,855 
USDA POA reimbursements  438 
NC DOR VTS 130,953 
Watauga County Court fees 34,337 
NC DHHS reimbursements 472,021 
Emergency Telephone System revenues 25,048 
NC DENR grant reimbursement 8,570 
Solid Waste Disposal Tax 6,538 
Scrap Tire Tax 18,109 
White Goods Tax 4,333 
Medicaid POA reimbursements 7,775 
Sales Tax Refunds 163,924 

Total:  $   3,078,722  
 

 34

111516 BCC Meeting

57

111516 BCC Meeting

57



 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

  5. Capital Assets 
 
  Primary Government: 
  
  Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2016, was as follows: 
 

 

Beginning 
Balances Increases Decreases 

Ending 
Balances 

Governmental activities: 
    Capital assets not being depreciated: 

    Land $  44,138,126 75,024 - $  44,213,150 
Intangible            15,600 -      -            15,600 
Construction in progress 421,480      675,222    -  1,096,702  

         Total capital assets not being depreciated     44,575,206      750,246  -      45,325,452  
Capital assets being depreciated: 

    Buildings 106,839,487 25,534 5,688,066  101,176,955 
Other improvements 5,444,317 - 24,946   5,419,371 
Leasehold improvements 1,009,463 5,599,643 - 6,609,106 
Equipment 6,540,284 346,980 286,701 6,600,563 
Vehicles and motorized equipment 1,977,542 362,781 295,320 2,045,003 

          Total capital assets being depreciated 121,811,093 6,334,938 6,295,033 121,850,998 
Less accumulated depreciation for: 

    Buildings 18,440,407 2,027,609 994,633 19,473,383 
Other improvements 1,643,876 523,157 2,287 2,164,746 
Leasehold improvements 120,120 1,060,716 - 1,180,836 
Equipment  5,264,753 478,328 286,701 5,456,380 
Vehicles and motorized equipment 1,389,833 220,048 275,650 1,334,231 
   Total accumulated depreciation 26,858,989 4,309,858 1,559,271 29,609,576 

    Total capital assets being depreciated, net 94,952,104 
  

92,241,422 
Governmental activity capital assets, net $139,527,310 

  
$137,566,874 

 
  
  Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 
           
 

General government $  2,022,079 
Public safety 559,264 
Environmental protection 4,067 
Economic and physical development 18,452 
Human services 403,696 
Cultural and recreational    408,062 

Total depreciation expense $ 3,415,620 
 
 

Assets were reclassified to leasehold improvements to allow for better classification. This change 
accounts for the additional $894,238 in accumulated depreciation above depreciation expense and 
the addition to assets of $5,599,643 above the actual new assets of $1,485,541.  

 35

111516 BCC Meeting

58

111516 BCC Meeting

58



 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

 

 
Beginning 
Balances Increases Decreases 

Ending 
Balances 

  Business-type activities: 
    Capital assets not being depreciated: 
     Land    $   975,497               -                -    $   975,497  

 Construction in progress             1,750        40,226  41,976 - 
    Total capital assets not being depreciated         977,247       40,226   41,976 975,497 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
    Improvements        445,921             -  -        445,921  

Leasehold improvements 319,960 - - 319,960 
Buildings     4,110,817      41,976  - 4,152,793 
Equipment 1,507,531 210,299 166,990 1,550,840 
Vehicles  1,334,909 30,183 25,756 1,339,336 

Total capital assets being depreciated     7,719,138  282,458 192,746 7,808,850 
Less accumulated depreciation for: 

    Improvements        272,802  28,341 - 301,143 
Leasehold improvements 312,917 248 - 313,165 
Building 1,031,867  84,639 - 1,116,506 
Equipment     1,291,185  125,100 139,158 1,277,127 
Vehicles      1,129,134  79,711 25,756 1,183,089 
Total accumulated depreciation     4,037,905  318,039 164,914 4,191,030 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net     3,681,233  
  

3,617,820 
Business-type capital assets, net $  4,658,480  

  
$  4,593,317  

 
 
 
  Construction commitments 
 

The County has five active construction projects as of June 30, 2016.  The governmental projects 
include Anderson building renovations, Brookshire walking trails, new water line system at the law 
enforcement complex, Brookshire underpass project, and a new ambulance base in the western 
area of the County. At June 30, 2016, the government's commitments with contractors are as 
follows: 
 
 

  Remaining 
Project Spent-to-date Commitment 

Anderson building $       11,930 $    210,647 
Brookshire walking trails 5,691 11,698 
LEC water lines 1,200 - 
Brookshire underpass 680,027 22,750 
Ambulance base #3 397,854 465,499 
      Total $  1,096,702 $    710,594 

   

 36

111516 BCC Meeting

59

111516 BCC Meeting

59



 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

Discretely presented component units 
 
  Capital asset activity for the AppalCART for the year ended June 30, 2016, was as follows: 
 

 

Beginning 
Balances Increases Decreases 

Ending 
Balances 

  Business-type activities: 
    Capital assets not being depreciated: 
     Land  $  1,114,242  $            -   $              -  $  1,114,242 

 Construction in progress           99,150                 -                -          99,150  
    Total capital assets not being depreciated      1,213,392                 -                -     1,213,392  

Capital assets being depreciated: 
    Buildings     6,694,081 5,363 - 6,699,444 

Land improvements 11,156 - - 11,156 
Office furniture and equipment 225,112 46,511 - 271,623 
Shop equipment 347,384 - - 347,384 
Vehicles  7,971,765 133,273 74,461 8,030,577 

Total capital assets being depreciated 15,249,498 185,147 74,461 15,360,184 
Less accumulated depreciation for: 

    Buildings 276,521 134,239 - 410,760 
Land improvements 11,155 406 - 11,561 
Office furniture and equipment 101,251 18,675 - 119,926 
Shop equipment 193,870 33,208 - 227,078 
Vehicles  4,005,548 621,750 65,597 4,561,701 
Total accumulated depreciation 4,588,345 $  808,278 $     65,597 5,331,026 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 10,661,153 
  

10,029,158 
   Business-type activities capital assets, net $11,874,545 

  
$11,242,550 

 
 

Capital asset activity for the Watauga County District U Tourism Development Authority for the year 
ended June 30, 2016 was as follows: 

 
 Beginning 

Balances Increases Decreases 
Ending 

Balances 
Governmental activities:     
Capital assets being depreciated:     
  Furniture and fixtures $       3,636         -           - $       3,636 
  Computer equipment   13,778          -               - 13,778 
  Total capital assets being depreciated   17,414          -           - 17,414 
Less accumulated depreciation for:     
  Furniture and fixtures   3,636           -           -   3,636 
  Computer equipment  13,778           -           -  13,778 
   Total accumulated depreciation  17,414           -           -  17,414 
Total capital assets being depreciated, net $              -   $              - 

 37

111516 BCC Meeting

60

111516 BCC Meeting

60



 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

B. Liabilities 
 
  1. Payables 
 
   Payables at the government-wide level at June 30, 2016, were as follows: 
 

  Salaries and  
 Vendors Benefits Total 
Governmental activities:    
   General $  771,433 $    508,609  $  1,280,042 
   Other governmental 45,953                - 45,953 
     Total-governmental activities $  817,386  $    508,609           $  1,325,995 
Business-type activities:    
   Solid Waste $  244,104 $      38,381 $     282,485 

 
  2. Pension Plan Obligations 
 
  a. Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System 
 

Plan Description.  The County is a participating employer in the statewide Local Governmental 
Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension 
plan administered by the State of North Carolina.  LGERS membership is comprised of general 
employees and local law enforcement officers (LEOs) of participating local governmental entities.  
Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the County to establish and amend benefit provisions to the 
North Carolina General Assembly.  Management of the plan is vested in the LGERS Board of 
Trustees, which consists of 13 members – nine appointed by the Governor, one appointed by the 
State Senate, one appointed by the State House of Representatives, and the State Treasurer and 
State Superintendent, who serve as ex-officio members.  The Local Governmental Employees’ 
Retirement System is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State 
of North Carolina.  The State’s CAFR includes financial statements and required supplementary 
information for LGERS.  That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 
1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, by calling (919) 981-5454, or at 
www.osc.nc.gov. 

 
Benefits Provided.  LGERS provides retirement and survivor benefits.  Retirement benefits are 
determined as 1.85% of the member’s average final compensation times the member’s years of 
creditable service.  A member’s average final compensation is calculated as the average of a 
member’s four highest consecutive years of compensation.  Plan members are eligible to retire with 
full retirement benefits at age 65 with five years of creditable service, at age 60 with 25 years of 
creditable service, or at any age with 30 years of creditable service.  Plan members are eligible to 
retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 20 years of creditable service or at age 60 with 
five years of creditable service (age 55 for firefighters).  Survivor benefits are available to eligible 
beneficiaries of members who die while in active service or within 180 days of their last day of 
service and who have either completed 20 years of creditable service regardless of age (15 years of 
creditable service for firefighters and rescue squad members who are killed in the line of duty) or 
have completed five years of service and have reached age 60.  Eligible beneficiaries may elect to 
receive a monthly Survivor’s Alternate Benefit for life or a return of the member’s contributions.  The 
plan does not provide for automatic post-retirement benefit increases.  Increases are contingent 
upon actuarial gains of the plan. 

 
LGERS plan members who are LEOs are eligible to retire with full retirement benefits at age 55 with 
five years of creditable service as an officer, or at any age with 30 years of creditable service.  LEO 
plan members are eligible to retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 15 years of 
creditable service as an officer.  Survivor benefits are available to eligible beneficiaries of LEO 
members who die while in active service or within 180 days of their last day of service and who also 
have either completed 20 years of creditable service regardless of age, or have completed 15 years 

 38

111516 BCC Meeting

61

111516 BCC Meeting

61



 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

of service as a LEO and have reached age 50, or have completed five years of creditable service as 
a LEO and have reached age 55, or have completed 15 years of creditable service as a LEO if 
killed in the line of duty.  Eligible beneficiaries may elect to receive a monthly Survivor’s Alternate 
Benefit for life or a return of the member’s contributions. 
 
Contributions.  Contribution provisions are established by General Statute 128-30 and may be 
amended only by the North Carolina General Assembly.  County employees are required to 
contribute 6% of their compensation.  Employer contributions are actuarially determined and set 
annually by the LGERS Board of Trustees.  The County’s contractually required contribution rate for 
the year ended June 30, 2016, was 7.15% of compensation for law enforcement officers and 6.79% 
for general employees and firefighters, actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined 
with employee contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees 
during the year.  Contributions to the pension plan from the County were $732,167 for the year 
ended June 30, 2016. 
 
Refunds of Contributions. County employees, who have terminated service as a contributing 
member of LGERS, may file an application for a refund of their contributions.  By state law, refunds 
to members with at least five years of service include 4% interest.  State law requires a 60 day 
waiting period after service termination before the refund may be paid.  The acceptance of a refund 
payment cancels the individual’s right to employer contributions or any other benefit provided by 
LGERS. 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to the LGERS Pension Plan 
 
At June 30, 2016, the County reported a liability of $781,083 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2015. The net pension 
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2014.  The total pension 
liability was then rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2015 utilizing update 
procedures incorporating the actuarial assumptions.  The County’s proportion of the net pension 
liability was based on a projection of the County’s long-term share of future payroll covered by the 
pension plan, relative to the projected future payroll covered by the pension plan of all participating 
LGERS employers, actuarially determined.  At June 30, 2015, the County’s proportion was 0.174%, 
which was a decrease of 0.004% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2014. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2016, the County recognized pension expense of $358,203.  At June 
30, 2016, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources

Deferred Inflows of 
Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience -$                         183,599$                 
Changes of assumptions -                           -                           
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments -                           222,371                   
Changes in proportion and differences between County 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 5,893                       -                           
County contributions subsequent to the measurement date 732,167                   -                           
      Total 738,060$                 405,970$                 

 
$732,167 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from County 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a decrease of the net 
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2017.  Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

 39

111516 BCC Meeting

62

111516 BCC Meeting

62



 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

 
Year ended June 30:
2017 (257,509)$          
2018 (257,509)            
2019 (257,230)            
2020 372,173              
2021 -                     
Thereafter -                      
 

At June 30, 2016, the Authority reported a liability of $12,880 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension asset.  The net pension asset was measured as of June 30, 2015.  The total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension asset was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
December 31, 2014.  The total pension liability was then rolled forward to the measurement date of 
June 30, 2015 utilizing update procedures incorporating the actuarial assumptions.  The Authority’s 
proportion of the net pension asset was based on a projection of the Authority’s long-term share of 
future payroll covered by the pension plan, relative to the projected future payroll covered by the 
pension plan of all participating LGERS employers, actuarially determined.  At June 30, 2015, the 
Authority’s proportion was 0.00285%, which was a decrease of 0.00115% from its proportion 
measured as of June 30, 2014. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2016, the Authority recognized pension expense of $3,753.  At June 
30, 2016, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources

Deferred Inflows of 
Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience -$                         3,028$                     
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension 
plan investments -                           3,667                       
Changes in proportion and differences between Authority 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions -                           10,918                     
Authority contributions subsequent to the measurement date 10,241                     -                           
      Total 10,241$                   17,613$                   

  
 
$10,241 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Authority 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a decrease of the net 
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2017.  Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

 

Year ended June 30:
2017 (7,820)$              
2018 (7,820)                
2019 (7,784)                
2020 5,811                  
2021 -                     
Thereafter -                      

 
Actuarial Assumptions.  The total pension liability in the December 31, 2014 actuarial valuation 
was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement:

 40

111516 BCC Meeting

63

111516 BCC Meeting

63



 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

Inflation 3.0 percent
Salary increases 4.25 to 8.55 percent, including inflation and 

productivity factor
Investment rate of return 7.25 percent, net of pension plan investment 

expense, including inflation  
 
The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, gender, employee group (i.e. general, law 
enforcement officer) and health status (i.e. disabled and healthy). The current mortality rates are 
based on published tables and based on studies that cover significant portions of the U.S. 
population. The healthy mortality rates also contain a provision to reflect future mortality 
improvements. 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2014 valuation were based on the results of 
an actuarial experience study for the period January 1, 2005 through December 31, 2009. 
 
Future ad hoc COLA amounts are not considered to be substantively automatic and are therefore 
not included in the measurement. 
 
The projected long-term investment returns and inflation assumptions are developed through review 
of current and historical capital markets data, sell-side investment research, consultant whitepapers, 
and historical performance of investment strategies. Fixed income return projections reflect current 
yields across the U.S. Treasury yield curve and market expectations of forward yields projected and 
interpolated for multiple tenors and over multiple year horizons.  Global public equity return 
projections are established through analysis of the equity risk premium and the fixed income return 
projections. Other asset categories and strategies’ return projections reflect the foregoing and 
historical data analysis. These projections are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of 
return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage 
and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of 
return for each major asset class as of June 30, 2015 are summarized in the following table: 
 

Asset Class Target Allocation
Long-Term Expected 
Real Rate of Return

Fixed Income 29.0% 2.2%
Global Equity 42.0% 5.8%
Real Estate 8.0% 5.2%
Alternatives 8.0% 9.8%
Credit 7.0% 6.8%
Inflation Protection 6.0% 3.4%
     Total 100%

 
 
The information above is based on 30 year expectations developed with the consulting actuary for 
the 2014 asset, liability and investment policy study for the North Carolina Retirement Systems, 
including LGERS.  The long-term nominal rates of return underlying the real rates of return are 
arithmetic annualized figures.  The real rates of return are calculated from nominal rates by 
multiplicatively subtracting a long-term inflation assumption of 3.00%.  All rates of return and 
inflation are annualized. 
 
Discount rate.  The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25%.  The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan 
members will be made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be 
made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined.  Based on these assumptions, the 
pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future 
benefit payments of the current plan members.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on 
pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the 
total pension liability. 
 

 41

111516 BCC Meeting

64

111516 BCC Meeting

64



 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

Sensitivity of the County’s proportionate share of the net pension asset to changes in the discount 
rate.  The following presents the County’s proportionate share of the net pension asset calculated 
using the discount rate of 7.25 percent, as well as what the County’s proportionate share of the net 
pension asset or net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one 
percentage point lower (6.25 percent) or one percentage point higher (8.25 percent) than the 
current rate: 
  

1% Decrease 
(6.25%)

Discount Rate 
(7.25%)

1% Increase 
(8.25%)

County's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability (asset) 5,446,587$     781,081$        (3,149,507)$     

 

1% Decrease 
(6.25%)

Discount Rate 
(7.25%)

1% Increase 
(8.25%)

Authority's proportionate share of the 
net pension liability (asset) 89,814$          12,880$          (51,935)$          
 

Pension plan fiduciary net position.  Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net 
position is available in the separately issued Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for 
the State of North Carolina. 
 

   b. Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance 
 

Plan Description.  Watauga County administers a single-employer defined benefit pension plan that 
provides retirement benefits to the County's qualified sworn law enforcement officers.  In June of 
2016, the County established an irrevocable trust, the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special 
Separation Allowance (LEOSSA) Irrevocable Trust Fund, to account for the assets set aside for this 
purpose. For reporting purposes, the LEOSSA is presented as a pension trust fund as it meets the 
criteria for trust funds outlined in GASB Statement 68. 
 
Benefits Provided.  The Separation Allowance is equal to .85 percent of the annual equivalent of the 
base rate of compensation most recently applicable to the officer for each year of creditable service.  
The retirement benefits are not subject to any increases in salary or retirement allowances that may 
be authorized by the General Assembly.  Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 assigns the authority to 
establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly.   
 
The data required regarding the membership of the Watauga County Law Enforcement Separation 
Allowance Plan was furnished by the County and the NC Local Governmental Employees’ 
Retirement System. The following table summarizes the membership of the Plan as of December 
31, 2015, the valuation date: 
 
  Retirees receiving benefits                   2 
  Inactive members entitled to but not receiving benefits    0 
  Active plan members                43 
      Total              45 
 
Contributions.  The County is required by Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 to provide these 
retirement benefits and has chosen to fund the amounts necessary to cover the benefits earned by 
making contributions based on actuarial valuations. For the current year, the County contributed 
$39,727, or 3.062% of covered payroll. There were no contributions made by employees. The 
County's obligation to contribute to this plan is established and may be amended by the North 
Carolina General Assembly. Administration costs of the Separation Allowance are financed through 
investment earnings. 
 

 42

111516 BCC Meeting

65

111516 BCC Meeting

65



 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

Refunds of Contributions. Because all funds are contributed by the County, no refunds are available 
to members of the plan. 
 
Actuarial Assumptions.  The total pension liability in the December 31, 2015 actuarial valuation was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement: 
 

Inflation 3.0 percent
Salary increases 3.50 to 7.35 percent, average, including inflation
Investment rate of return 3.57 percent, net of pension plan investment 

expense, including inflation  
 
The rates of mortality for the period after service retirement are according to the RP-2014 Healthy 
Annuitant base rates projected forward generationally for the valuation date using MP-2015. Rates 
are adjusted by 104% for males and 100% for females. 
 
Discount rate.  The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 3.57%.  Since the 
Separation Allowance assets are held in short term investments, a discount rate equal to the 20-
year tax-exempt municipal bond (rating AA/Aa or higher) rate was used. The index used for this 
purpose is the General Obligation 20-year Municipal Bond Index published monthly by the St. Louis 
Federal Reserve Bank, which was 3.57% as of December 31, 2015. 
 
Projected cash flows.  The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed 
that the employer would contribute the actuarially determined contribution in the future. 
 
Long term rate of return.  The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments is 
assumed to be 3.57% annually. Since the Separation Allowance assets are held in short term 
investments, a discount rate equal to the 20-year tax-exempt municipal bond (rating AA/Aa or 
higher) rate was used. The index used for this purpose is the General Obligation 20-year Municipal 
Bond Index published monthly by the St. Louis Federal Reserve Bank, which was 3.57% as of 
December 31, 2015. 
 
Municipal bond rate. The discount rate uses municipal bond rates of 3.57% as of the measurement 
date and 3.70% at the beginning of the measurement period. 
 
Periods of projected benefit payments. Projected future benefit payments for all current plan 
members were projected through 2051. 
 
Assumed Asset Allocation. The target asset allocation is 100% in governmental securities and best 
estimate of arithmetic real rates of return is 1.25%. 
 
Sensitivity of the net pension asset to changes in the discount rate.  The following presents the net 
pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 3.57 percent, as well as what the net pension 
asset or net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one 
percentage point lower (2.57 percent) or one percentage point higher (4.57 percent) than the 
current rate: 
 

1% Decrease 
(2.57%)

Discount Rate 
(3.57%)

1% Increase 
(4.57%)

Net pension liability 607,404$           517,233$        436,225$         
 

 43

111516 BCC Meeting

66

111516 BCC Meeting

66



 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

Pension plan fiduciary net position.  Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net 
position is available in the chart below: 

 

 
Total Pension 

Liability 
(a) 

Plan Net 
Position 

(b) 

Net Pension 
Liability 
(a) – (b) 

Balance as of December 31, 2014 $    726,794 $  224,415 $   502,379 
Changes for the year:    

Service cost 49,129 - 49,129 
Interest 26,460 - 26,460 
Benefit changes - - - 
Difference between expected and actual 
experience - - - 
Changes of assumptions or other inputs 11,037 - 11,037 
Contributions – employer - 71,302 (71,302) 
Contributions – member - - - 
Net investment income - 706 (706) 
Refunds of contributions - - - 
Benefits paid (23,302) (23,302) - 
Plan administrative expenses - (236) 236 
Other changes - - - 

Net changes $     63,324 $    48,470 $    14,854 
Balance as of December 31, 2015 $   790,118 $  272,885 $  517,233 

 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to the LGERS Pension Plan 
 
December 31, 2015 is the actuarial valuation date upon which the Total Pension Liability (TPL) is 
based. An expected TPL is determined as of December 31, 2014 using standard roll-forward 
techniques. The roll-forward calculation adds the annual normal cost (also called the service cost), 
subtracts the actual benefit payments and refunds for the plan year and then applies the expected 
investment rate of return for the year. The procedure was used to determine the TPL as of 
December 31, 2014, as shown in the following table: 
 

 

Total Pension Liability (TPL) Roll-Forward 

TPL Reported as 
of 12/31/2014 

based on 
12/31/2015 

Valuation Date 
(a) Interest Rate (Beginning of Year) 3.70% 
(b) Valuation Date for Measurement December 31, 2015 
(c) TPL as of December 31, 2015 with Beginning of Year Interest Rate (3.70%) $   779,081 
(d) Entry Age Normal Cost for the period January 1, 2015 – December 31, 2015 47,376 
(e) Actual Benefit Payments for the period January 1, 2015 – December 31, 2015 23,302 
(f) TPL as of December 31, 2014 [c + [(e x (1 + a x 0.5)) / (1 + a)] – d] 726,794 
(g) TPL as of December 31, 2015 with End of Year Interest Rate (3.57%) 790,118 
(h) Assumption Change (Gain) / Loss: (g - c) 11,037 
 
The assumed rate of return was decreased from 3.70% to 3.57% to reflect the change in the 
Municipal Bond Rate. There were no changes in the benefit terms that affected measurement of the 
total pension liability since the prior measurement period. 
 
There were no changes between the measurement date of the net pension liability and the County’s 
reporting date that are expected to have a significant effect on the net pension liability, and the 
amount of the expected resultant change in the net pension liability, if known. 

 44

111516 BCC Meeting

67

111516 BCC Meeting

67



 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

 
For the year ended June 30, 2016, the County recognized pension expense of $69,101. Since 
certain expense items are amortized over closed periods each year, the deferred portion of these 
items must be tracked annually. If the amounts serve to reduce pension expense, they are labeled 
deferred inflows. If they will increase pension expense they are labeled deferred outflows. The 
amortization of these amounts is accomplished on a level dollar basis, with no interest included in 
the deferred amounts. Experience gains/losses and the impact of changes in actuarial assumptions, 
if any, are amortized over the average remaining service life of the active and inactive plan 
members at the beginning of the fiscal year. Investment gains and losses are amortized over a fixed 
five year period. 
 
At June 30, 2016, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources as of the December 31, 2015 
measurement date: 
 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience -$                  -$                 
Changes of assumptions 10,270              -                   
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments 6,785                -                   
Changes in proportion and differences between County 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions -                    -                   
County contributions subsequent to the measurement date 7,663                -                   
      Total 24,718$            -$                 
 
$7,663 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from County 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net 
pension liability in the year ended December 31, 2016.  Other amounts reported as deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in 
pension expense as follows: 
 

Year ended June 30:
Deferred Outflows of 

Resources
Deferred Inflows of 

Resources
2017 2,463$                         -$                          
2018 2,463                           -                            
2019 2,463                           -                            
2020 2,464                           -                            
2021 767                              -                            
2022 767                              -                            
2023 767                              -                            
2024 767                              -                            
2025 767                              -                            
2026 767                              -                            
2027 767                              -                            
2028 767                              -                            
2029 767                              -                            
2030 299                              -                            
Thereafter -                              -                             

 45

111516 BCC Meeting

68

111516 BCC Meeting

68



 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

 
  c. Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers 
   
   Plan Description.  The County contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (Plan), 

a defined contribution pension plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a 
Board of Trustees. The Plan provides retirement benefits to law enforcement officers employed 
by the County.  Article 5 of G.S. Chapter 135 assigns the authority to establish and amend 
benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Supplemental Retirement 
Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State’s CAFR includes the pension trust 
fund financial statements for the Internal Revenue Code Section 401(k) plan that includes the 
Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers. That report may be 
obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, 
North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454 or at www.osc.nc.gov. 

 
   Funding Policy.  Article 12E of G.S. Chapter 143 required the County to contribute each month 

an amount equal to five percent of each officer's salary, and all amounts contributed are vested 
immediately.  Also, the law enforcement officers may make voluntary contributions to the plan.  
Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2016 were $105,050, which consisted of $93,545 
from the County and $11,505 from the law enforcement officers. 

 
  d. Supplemental Retirement Income Plans for General Employees 
 
   Employees, other than law enforcement, have the choice of participating in a 401(k) plan or a 

457 deferred compensation plan. The County contributes five percent of each employee’s 
salary to the plan of their choice. Employees may make elective deferrals to each plan.  
Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2016 to these plans were $678,793 which consisted 
of $516,572 from the County and $162,221 from employees. 

 
  e. Registers of Deeds' Supplemental Pension Fund 
 

Plan Description. Watauga County also contributes to the Registers of Deeds' Supplemental 
Pension Fund (RODSPF), a noncontributory, defined benefit plan administered by the North 
Carolina Department of State Treasurer. RODSPF provides supplemental pension benefits to 
any eligible county register of deeds that is retired under the Local Government Employees' 
Retirement System (LGERS) or an equivalent locally sponsored plan.  Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 
161 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina 
General Assembly. Management of the plan is vested in the LGERS Board of Trustees, which 
consists of 13 members – nine appointed by the Governor, one appointed by the state Senate, 
one appointed by the state House of Representatives, and the State Treasurer and State 
Superintendent, who serve as ex-officio members. The Registers of Deeds’ Supplemental 
Pension Fund is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State 
of North Carolina. The State’s CAFR includes financial statements and required supplementary 
information for the Resisters of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund. That report may be 
obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, 
North Carolina 27699-1410, by calling (919) 981-5454, or at www.osc.nc.gov. 
 
Benefits Provided.  An individual’s benefits for the year are calculated as a share of 
accumulated contributions available for benefits for that year, subject to certain statutory limits. 
An individual’s eligibility is based on at least 10 years of service as a register of deeds with the 
individual’s share increasing with years of service. Because of the statutory limits noted above, 
not all contributions available for benefits are distributed. 

 
Contributions. Benefits and administrative expenses are funded by investment income and 
1.5% of the receipts collected by each County Commission under Article 1 of Chapter 161 of the 
North Carolina General Statutes. The statutory contribution currently has no relationship to the 
actuary’s required contribution.  The actuarially determined contribution this year, and for the 

 46

111516 BCC Meeting

69

111516 BCC Meeting

69



 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

foreseeable future, is zero. Registers of Deeds do not contribute. Contribution provisions are 
established by General Statute 161-50 and may be amended only by the North Carolina 
General Assembly. Contributions to the pension plan from the County were $5,452 for the year 
ended June 30, 2016. 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to RODSPF Pensions 
 
At June 30, 2016, the County reported an asset of $152,800 for its proportionate share of the 
net pension asset. The net pension asset was measured as of June 30, 2015. The total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension asset was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
December 31, 2014. The total pension liability was then rolled forward to the measurement date 
of June 30, 2015 utilizing update procedures incorporating the actuarial assumptions. The 
County’s proportion of the net pension asset was based on the County’s share of contributions 
to the pension plan, relative to contributions to the pension plan of all participating RODSPF 
employers. At June 30, 2015, the County’s proportion was .66%, which was a increase of .03% 
from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2014. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2016, the County recognized pension expense of ($3,329).  At 
June 30, 2016, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 
 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 748$                     2,529$              
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments 7,577                    -                   
Changes in proportion and differences between County 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 2,489                    4,616                
County contributions subsequent to the measurement date 5,452                    -                   
      Total 16,266$                7,145$              

 
$5,452 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from County 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as an increase of the net 
pension asset in the year ended June 30, 2017. Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

 
Year ended June 30:
2017 1,294$                
2018 (864)                   
2019 1,195                  
2020 2,045                  
2021 -                     
Thereafter -                      

 
Actuarial Assumptions.  The total pension liability in the December 31, 2014 actuarial valuation 
was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement: 
 

Inflation 3.0 percent
Salary increases 4.25 to 7.75 percent, including inflation and 

productivity factor
Investment rate of return 5.75 percent, net of pension plan investment 

expense, including inflation  

 47

111516 BCC Meeting

70

111516 BCC Meeting

70



 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

 
The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, gender, employee group (i.e. general, 
law enforcement officer) and health status (i.e. disabled and healthy). The current mortality 
rates are based on published tables and based on studies that cover significant portions of the 
U.S. population. The healthy mortality rates also contain a provision to reflect future mortality 
improvements. 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2014 valuation were based on the results 
of an actuarial experience study for the period January 1, 2005 through December 31, 2009. 
 
Future ad hoc COLA amounts are not considered to be substantively automatic and are 
therefore not included in the measurement. 
 
The projected long-term investment returns and inflation assumptions are developed through 
review of current and historical capital markets data, sell-side investment research, consultant 
whitepapers, and historical performance of investment strategies. Fixed income return 
projections reflect current yields across the U.S. Treasury yield curve and market expectations 
of forward yields projected and interpolated for multiple tenors and over multiple year horizons. 
These projections are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting 
the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding 
expected inflation. The adopted asset allocation policy for the RODSPF is 100% in the fixed 
income asset class. The best estimate of arithmetic real rate of return for the fixed income asset 
class as of June 30, 2014 is 2.2%. 

 
The information above is based on 30 year expectations developed with the consulting actuary 
for the 2014 asset liability and investment policy study for the North Carolina Retirement 
Systems, including LGERS.  The long-term nominal rates of return underlying the real rates of 
return are arithmetic annualized figures.  The real rates of return are calculated from nominal 
rates by multiplicatively subtracting a long-term inflation assumption of 3.19%.  All rates of 
return and inflation are annualized. 
 
Discount rate.  The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.75%.  The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from 
employers will be made at statutorily required rates.  Based on these assumptions, the pension 
plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit 
payments of the current plan members.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on 
pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine 
the total pension liability. 
 
Sensitivity of the County’s proportionate share of the net pension asset to changes in the 
discount rate.  The following presents the County’s proportionate share of the net pension asset 
calculated using the discount rate of 5.75 percent, as well as what the County’s proportionate 
share of the net pension asset would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage-point lower (4.75 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (6.75 percent) than the 
current rate: 
 

1% Decrease 
(4.75%)

Discount 
Rate (5.75%)

1% Increase 
(6.75%)

County's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability (asset) (137,844)$       (152,784)$      (165,640)$       

 
Pension plan fiduciary net position.  Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net 
position is available in the separately issued Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 
for the State of North Carolina. 

 
   

 48

111516 BCC Meeting

71

111516 BCC Meeting

71



 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

f. Other Postemployment Benefits – Watauga County 
 
   Under a County resolution as of September 1, 2001 Watauga County provides healthcare 

benefits through the Healthcare Benefits Plan (HCB Plan) as a single-employers defined benefit 
plan to cover retirees of the County who participate in the North Carolina Local Governmental 
Employees’ Retirement System and have at least five years of creditable service with the 
County.  The County has elected to partially pay the future overall cost of coverage for these 
benefits.  The HCB Plan is available to qualified retirees at up to 100%, with a $400 monthly 
maximum paid toward premium, until the age of 65 or until Medicare eligible, whichever is 
sooner based on years of service with the County.  The Board of Commissioners may amend 
the benefit provisions.  The HCB Plan is in the County’s report as a pension trust fund. A 
separate report was not issued for the Plan. 

 
   Membership of the HCB Plan consisted of the following at December 31, 2015, the date of the 

latest actuarial valuation: 
 

 General Law Enforcement 
 Employees:       Officers: 
Retirees and dependents receiving benefits  23 1 
Terminated plan members entitled to but   
   not yet receiving benefits  - - 
Active plan Members 231 45 
          Total 254 46 

 
   Funding Policy. The Board of Commissioners established the contribution requirements of plan 

members and these requirements may be amended by the Board.  Per a County resolution, the 
County is required to contribute the projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements, with an 
additional amount to prefund benefits as determined annually by the Board. 

 
   The current ARC rate is 1.62% of annual covered payroll. For the current year, the County 

contributed $207,436 or 1.97% of annual covered payroll. The County obtains healthcare 
coverage through private insurers. There were no contributions made by employees. The 
County’s obligation to contribute to the HCB Plan is established and may be amended by the 
Board of Commissioners.  

 
   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. The Plan’s financial statements are prepared using 

the accrual basis of accounting. Plan member contributions are recognized in the period in 
which the contributions are due. Under a County resolution, the contributions are recognized 
when due and the County will provide the contributions to the HCB Plan. Benefits and refunds 
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of each plan. The actuarial 
methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of 
short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value assets, consistent with 
the long-term perspective of the calculations. Short-term money market debt instruments, 
deposits, and repurchase agreements, are reported at cost or amortized cost, which 
approximates fair value. Certain longer term United States Government and United States 
Agency securities are valued at fair value. Administration costs of the HCB Plan are financed 
through investment earnings. 

 
   Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The County’s annual other postemployment 

benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contributions of the 
employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB 
Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis is 
projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or 
funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. 

 
   The following table shows the components of the County’s annual OPEB cost for the current 

year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the County’s net OPEB 

 49

111516 BCC Meeting

72

111516 BCC Meeting

72



 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

obligation for the postemployment healthcare benefits: 
 

Annual required contribution $    171,685 
Interest on net OPEB obligation (20,966) 
Adjustment to annual required contribution 20,029 
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 170,748 
Contributions made* 253,605 
Increase/(decrease) in net OPEB obligation (82,857) 
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year (524,158) 
Net OPEB obligation, end of year $  (607,015) 

 
   *Under GASB Statements 43 and 45, the OPEB liability may include an implicit subsidy amount based upon age 

adjusted costs reflecting the higher cost of benefits associated with older participants. For the purpose of determining 
the Net OPEB Obligation (NOO), the portion of the annual OPEB contributions for medical and prescription drug costs 
that are determined on a combined basis for actives and retirees (in this case pre-65 retirees) has been increased to 
include the impact of the 34% subsidy. The total contribution of $253,605 includes $53,769 due to the impact of the 34% 
implicit subsidy and actual cash contributions of $199,836 paid by the employer. Correspondingly, in the financial 
statements, the costs associated with active employee medical and prescription drug benefits may need to be 
decreased by the same dollar amount to reflect that portion of the active employee contribution subsidizing retiree costs. 

 
   The County’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the HCB 

Plan, and the net OPEB obligation for 2016 were as follows:  
 

3 Year Trend Information 
 

For Year Ended 
Annual  

OPEB Cost 
Percentage of  

Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB 
June 30 (AOC) Contributed Obligation 

2014         $  176,485  116.5%           $  (408,213) 
2015             170,955 167.8%               (524,158) 
2016             170,748 148.5%               (607,015) 

 
   Funded Status and Funding Progress.  As of December 31, 2015, the most recent actuarial 

valuation date, the plan was 29.9% funded.  The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was 
$2,553,360, and the actuarial value of assets was $762,628, resulting in an unfunded actuarial 
accrued liability (UAAL) of $1,790,732.  The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees 
covered by the plan) was $10,512,790, and the ratio of UAAL to the covered payroll was 17.0%. 

 
   Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimations of the value of reported amounts 

and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples 
include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. 
Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required 
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared 
with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding 
progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial 
statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan 
assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarially accrued liabilities for 
benefits. 

 
   Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are 

based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employers and the plan 
members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the 
historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and the plan members to that 
point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to 
reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value 
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.     

 
   In the December 31, 2015 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit method was used. The 

actuarial assumptions included a 4.0 percent investment rate of return (net of administrative 

 50

111516 BCC Meeting

73

111516 BCC Meeting

73



 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

expenses), which is a blended rate of the expected long-term investment returns on the plan 
assets and on the employer’s own investments calculated based on the funded level of the plan 
at the valuation date. The rate included a 3.00 percent inflation assumption. The medical cost 
trend rate varied between 7.75% and 5.00%. The actuarial value of assets was determined 
using techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of 
investments over a five year period. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of 
projected unit credit on a level percent of pay, open basis. The remaining amortization period at 
December 31, 2015 was 30 years. 

 
  g. Other Employment Benefits 
 
   Death Benefits 
 
   The County has elected to provide death benefits to all eligible employees through the Death 

Benefit Plan for members of the Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System (Death 
Benefit Plan), a multiple-employer, State-administered, cost-sharing plan funded on a one-year 
term cost basis. The beneficiaries of those employees who die in active service after one year 
of contributing membership in the System, or who die within 180 days after retirement or 
termination of service and have at least one year of contributing membership service in the 
System at the time of death are eligible for death benefits. Lump sum death benefit payments to 
beneficiaries are equal to the employee's 12 highest months’ salary in a row during the 24 
months prior to the employee's death, but the benefit will be a minimum of $25,000 and will not 
exceed $50,000. Because all death benefit payments are made from the Death Benefit Plan 
and not by the County, the County does not determine the number of eligible participants. The 
County has no liability beyond the payment of monthly contributions. The contributions to the 
Death Benefit Plan cannot be separated between the post-employment benefit amount and the 
other benefit amount. Contributions are determined as a percentage of monthly payroll based 
upon rates established annually by the State. Separate rates are set for employees not 
engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers.  

 
   For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, the County made contributions to the State for death 

benefits of $10,551 for general employees and $2,646 for law enforcement employees. The 
County’s required contributions for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law 
enforcement officers represents 0.12% and 0.14% of covered payroll, respectively. 

 
   The County has elected to provide additional death benefits for all eligible employees through a 

commercial insurance carrier in amounts equal to an employee’s salary rounded up to the next 
$1,000. Coverage is provided at a maximum of $80,000 with no minimum value. Benefits in 
excess of $50,000 are considered taxable to the employee as a fringe benefit. 

 
  h. Retirement System – AppalCART  
 
   Please see the separately issued financial report of AppalCART for a complete description of 

their pension plan. 
 
  3. Groundwater Contamination/Landfill Closure 
 
   In March 1993, the County’s engineers found groundwater contamination at the County’s landfill 

site which exceeded State and Federal maximum contaminant levels for some constituents. On 
April 8, 1994, the County stopped accepting municipal solid waste at the County’s landfill, and 
closure procedures were initiated. The approximate cost to date of the assessment and 
remedial cap is $3,425,131. Groundwater testing continues, as required by NCDENR.  Due to a 
NCDENR directive, in fiscal year 2004-2005, a methane collection system was installed to 
prevent the potential for offsite migration. Further remedial actions are not anticipated unless 
groundwater conditions change. 

 
 

 51

111516 BCC Meeting

74

111516 BCC Meeting

74



 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

  4. Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 
 

    Deferred  Deferred 
 Outflows of Inflows of  
 Resources Resources 
Pensions – difference between expected and    

actual experience $             748 $     186,127 
Pensions – difference between projected and    

actual investment earnings 14,362 222,371 
Pensions – change in proportion and difference   

between employer contributions and    
proportionate share of contributions 8,384 4,616 

Change of assumptions 10,270  
Contributions to pension plan in 2015-16 fiscal year 745,282 - 
Prepaid taxes not yet earned (General)                   - 11,698 
Prepaid taxes not yet earned (Special Revenue) -          2,558 
Taxes receivable, net (General) -        766,466 
Taxes receivable, net (Special Revenue) - 110,192 
   Total  $      779,046   $  1,304,028   

 
  5. Risk Management 
 
   The County is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 

destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The 
County participates in two self-funded risk-financing pools administered by the North Carolina 
Association of County Commissioners. Through these pools the County obtains property 
coverage equal to replacement cost values of owned property subject to a limit of $69,597,528 
for any one occurrence, general, auto, professional, and employment practices liability coverage 
of $2,000,000 per occurrence, auto physical damage coverage for owned autos at actual cash 
value, crime coverage of $250,000 per occurrence and workers' compensation coverage up to 
the NC statutory limits. The pools are audited annually by certified public accountants, and the 
audited financial statements are available to the County upon request. The pools are reinsured 
through a multi-state public entity captive for single occurrence losses in excess of $500,000 
retention up to a $2,000,000 limit for liability coverage and $1,750,000 of each loss in excess of 
a $250,000 per occurrence retention for property, and auto physical damage. For workers’ 
compensation, there is a per occurrence retention of $750,000. The County provides employee 
health, dental and life insurance benefits through commercial carriers. 

 
   The County carries flood insurance through the National Flood Insurance Plan (NFIP). Because 

the County is in an area of the State that has been mapped an “A” area (an area close to a 
river, lake or stream) by the Federal Emergency Management Agency, the County is eligible to 
purchase coverage of up to $500,000 per structure through the NFIP. Under this program, the 
County has purchased commercial flood insurance for $1,123,800 for certain structures.  

 
   In accordance with G.S. 159-29, the County’s employees that have access to $100 or more at 

any given time of the County’s funds are covered by performance bonds through a commercial 
surety bond. The Finance Officer, Tax Administrator, Register of Deeds, and County Manager 
(as Deputy Finance Officer) are each individually bonded for $50,000 each. The Sheriff is 
bonded for $25,000. The remaining employees that have access to funds are bonded under a 
blanket bond for $250,000. 

 
   There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the previous year and 

settled claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 
 

AppalCART is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. 

 52

111516 BCC Meeting

75

111516 BCC Meeting

75



 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

AppalCART is insured with the NC Association of County Commissioners Liability and Property 
and Worker’s Compensation Pools that provides coverage for general liability in the amount of 
$2,000,000 with an additional $3,000,000 in vehicle liability purchased per NC DOT 
requirements and worker’s comp insurance at the NC statutory limits.  These are the same 
pools that the County is a member.  

 
The Watauga County District U Tourism Development Authority is exposed to various risks of 
loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and 
natural disasters. The Authority is insured with the NC Association of County Commissioners 
Liability and Property and Worker’s Compensation Pools that provide coverage for general 
liability in the amount of $2,000,000 and worker’s comp coverage at the NC statutory limits. 
These are the same pools that the County is a member. 

 
  6. Contingent Liabilities 
 
   On October 7, 2011, it was determined the joint agency, New River Service Authority (New 

River), would have to cease operations due to substantial financial losses over the past several 
years. The losses became apparent during the 2010-11 fiscal year financial statement 
preparation and the five counties involved (Alleghany, Ashe, Avery, Watauga and Wilkes) have 
worked to determine the liabilities and assets. Based on fiscal information received, the counties 
determined it was necessary to dissolve New River. As of this time, the actual amounts of the 
liabilities for each County have not been determined, but it could have a material effect on the 
County’s finances. 

 
  7. Long-term Obligations 
 
  a. Capital Leases 
 
   The County has no capital lease agreements as a lessee. 
   
  b. Installment Purchase 
 
   As authorized by State law [G.S.160A-20 and 153A-158.1], the County financed various 

transactions during previous years by installment purchase.  The installment purchases were 
issued pursuant to security agreements that require that legal title remain with the County as 
long as the debt is outstanding. The County has five installment purchases serviced by the 
general fund.  

 
   The first installment purchase was executed on April 30, 2004 in the amount of $5,000,000 for 

the renovation of existing structures to house the County’s Law Enforcement Center.  This 
installment purchase requires 60 quarterly principal payments of $83,333 plus interest at 3.24 
percent. The outstanding balance at June 30, 2016 is $999,999. 

 
   The second installment purchase was executed on August 15, 2008 in the amount of 

$2,600,000 for the purchase of land for the Tweetsie Incentive Project. This installment 
purchase calls for 40 quarterly principal payments of $65,000 plus interest at 5.942 percent. The 
outstanding balance at June 30, 2016 is $585,000. 

    
   The third installment purchase was executed in the amount of $1,290,274 for Qualified School 

Construction Bonds on June 14, 2010 for school renovations. This installment purchase calls for 
10 annual principal payments of $129,028 plus interest at 5.8 percent with a federal interest 
credit giving an effective rate of zero percent prior to federal sequestration reductions affecting 
the annual reimbursement of interest. The outstanding balance at June 30, 2016 is $516,111. 

 
   The fourth installment purchase agreement was executed on June 28, 2012 to refinance the 

construction of the new high school into limited obligation bonds. The limited obligation bonds 
were issued in two series, A and B. Series A is for a principal amount of $45,045,000 with terms 

 53

111516 BCC Meeting

76

111516 BCC Meeting

76



 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

ranging from 2015 to 2028. Series B paid out in FY 2014-15. The Series A bonds have an 
outstanding balance at June 30, 2016 of $41,055,000.  

 
        For Watauga County, the future minimum payments as of June 30, 2016, including $12,355,162 

of interest, are: 
 

 Governmental Activities 
Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest 

2017 $   4,082,361 $    1,917,276 
2018 4,077,361 1,749,144 
2019 3,882,361 1,584,107 
2020 3,479,027 1,434,709 
2021 3,370,000 1,269,375 

2022-2026 17,215,000 3,939,700 
2027-2028   7,050,000      460,851 

Total payments $ 43,156,110  $ 12,355,162 
 
  c.   General Obligation Indebtedness 
 

   The County has no general obligation debt outstanding or authorized as of June 30, 2016.  
 
  At June 30, 2016, Watauga County had a legal debt margin of $672,414,671. 
 
 d. Advance Refunding 
 

In April 2004, the County issued $4,275,000 of general obligation advance refunding bonds to 
provide resources to purchase U.S. government securities that were placed into an irrevocable 
trust for the purpose of generating resources for all future debt service payments of $3,950,000 
general obligation bonds.  The refunding debt consists of $3,950,000 in 1995 School Facility 
Serial Bonds (partially refunded for the maturities in the years 2005-2015).  The balance on the 
charge for refunding is $0 and a final credit of $20,316 for the annual amortization on the 
economic gain has been applied to the government-wide statements. 
 
In June 2012, the County issued $55,045,000 in limited obligation bonds to refinance the 
installment purchase loans for the purchase of land and construction of the new high school. 
These funds refinanced the original debt remaining of $61,000,000 plus interest and expenses. 
This resulted in premiums totaling $5,206,201 to be amortized over the remaining sixteen year 
life of the new debt. A liability for the balance of the premium of $3,902,873 and the annual 
amortization of $325,388 is expensed in the government-wide statements. 
  
Debt Related to Capital Activities – Of the total Governmental Activities debt listed 
$42,639,999 relates to assets the County holds title. There is no unspent restricted cash related 
to this debt. The Qualified School Construction Bond loan done in 2010 was for renovations to 
school property and the County does not report an asset balance for Mabel Elementary School, 
which is the collateral for this loan. The QSCB loan outstanding balance of $516,111 is 
deducted from the total debt balance of $43,156,110 leaving $42,639,999 as debt related to 
capital activities. 
 

 54

111516 BCC Meeting

77

111516 BCC Meeting

77



 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

 e. Long-Term Obligation Activity 
 

The following is a summary of changes in the County's long-term obligations for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2016: 

     Current 
 Balance   Balance Portion of 

Governmental activities: July 1, 2015 Increases Decreases June 30, 2016 Balance 
Net pension liability (LGERS) $                    - $   717,269 $               - $        717,269 $                 - 
Net pension liability (LEOSSA) 502,379 86,862 72,008 517,233 - 
Installment purchases   47,273,471 -     4,117,361   43,156,110 4,082,361 
Compensated absences 1,001,474     924,942      886,869 1,039,547 -                   
   Total governmental activities $    48,777,324 $1,729,073 $5,076,238 $   45,430,159 $  4,082,361 

Business-type activities:      

Net pension liability (LGERS) $                     - $    63,814 $               - $          63,814 $                 - 
Compensated absences           98,309     59,168      48,631         108,846                 - 
   Total business-type activities $           98,309 $   122,982 $     48,631 $        172,660 $                 -    

Discretely presented component units: 
AppalCART     

Compensated absences  $           61,241 $    61,101 $     55,415 $          66,927  $      66,927 

Watauga County TDA      
Net pension liability (LGERS) $                     - $    12,880 $               - $         12,880 $                - 
Compensated absences  7,400                10,642    10,584     7,458                         - 
   Total Watauga County TDA $             7,400 $    23,522 $     10,584 $         20,338 $                - 
 

For Watauga County and the Authority, compensated absences for governmental activities are 
liquidated in the general fund and are accounted for on a LIFO basis, assuming that employees 
are taking leave time as it is earned. AppalCART accounts for compensated absences on the 
FIFO basis, assuming employees are taking leave time that has been previously earned.  

 
 C. Interfund Balances and Activity 
 
  Transfers to/from other funds at June 30, 2016, consist of the following: 

 
From the General Fund to the Capital Projects Fund to accumulate resources 

for future capital acquisitions            $  2,268,552 
From the State Substance Abuse Tax Fund to the General Fund for equipment               4,100 

 Total                         $  2,272,652 
 
 D. Net Investment in Capital Assets 
  

Net investment in capital assets is capital assets net of accumulated depreciation less any 
related debt and is calculated as follows: 
 

 Governmental Business-type 
Capital assets $  137,566,874 $    4,593,317 

Less: long-term debt  42,639,999 - 
Net investment in capital assets $    94,926,875 $    4,593,317 

 
 E. Fund Balance 
 

Watauga County has a revenue spending policy that provides policy for programs with multiple 
revenue sources. The Finance Officer will use resources in the following hierarchy: bond proceeds, 

 55

111516 BCC Meeting

78

111516 BCC Meeting

78



 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

federal funds, state funds, local non-county funds, county funds. For the purposes of fund balance 
classification expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balance first, followed in order by 
committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and lastly unassigned fund balance. The Finance 
Officer has the authority to deviate from this policy if it is in the best interest of the County.  
 
The following schedule provides management and citizens with information on the portion of 
General fund balance available for appropriation: 
  

Total fund balance – General Fund $ 26,408,144 
Less:   
Stabilization by State Statute  4,542,332 
Register of Deeds Automation/Enhancement   78,847 
Tax Revaluation  179,015 

Remaining Fund Balance  $ 21,607,950 
 
The outstanding encumbrances are amounts needed to pay any commitments related to purchase 
orders and contracts that remain unperformed at year-end. 
 
 Encumbrances:  General Fund - $1,482,775  Non-Major funds - $1,250 

 
Note 4 -  Joint Ventures 
 

The County participates in a joint venture to operate Appalachian Regional Library with Wilkes and 
Ashe Counties. Each participating government appoints four board members to the twelve-member 
Board of the Library. The County has an ongoing financial responsibility for the joint venture 
because the Library's continued existence depends on the participating governments' continued 
funding. None of the participating governments have any equity interest in the Library, so no equity 
interest has been reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2016. In accordance with the 
intergovernmental agreement between the participating governments, the County appropriated 
$525,146 to the Library to supplement its activities. Complete financial statements for the Library 
can be obtained from their offices at 148 Library Drive, West Jefferson, NC 28694. 
 
The County, in conjunction with Ashe and Alleghany Counties, participates in a joint venture to 
operate the Appalachian District Health Department. Each participating government appoints one 
board member to the Governing Board and they in turn appoint the other members of the Governing 
Board. None of the participating governments have any equity interest in the Health Department, so 
no equity interest has been reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2016. In accordance 
with the intergovernmental agreement between the participating governments, the County 
appropriated $585,228 to the Health Department to supplement its activities.  Complete financial 
statements for the Health Department can be obtained from the Health Department's offices at 126 
Poplar Grove Connector Road, Boone, NC 28607. 

  
Note 5 -  Jointly Governed Organization 
 

The County communally governs Caldwell Community College and Technical Institute with Caldwell 
County and the community college system of the State of North Carolina.  The County appoints two 
members of its fourteen-member Board of Trustees. In accordance with the intergovernmental 
agreement between the participating governments, the County appropriated $876,960 to Caldwell 
Community College and Technical Institute to supplement its activities. Complete financial 
statements for the College can be obtained at 2855 Hickory Boulevard, Hudson, NC, 28638. 
 
The County, in conjunction with seven other counties and nineteen municipalities, established the 
High Country Council of Governments (Council). The participating governments established the 
Council to coordinate various funding received from Federal and State agencies. Each participating 
government appoints one member to the Council’s governing board. The County paid membership 
fees of $24,956 to the Council during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. The County was the sub 

 56

111516 BCC Meeting

79

111516 BCC Meeting

79



 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 Notes to the Financial Statements 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

recipient of three grants totaling $297,569. The first grant is for $255,847 in Home and Community 
Care Block Grant funds and the second is for $26,522 in Nutrition Programs for the Elderly funds. 
Both are from the US Department of Health and Human Services and the Division of Aging of the 
North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services that was passed through the Council. 
The third grant is for $15,200 from the Division of Aging of the North Carolina Department of Health 
and Human Services that was passed through the Council. 
 

Note 6 -  Benefit Payments Issued by the State 
 

The amounts listed below were paid directly to individual recipients by the State from Federal and 
State moneys. County personnel are involved with certain functions, primarily eligibility deter-
minations, which cause benefit payments to be issued by the State. These amounts disclose this 
additional aid to County recipients that do not appear in the basic financial statements because they 
are not revenues and expenditures of the County. 
 

  
 Federal   

 
 State  

    Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program $ 4,426,336 $ - 
    Medical Assistance Program 

 
20,782,916 

 
11,316,462 

    Child Health Insurance Program 
 

702,506 
 

33,487 

 
$ 25,911,758 $ 11,349,949 

 
Note 7 -  Summary Disclosure of Significant Commitments and Contingencies 
 
 Federal and State Assisted Programs 
 

The County has received proceeds from several Federal and State grants. Periodic audits of these 
grants are required and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures 
under the grant agreements. Such audits could result in the refund of grant moneys to the grantor 
agencies. Management believes that any required refunds will be immaterial. No provision has been 
made in the accompanying financial statements for the refund of grant moneys. 

 
Note 8 -  Change in Accounting Principles/Restatement 
 

During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016, the County created an irrevocable trust for the Law 
Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance funds. This required reporting under 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 68, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Pensions (an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27). The implementation of the 
statement required a restatement of net position for the prior fiscal year for beginning net pension 
liability, deferred outflows of resources and removal of the intangible asset for LEO Net OPEB 
Obligation (NOO) advance funding. As a result, net position for governmental activities decreased 
by $492,422. 

 
Note 9 -  Subsequent Events 
 

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the County has evaluated subsequent events for potential 
recognition and disclosure through September 30, 2016 – the date the financial statements were 
available to be issued. No events were determined to require recognition or disclosure.  

 57

111516 BCC Meeting

80

111516 BCC Meeting

80



• Schedule of Funding Progress for the Other Postemployment Benefits

•

•

•

•

•

•

Required Supplemental Financial Data

This section contains additional information required by generally accepted accounting
principles.

• Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance Irrevocable Trust - 
Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability

• Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance Irrevocable Trust - 
Schedule of the Net Pension Liability

Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance Irrevocable Trust - 
Schedule of the Employer Contributions

Schedule of Employer Contributions for the Other Postemployment Benefits

Schedule of County's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset) 
(RODSPF)

Notes to the Required Schedules for the Other Postemployment Benefits

Schedule of County's Contributions (LGERS)

Schedule of County's Contributions (RODSPF)

• Schedule of County's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset) 
(LGERS)

111516 BCC Meeting

81

111516 BCC Meeting

81



Schedule 1

2016
Total pension liability

Service cost $ 49,129        
Interest 26,460        
Benefit changes -              
Difference between expected and actual experience -              
Changes of assumptions and other inputs 11,037        
Benefit payments (23,302)       
Refunds of contributions -              
Net change in total pension liability $ 63,324        

Total pension liability-beginning $ 726,794      
Total pension liability-ending (a) $ 790,118      

Plan net position
Contributions-employer $ 71,302        
Contributions-member -              
Net investment income 706             
Benefit payments (23,302)       
Administrative expense (236)            
Refund of contributions -              
Other -              
Net change in plan net position $ 48,470        

Plan net position-beginning $ 224,415      
Plan net position-ending (b) $ 272,885      

Net pension liability-ending (a) - (b) $ 517,233      

*Information is as of the Measurement date of December 31 during the fiscal year noted.

Watauga County, North Carolina
Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance Irrevocable Trust

Schedule of the Changes in the Net Pension Liability (Asset)*

58

111516 BCC Meeting

82

111516 BCC Meeting

82



Schedule 2

2016

Total pension liability $ 790,118           

Plan net position $ 272,885           

Net pension liability $ 517,233           

Ratio of plan net position to total pension liability 34.54%

Covered-employee payroll 1,837,735        

Net pension liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 28.15%

*Information is as of the Measurement date of December 31 during the fiscal year noted.

Valuation date 12/31/2015
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal
Amortization method Level dollar, closed
Remaining amortization period 15 years
Asset valuation method Market value of Assets
Actuarial assumptions:

Investment Rate of Return*

Projected salary increase* 3.50 - 7.35%
*Includes inflation at 3.00%
Cost of living adjustments N/A

Change of benefit terms: None

Changes of assumptions:

Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance Irrevocable Trust

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules for the LEOSSA Trust was determined as 
part of the actuarial valuation at December 31, 2015. The actuarially determined contribution rates are determined 
on an annual basis. The following actuarial methods and assumptions were used to determine contribution rates 
reported in that schedule:

Notes to the Required Schedules

2015: The assumed rate of return was decreased from 
3.70% to 3.57% to reflect the change in the Municipal Bond 
Rate.

Watauga County, North Carolina

Schedule of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) *

3.57%, net of pension plan 
investment expense

59

111516 BCC Meeting

83

111516 BCC Meeting

83



Schedule 3

2016

Actuarially determined employer contribution $ 60,285        

Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution 39,727        

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ 20,558        

County's covered employee payroll $ 1,883,580   

Contributions as a percentage of covered employee payroll 2.11%

*Information is as of the Reporting Date of June 30 during the fiscal year noted.

Schedule of Employer Contributions*

Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance Irrevocable Trust
Watauga County, North Carolina

60

111516 BCC Meeting

84

111516 BCC Meeting

84



Schedule 4
Watauga County, North Carolina

Other Postemployment Benefits

Actuarial Accrued UAAL as a 
Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded % of

Actuarial Value of Projected AAL Funded Covered Covered
Valuation Assets Unit Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b) - (a) (a/b) ( c ) ( (b-a) / c)
12/31/2007 -$          1,928,608$          1,928,608$          0.00% 9,979,587$    19.30%
12/31/2009 -$          1,899,693$          1,899,693$          0.00% 10,936,838$  17.40%
12/31/2011 476,515$  2,648,536$          2,172,021$          17.99% 9,419,789$    23.06%
12/31/2012 522,755$  2,522,669$          1,999,914$          20.70% 10,011,037$  20.00%
12/31/2014 701,855$  2,516,822$          1,814,967$          27.90% 10,028,405$  18.10%
12/31/2015 762,628$  2,553,360$          1,790,732$          29.90% 10,512,790$  17.00%

Year Ending Annual Required
June 30 Contributions

2011 160,959$             
2012 189,788$             
2013 177,098$             
2014 177,098$             
2015 171,685$             
2016 171,685$             

Valuation date 12/31/2015
Actuarial cost method Projected unit credit
Amortization method Level Percentage of pay, open
Remaining amortization period 30 years
Amortization factor 26.1695
Asset valuation method Market value of Assets
Actuarial assumptions:

Investment Rate of Return* 4.00%
Medical cost trend rate 7.75 - 5.00%
Year of Ultimate trend rate 2022

*Includes inflation at 3.00%

134.23%

89.24%
119.59%
116.08%

120.82%

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Schedule of Funding Progress

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the actuarial valuation at 
December 31, 2015. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Notes to the Required Schedules

Percentage
Contributed

348.06%

61

111516 BCC Meeting

85

111516 BCC Meeting

85



Schedule 5

2016 2015 2014

County's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) % 0.17404% (0.17777)% 0.18070%

$ 781,083      $ (1,048,391)  $ 2,178,129   

County's covered employee payroll $ 10,682,801 $ 10,536,590 $ 10,387,368 

7.31% (9.95)% 20.97%

98.09% 102.64% 94.35%

*The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior fiscal year ending June 30.

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 
pension liability

County's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
(asset) as a percentage of its covered employee payroll

Local Government Employees' Retirement System (LGERS)

Watauga County, North Carolina
Schedule of the County's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset)

Last Three Fiscal Years*

County's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
(asset) $

62

111516 BCC Meeting

86

111516 BCC Meeting

86



Schedule 6

2016 2015 2014

Contractually required contribution $ 732,167      $ 761,648      $ 738,196      

Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution 732,167      761,648      738,196      

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ -              $ -              $ -              

County's covered employee payroll $ 10,682,801 $ 10,536,590 $ 10,387,368 

Contributions as a percentage of covered employee payroll 6.85% 7.23% 7.11%

Watauga County, North Carolina
County's Contributions

Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System
Last Three Fiscal Years

63

111516 BCC Meeting

87

111516 BCC Meeting

87



Schedule 7

2016 2015 2014

County's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) % 0.6593% 0.6297% 0.6609%

County's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) $ $ (152,800) $ (142,737) $ (141,158) 

County's covered employee payroll $ 51,253     $ 66,840     $ 65,250     

(278.49)% (213.55)% (216.33)%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 197.29% 193.88% 190.50%

*The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior fiscal year ending June 30.

Register of Deeds' Supplemental Pension Fund (RODSPF)
Last Three Fiscal Years*

County's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a 
percentage of its covered employee payroll

Watauga County, North Carolina
Schedule of the County's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset)

64

111516 BCC Meeting

88

111516 BCC Meeting

88



Schedule 8

2016 2015 2014

Contractually required contribution $ 5,452      $ 5,276        $ 5,142      

Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution 5,452      5,276        5,142      

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ -          $ -            $ -          

County's covered employee payroll $ 51,253    $ 65,250      $ 66,840    

Contributions as a percentage of covered employee payroll 10.64% 8.09% 7.69%

Watauga County, North Carolina
County's Contributions

Last Three Fiscal Years
Register of Deeds' Supplemental Pension Fund (RODSPF)

65

111516 BCC Meeting

89

111516 BCC Meeting

89



COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND                  
STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES

111516 BCC Meeting

90

111516 BCC Meeting

90



Statement 1

Final Budget Actual Variance
Revenues:
    Taxes - ad valorem:  
      Current year                        $ $ 27,547,866   $
      Prior years 431,005        
      Advertising and interest 172,474        
         Total Taxes - ad valorem 27,508,992   28,151,345   642,353       

    Taxes - other:
      Local option sales taxes 11,166,662   
      Real estate transfer tax 446,397        
      ABC Bottle tax 20,604          
      Heavy equipment rental tax 6,657            
      Gross receipts tax 54,460          
      Franchise tax 331,953        
         Total Taxes - other 11,318,062   12,026,733   708,671       

    Unrestricted Intergovernmental:
      Miscellaneous revenues from Towns 1,452,067     
      Medicaid hold harmless 1,568,253     
      NC DMV fees 115,050        
      Tax collection fees 116,564        
      Payments in lieu of taxes 26,164          
         Total Unrestricted Intergovernmental 2,478,350     3,278,098     799,748       

    Restricted Intergovernmental:
      Grants-Federal and State 5,290,330     
      Public School Building Capital Fund - Lottery 435,763        
      Public School Building Capital Fund - ADM 123,914        
      Federal Interest Credit 34,874          
      Court facilities fees 130,761        
         Total Restricted Intergovernmental 6,461,026     6,015,642     (445,384)      

    Permits and Fees:
      Sheriff's office permits and fees 138,568        
      Planning and inspection fees 250,562        
      Register of deeds fees 295,337        
      Fire inspection fees 3,945            
      Occupancy tax administrative fee 23,712          
      Child Support fees 50,835          
         Total Permits and Fees 707,395        762,959        55,564         

    Sales and Service:
      POA services 13,923          
      TDA Financial services 38,000          
      Recreation fees 306,302        
      Reimbursement for Inmates 21,252          
      Rent 417,556        
      DMV/passport processing fees 47,684          
      Election revenues 26,142          
      Blowing Rock communication services 171,187        
         Total Sales and Service 986,087        1,042,046     55,959         

Investment earnings:
      Interest earned on investments 60,000          89,212          29,212         

Miscellaneous:
Other 309,745        
Donations 103,366        

Total Miscellaneous 284,229        413,111        128,882       

TOTAL REVENUES 49,804,141   51,779,146   1,975,005    

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

General Fund
Watauga County, North Carolina

66

111516 BCC Meeting

91

111516 BCC Meeting

91



Statement 1

Final Budget Actual Variance

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

General Fund
Watauga County, North Carolina

EXPENDITURES:

General Government
    Governing Body:
      Salaries and benefits $ $ 54,484          $
      Operating expenses 3,476            
         Total Governing Body 62,082          57,960          4,122           

    Administration:
      Salaries and benefits  332,622        
      Operating expenses 5,657            
         Total Administration 343,235        338,279        4,956           

    Finance:
      Salaries and benefits  322,715        
      Operating expenses  42,164          
         Total Finance 372,975        364,879        8,096           

    Tax Administration:
      Salaries and benefits  866,743        
      Operating expenses 137,382        
      Capital outlay 23,755          
         Total Tax Administration 1,098,960     1,027,880     71,080         

    Tax Revaluation:
      Operating expenses 575               
          Total Tax Revaluation 25,000          575               24,425         

     Tag Office:
      Salaries and benefits 173,419        
      Operating expenses 3,870            
          Total Tag Office 182,533        177,289        5,244           

    Legal Services:
      Operating expenses 195,300        195,299        1                  

    Court facilities:
      Operating expenses 2,900            2,256            644              

    Board of Elections:
      Salaries and benefits  197,899        
      Operating expenses  155,140        
         Total Board of Elections 353,490        353,039        451              

    Register of Deeds:
      Salaries and benefits  388,845        
      Operating expenses 146,278        
         Total Register of Deeds 541,350        535,123        6,227           

    General Administration:
      Operating expenses 479,863        
      Capital outlay 75,024          
         Total General Administration 794,392        554,887        239,505       

    Information Technologies:
      Salaries and benefits  385,064        
      Operating expenses  305,643        
      Capital outlay  81,801          
         Total Information Technologies 853,175        772,508        80,667         

67

111516 BCC Meeting

92

111516 BCC Meeting

92



Statement 1

Final Budget Actual Variance

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

General Fund
Watauga County, North Carolina

    Maintenance:
      Salaries and benefits $  $ 1,002,606     $
      Operating expenses 28,327          
      Capital outlay  18,653          
         Total Maintenance 1,144,319     1,049,586     94,733         

  Public Buildings
    Courthouse:
      Operating expenses 149,614        123,484        26,130         

    East Annex:
      Operating expenses 33,035          28,157          4,878           

     Administration Building:
       Operating expenses 24,550          21,332          3,218           

    Emergency Management:
      Operating expenses 596               
      Capital outlay 180,630        
          Total Emergency Management 693,485        181,226        512,259       

    Hannah:
      Operating expenses 9,895            9,783            112              

   Health Department:
      Operating expenses 60,974          52,990          7,984           

    Anderson Building:
      Operating expenses 5,909            
      Capital outlay 11,930          
          Total Anderson Building 440,585        17,839          422,746       

     Library:
      Operating expenses 50,641          34,382          16,259         

    Records Storage:
      Operating expenses 8,206            
      Capital outlay 16,031          
          Total Records Storage 28,330          24,237          4,093           

    Western Watauga Comm. Center:
      Operating expenses 27,033          
      Capital outlay 4,673            
          Total Western Watauga Community Center 41,494          31,706          9,788           

    Parking Lots:
      Operating expenses 2,255            2,178            77                

    West Annex:
      Operating expenses 154,360        29,294          125,066       

    Human Services Center:
      Operating expenses 96,583          83,901          12,682         

    Appalachian Enterprise Center:
      Operating expenses 18,875          15,862          3,013           

    Law Enforcement Center:
      Operating expenses 262,126        171,236        90,890         

    Old Watauga High School:
      Operating expenses 500               11                 489              

68

111516 BCC Meeting

93

111516 BCC Meeting

93



Statement 1

Final Budget Actual Variance

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

General Fund
Watauga County, North Carolina

    Recreation Administration Center:
      Operating expenses $ 4,100            $ 3,340            $ 760              

    Aquatics Center:
      Operating expenses 84,763          
      Capital outlay 2,441            
          Total Aquatics Center 148,900        87,204          61,696         

    Optimist Facility:
     Operating expenses 32,920          28,997          3,923           

    Recreation Fields/Parks:
     Operating expenses 78,013          58,913          19,100         

   Old Cove Creek School:
      Operating expenses 39,865          27,622          12,243         

    Brookshire Park:
     Operating expenses 16,125          
     Capital outlay 475,771        
          Total Brookshire Park 517,872        491,896        25,976         

    Anne Marie Drive Fields:
     Operating expenses 25,500          17,030          8,470           

    Brookshire Soccer Complex:
     Operating expenses 9,185            
     Capital outlay 5,691            
          Total Brookshire Soccer Complex 45,105          14,876          30,229         

    Rocky Knob Park:
     Operating expenses 24,400          13,481          10,919         

  Total Public Buildings 2,983,977     1,570,977     1,413,000    

Total General Government 8,953,688     7,000,537     1,953,151    

Public Safety
    Sheriff's Office:
       Salaries and benefits 2,921,360     
       Operating expenses 318,872        

Capital outlay 229,751        
         Total Sheriff's Office 3,626,820     3,469,983     156,837       

    Communications:
      Salaries and benefits  735,571        
      Operating expenses  30,943          
         Total Communications 772,415        766,514        5,901           

    Detention Center:
      Salaries and benefits 1,444,237     
      Operating expenses 534,262        
         Total Detention Center 2,097,850     1,978,499     119,351       

    Emergency Management and Fire Protection:
      Salaries and benefits 261,652        
      Operating expenses 1,168,752     

Capital outlay 31,198          
         Total Emergency Management and Fire Protection 1,501,531     1,461,602     39,929         

    Planning and Inspections:
      Salaries and benefits 593,748        
      Operating expenses 18,504          
         Total Planning and Inspections 621,260        612,252        9,008           

69

111516 BCC Meeting

94

111516 BCC Meeting

94



Statement 1

Final Budget Actual Variance

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

General Fund
Watauga County, North Carolina

    Medical Examiner, Ambulance and Rescue Squad:
      Operating expenses $ 1,217,100     $ 1,175,037     $ 42,063         

    Animal Control:
      Salaries and benefits 107,327        
      Operating expenses 8,519            

Capital outlay 29,268          
         Total Animal Control 152,665        145,114        7,551           

    Forestry:
      Operating expenses 44,711          43,075          1,636           

Total Public Safety 10,034,352   9,652,076     382,276       

Transportation
    Transportation: 209,838        209,838        -                   

Economic and Physical Development
    Special Appropriations: 463,116        462,673        443              

    Economic Development: 83,158          45,988          37,170         

Total Economic and Physical Development 546,274        508,661        37,613         

Environmental Protection
    Cooperative Extension:
      Salaries and benefits 217,696        
      Operating expenses 14,090          
         Total Cooperative Extension 246,400        231,786        14,614         

    Soil and Water Conservation:  
      Salaries and benefits 91,052          
      Operating expenses 7,736            
      Capital outlay 22,749          
         Total Soil and Water Conservation 145,593        121,537        24,056         

Total Environmental Protection 391,993        353,323        38,670         

Human Services
    Public Health:
      Operating expenses 585,228        585,228        -                   

    Mental Health:
      Operating expenses 171,194        171,194        -                   

    Social Services - administration:
Salaries and benefits 2,684,736     
Operating expenses 396,040        

        Total Social Services - administration 3,215,135     3,080,776     134,359       

    Beneficiary payments: 2,731,050     2,301,607     429,443       

    Project on Aging:
      Salaries and benefits  949,896        
      Operating expenses  222,557        
         Total Project on Aging 1,228,550     1,172,453     56,097         

    Veterans Services:
      Salaries and benefits 111,423        
      Operating expenses 2,650            
         Total Veterans Services 114,105        114,073        32                

Total Human Services 8,045,262     7,425,331     619,931       

70

111516 BCC Meeting

95

111516 BCC Meeting

95



Statement 1

Final Budget Actual Variance

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

General Fund
Watauga County, North Carolina

Education
      Public Schools - current $ $ 12,558,345   $
      Public Schools - capital outlay 990,363        
      Community College - current 866,960        
      Community College - capital outlay 10,000          
Total Education 14,953,647   14,425,668   527,979       

Cultural and Recreational
    Library:
      Operating expenses 525,146        525,146        -                   

    Recreation:
      Salaries and benefits 606,188        
      Operating expenses 121,251        
         Total Recreation 764,181        727,439        36,742         

    Aquatics:
      Salaries and benefits 177,725        
      Operating expenses 13,592          
         Total Aquatics 206,215        191,317        14,898         

Total Cultural and Recreational 1,495,542     1,443,902     51,640         

Debt Service
      Principal retirement 4,117,361     
      Interest and fees 2,052,859     

Total Debt Service 6,170,220     6,170,220     -                   

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 50,800,816   47,189,556   3,611,260    

  Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (996,675)      4,589,590     5,586,265    

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

  Gain/(loss) on disposal of assets 35,000          52,013          17,013         
  Transfers to Capital Projects Fund (2,268,552)   (2,268,552)   -                   
  Transfers from State Substance Abuse Tax Fund 4,100            4,100            -                   
  Fund Balance Appropriated 3,226,127     -                   (3,226,127)   

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 996,675        (2,212,439)   (3,209,114)   

Net change in fund balance $ -                   2,377,151     2,377,151    

Fund balance, beginning of year 24,030,993   

Fund balance, end of year $ 26,408,144   

71

111516 BCC Meeting

96

111516 BCC Meeting

96



Statement 2

State CDBG
Federal Substance Emergency Scattered Total

Equitable Abuse Telephone Fire Occupancy Site Nonmajor
Sharing Tax System Districts Tax Housing Special Revenue

Fund Fund Fund Funds Fund Fund Funds

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 37,435         $ 91,695         $ 189,367        $ 26,318     $ 212,401        $ -                  $ 557,216                 
Due from other governments -                   -                   25,048          15,342     -                    -                  40,390                   
Taxes receivable, net -                   -                   -                    110,192   112,644        -                  222,836                 

 Total assets $ 37,435         $ 91,695         $ 214,415        $ 151,852   $ 325,045        $ - $ 820,442                 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued
   liabilities -                   1,114           5,737            39,102     -                    -                  45,953                   

Due to other governments -                   -                   -                    -               325,045        -                  325,045                 
Due to other funds -                   -                   -                    -               -                    -                  -                             

Total Liabilities -                   1,114           5,737            39,102     325,045        -                  370,998                 

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Taxes paid in advance -                   -                   -                    2,558       -                    -                  2,558                     
Taxes receivable -                   -                   -                    110,192   -                    -                  110,192                 

Total deferred inflows of resources -                   -                   -                    112,750   -                    -                  112,750                 

Fund Balances:
Restricted for:

Public Safety 37,435         90,581         208,678        -               -                    -                  336,694                 
Total fund balances 37,435         90,581         208,678        -               -                    -                  336,694                 

Total liabilties, deferred inflows 
of resources, and fund balances $ 37,435         $ 91,695         $ 214,415        $ 151,852   $ 325,045        $ -                  $ 820,442                 

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Watauga County, North Carolina
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2016

72

111516 BCC Meeting

97

111516 BCC Meeting

97



Statement 3

CDBG
Federal State Emergency Scattered Total

Equitable Substance Telephone Fire Occupancy Site Nonmajor
Sharing Abuse Tax System Districts Tax Housing Special Revenue

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

REVENUES

 Ad valorem taxes $ -              $ -                $ -                 $ 2,987,818   $ -                 $ -                 $ 2,987,818             
 Other taxes and licenses -              47,841       -                 -                 1,371,244   -                 1,419,085             
 Restricted intergovernmental -              -                300,579      -                 -                 137,873      438,452                
 Other miscellaneous revenues -              -                -                 -                 -                 -                 -                           
 Investment earnings 147         279            637             -                 -                 -                 1,063                    

   Total revenues 147         48,120       301,216      2,987,818   1,371,244   137,873      4,846,418             

EXPENDITURES

General government -              -                -                 -                 1,371,244   -                 1,371,244             
Public safety 3,063      22,589       499,607      2,987,818   -                 -                 3,513,077             
Economic and physical development -              -                -                 -                 -                 137,873      137,873                
Capital outlay 27,937    -                -                 -                 -                 -                 27,937                  

   Total expenditures 31,000    22,589       499,607      2,987,818   1,371,244   137,873      5,050,131             

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES)

Transfer to other funds -              (4,100)       -                 -                 -                 -                 (4,100)                  

   Net change in fund balances (30,853)   21,431       (198,391)     -                 -                 -                 (207,813)               

Fund balances, beginning of year 68,288    69,150       407,069      -                 -                 -                 544,507                

Fund balances, end of year $ 37,435    $ 90,581       $ 208,678      $ -                 $ -                 $ -                 $ 336,694                

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Watauga County, North Carolina
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

73

111516 BCC Meeting

98

111516 BCC Meeting

98



Statement 4
Watauga County, North Carolina

Federal Equitable Sharing Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
  

Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmental - Federal $ $ -                  $
Investment Earnings 147             

Total revenues 31,000       147             (30,853)        

Expenditures:
Public Safety 3,063          
Capital Outlay 27,937        

Total expenditures 31,000       31,000        -                   

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over    
  expenditures -                 (30,853)       (30,853)        

Net change in fund balance $ -                 (30,853)       $ (30,853)        

Fund balance, beginning of year 68,288        

Fund balance, end of year $ 37,435        

74

111516 BCC Meeting

99

111516 BCC Meeting

99



Statement 5
Watauga County, North Carolina
State Substance Abuse Tax Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
  

Revenues:
    Restricted intergovernmental - State  $ $ 47,841        $
    Investment Earnings 279             

Total revenues 27,450       48,120        20,670         

Expenditures:
    Public Safety 22,589        

Total expenditures 23,350       22,589        761              

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over    
  expenditures 4,100         25,531        21,431         

Other financing sources (uses):
    Transfer to other funds (4,100)        (4,100)         -                   

Total other financing sources (uses) (4,100)        (4,100)         -                   

Net change in fund balance $ -                 21,431        $ 21,431         

Fund balance, beginning of year 69,150        

Fund balance, end of year $ 90,581        

75

111516 BCC Meeting

100

111516 BCC Meeting

100



Statement 6
Watauga County, North Carolina

Emergency Telephone System Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
  

Revenues:
  Restricted intergovernmental:

Emergency Telephone Surcharge funds $ $ 300,579        $
    Investment earnings 637               

Total revenues 300,579        301,216        637               

Expenditures:
    Public safety:

Implementation services 64,071          
Software 73,878          
Training 15,932          
Telephones 63,463          
Hardware 282,263        
Furniture -                    

Total expenditures 519,730        499,607        20,123          

Other financing sources (uses):
    Appropriated fund balance 219,151        -                    (219,151)       

Total Other Financing sources (uses): 219,151        -                    (219,151)       

Net change in fund balance  $ -                    (198,391)       $ (198,391)       

Fund balance, beginning of year 407,069        

Fund balance, end of year $ 208,678        

76

111516 BCC Meeting

101

111516 BCC Meeting

101



Statement 7
Watauga County, North Carolina

 Fire Districts Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
  

Revenues:
    Ad valorem taxes $ $ 2,987,818     $

              Total revenues 3,044,311    2,987,818     (56,493)               

Expenditures:
    Public safety:  

Beaver Dam Fire Department 108,813        
Beech Mountain Fire Department 1,489            
Blowing Rock Fire Department 472,465        
Boone Fire Department 776,301        
Cove Creek Fire Department 246,774        
Creston Fire Department 6,923            
Deep Gap Fire Department 198,213        
Fall Creek Fire Department 9,154            
Foscoe Fire Department 541,640        
Meat Camp Fire Department 216,096        
Shawneehaw Fire Department 104,045        
Stewart Simmons Fire Department 123,025        
Todd Fire Department 64,759          
Zionville Fire Department 118,121        

               Total expenditures 3,044,311    2,987,818     56,493                

Net change in fund balance $ -                   -                    $ -                          

Fund balance, beginning of year -                    

Fund balance, end of year $ -                    

77

111516 BCC Meeting

102

111516 BCC Meeting

102



Statement 8
Watauga County, North Carolina

Occupancy Tax Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
  

Revenues:
    Other taxes and licenses  $  $ 1,371,244    $

Total revenues 1,371,244  1,371,244   -                   

Expenditures:
    Tourism Development 1,347,532   
    Administrative fee 23,712        

Total expenditures 1,371,244  1,371,244   -                   

Net change in fund balance  $ -                 -                   $ -                   

Fund balance, beginning of year -                  

Fund balance, end of year $ -                  

78

111516 BCC Meeting

103

111516 BCC Meeting

103



Statement 9
Watauga County, North Carolina
CDBG Scattered Site Housing Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Total Variance
Project Prior to Favorable

Authorization Year Actual Date (Unfavorable)
  

Revenues:
    Restricted intergovernmental  $ 225,000         $ 84,349    $ 137,873  $ 222,222  $ (2,778)           

Total revenues 225,000        84,349   137,873 222,222 (2,778)           

Expenditures:
   Residence rehabilitation 180,000        66,973   110,973 177,946 2,054            
   Local option/emergency 22,500          -             22,200   22,200   300               
   Grant administration 22,500          17,376   4,700     22,076   424               

Total expenditures 225,000        84,349   137,873 222,222 2,778            

Net change in fund balance  $ -                     $ -             -              $ -              $ -                    

Fund balance, beginning of year -             

Fund balance, end of year  $ -             

79

111516 BCC Meeting

104

111516 BCC Meeting

104



Statement 10
Watauga County, North Carolina

Capital Projects Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
  

Revenues:
Investment earnings  $ -                  $ 25,734         $ 25,734         

Expenditures:
 General government 2,268,552  -                  2,268,552    

     Excess (deficiency) of revenues over   
        expenditures  (2,268,552) 25,734        2,294,286    

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer from other funds 2,268,552  2,268,552   -                   

Total other financing sources (uses) 2,268,552  2,268,552   -                   

Net change in fund balance  $ -                 2,294,286    $ 2,294,286    

Fund balance, beginning of year 6,885,847   

Fund balance, end of year  $ 9,180,133   

80

111516 BCC Meeting

105

111516 BCC Meeting

105



 

Statement 11

Variance
Final Favorable

Revenues: Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Operating revenues:

Charges for services $ $ 4,317,534     $
Sale of recycled materials 310,497        

Total 3,976,343     4,628,031     651,688             

Non-operating revenues:
Miscellaneous revenue 7,904            
Investment earnings 15,785          
Restricted intergovernmental revenues 153,795        

Total 143,000        177,484        34,484               

Total revenues  4,119,343     4,805,515     686,172             

Expenditures:
Landfill operations:

Salaries and employee benefits  1,234,422     
Other operating expenditures 2,299,552     

Total landfill operations 4,095,000     3,533,974     561,026             

Recycling operations:
Salaries and employee benefits 47,321          
Other operating expenses 35,999          

Total recycling operations 83,482          83,320          162                    

Capital outlay:
Capital outlays 280,708        

Total capital outlay 375,141        280,708        94,433               

Total expenditures 4,553,623     3,898,002     655,621             

Revenues under/(over) expenditures (434,280)       907,513        1,341,793          

Other financing sources (uses):
Sale of fixed assets 35,000          26,839          (8,161)                
Appropriated fund balance 399,280        -                    (399,280)            

Total other financing sources (uses) 434,280        26,839          (407,441)            

Revenues over expenditures and other sources (uses) $ -                    934,352        $ 934,352             

Reconciliation from budgetary basis (modified accrual) to full accrual:

Reconciling items:
Decrease in net pension asset (89,014)         
Decrease in deferred outflow of resources - pensions (4,448)           
Increase in net pension liability (63,814)         
Decrease in deferred inflow of resources - pensions 183,780        
Increase in intangible asset for advance funding of OPEB NOO 6,769            
Loss on sale of asset not fully depreciated (27,831)         
Capital outlays 280,708        
Depreciation (318,039)       
Increase in accrued compensated absenses (10,537)         

Total reconciling items (42,426)         

Change in net position $ 891,926        

Watauga County, North Carolina
Solid Waste Fund

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures Budget and Actual (NON-GAAP)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

81

111516 BCC Meeting

106

111516 BCC Meeting

106



Statement 12

LEO Special Other Post
Separation Employment
Allowance Benefits Totals

Cash and cash equivalents $ 273,313        $ 850,281         $ 1,123,594  
Accounts receivable -                    2,740             2,740         

$ 273,313        $ 853,021         $ 1,126,334  

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ -                    $ -                    $ -                 

Net position:

     Assets held in trust for pension benefits $ 273,313        $ 853,021         $ 1,126,334  

Assets

Liabilities and Net Position

Watauga County, North Carolina
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Pension Trust Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

82

111516 BCC Meeting

107

111516 BCC Meeting

107



Statement 13

LEO Special Other Post
Separation Employment
Allowance Benefits Totals

     Employer contributions $ 287,560        $ 207,436        $ 494,996      
     Interest 716               7,889            8,605          

          Total additions 288,276        215,325        503,601      

Deductions:

     Benefits 14,727          120,700        135,427      
     Administrative expense 236               4,800            5,036          

          Total deductions 14,963          125,500        140,463      

          Change in net position 273,313        89,825          363,138      

Net position, beginning -                    763,196        763,196      
Net position, ending $ 273,313        $ 853,021        $ 1,126,334   

Additions:

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Pension Trust Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Watauga County, North Carolina

83

111516 BCC Meeting

108

111516 BCC Meeting

108



Statement 14

Balance Balance
July 1, 2015 Additions Deletions June 30, 2016

Social Services Trust:
   Assets: $ 43,090         $ 191,414    $ 202,845    $ 31,659            

   Liabilities: $ 43,090         $ 191,414    $ 202,845    $ 31,659            

Vehicle Tax-Towns:
   Assets: $ 50                $ 123,137    $ 123,170    $ 17                   

   Liabilities: $ 50                $ 123,137    $ 123,170    $ 17                   

Town of Boone Taxes:
   Assets: $ 2,096           $ 6,001,067 $ 5,970,226 $ 32,937            

   Liabilities: $ 2,096           $ 6,001,067 $ 5,970,226 $ 32,937            

Inmate Commissary:
   Assets: $ 19,459         $ 163,834    $ 162,323    $ 20,970            

   Liabilities: $ 19,459         $ 163,834    $ 162,323    $ 20,970            

Fines and Forfeitures:
    Assets: $ 19,832         $ 325,704    $ 327,055    $ 18,481            

    Liabilties: $ 19,832         $ 325,704    $ 327,055    $ 18,481            

Deed of Trust Fee:
    Assets: $ 4,452           $ 48,062      $ 47,889      $ 4,625              

    Liabilities: $ 4,452           $ 48,062      $ 47,889      $ 4,625              

Total - All Agency Funds
   Assets: $ 88,979         $ 6,853,218 $ 6,833,508 $ 108,689          

   Liabilities: $ 88,979         $ 6,853,218 $ 6,833,508 $ 108,689          

Watauga County, North Carolina
Agency Funds

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

84

111516 BCC Meeting

109

111516 BCC Meeting

109



Statement 15

Uncollected Collections Uncollected
Balance and Balance

June 30, 2015 Additions Credits June 30, 2016

2015 - 2016 $ -                      $ 27,880,718    $ 27,548,054    $ 332,664          
2014 - 2015 450,430          -                    228,762         221,668          
2013 - 2014 241,045          -                    84,151           156,894          
2012 - 2013 160,236          -                    49,591           110,645          
2011 - 2012 114,602          -                    30,546           84,056            
2010 - 2011  87,284             -                     18,003           69,281            
2009 - 2010 60,732            -                    11,870           48,862            
2008 - 2009 55,249            -                    7,262             47,987            
2007 - 2008 46,111            -                    6,151             39,960            
2006 - 2007 42,292            -                    7,486             34,806            
2005 - 2006 38,328            -                    38,328           -                      

$ 1,296,309       $ 27,880,718    $ 28,030,204    1,146,823       

Plus:  2016 - 2017 receivable 13,933            

Less:  Allowance for uncollectible accounts General Fund (394,290)         

Ad valorem taxes receivable - net General Fund $ 766,466          

Ad valorem taxes - General Fund $ 28,151,345

Reconciling items:
Advertising and interest collected (172,474)
Taxes written off 35,330
Penalties payable to WCS 1,915
Prior year releases 14,088

Total reconciling items (121,141)

Total collections and credits $ 28,030,204

Reconcilement with revenues:

Watauga County, North Carolina
General Fund

Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable
June 30, 2016

Fiscal year:

85

111516 BCC Meeting

110

111516 BCC Meeting

110



Statement 16

Total Levy
Property

excluding
Registered Registered

Property Amount Motor Motor
Valuation Rate of Levy Vehicles Vehicles

Original levy:

Property taxed at current year's rate $ 8,408,582,978 $ 0.313 $ 26,192,547 $ 26,192,547 $ -                   

Motor vehicles 411,994,671    0.313 1,289,543   -                  1,289,543     

Penalties -                       2,361          2,361          -                   

Total 8,820,577,649 27,484,451 26,194,908 1,289,543     

Discoveries:

Property taxed at current year's rate 139,271,730    0.313 441,778      441,778      -                   

Penalties -                       2,100          2,100          -                   

Total 139,271,730    443,878      443,878      -                   

Abatements: (15,214,613)     (47,611)       (47,611)       -                   
  

Total property valuation $ 8,944,634,766 

Net levy 27,880,718  26,591,175 1,289,543     
.

Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2016 332,664      329,516      3,148            

Current year's taxes collected $ 27,548,054 $ 26,261,659 $ 1,286,395     

Current levy collection percentage 98.81% 98.76% 99.76%

Watauga County, North Carolina
Analysis of Current Tax Levy

County-wide Levy
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

86

111516 BCC Meeting

111

111516 BCC Meeting

111



Statement 17-A

Secondary Market Disclosures:

Assessed Valuation:
Assessment Ratio 100%
Real Property $ 8,700,983,675   
Personal Property 149,426,941      
Public Service Companies 94,224,150        

Total Assessed Valuation $ 8,944,634,766   

Tax Rate per $100 0.313

Net Levy (Includes  penalties, discoveries, releases and abatements) $ 27,880,718        

Fire Protection District Tax Rate per $100 Net Levy

Beech Mountain Rural 0.05 $ 1,478                 
Blowing Rock 0.05 467,848             
Boone Rural 0.05 767,682             
Cove Creek 0.05 244,730             
Cove Creek Rural 0.05 324                    
Deep Gap 0.05 195,126             
Foscoe 0.05 466,807             
Foscoe Rural 0.05 70,421               
Meat Camp 0.05 220,138             
Northwest Watauga 0.05 116,724             
Shawneehaw 0.05 97,275               
Shawneehaw Rural 0.05 6,590                 
Stewart Simmons 0.05 122,705             
Todd 0.07 63,601               
Zionville 0.05 116,214             

Total Net Fire Protection District Levies $ 2,957,663          

Watauga County, North Carolina
Analysis of Current Tax Levy

County-wide Levy
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

In addition to the County-wide rate, the following table lists the levies by the County on behalf of fire 
protection districts for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016:

87

111516 BCC Meeting

112

111516 BCC Meeting

112



Statement 17-B

2015 Percentage of
Assessed Total Assessed

Taxpayer Type of Business Valuation Valuation

Blue Ridge Electric Membership Coop Electric Utility $ 65,750,600      0.74 %
CCC Boone LLC Rental Properties 46,499,000      0.52
Dugger Valley Inv Group LLC Real Estate Development 35,405,500      0.40
BR Development Group LLC Real Estate Development 24,047,700      0.27
Mountaineer Village LLC Rental Properties 23,537,200      0.26
Horizon Acquisition #2 LLC Rental Properties 17,906,700      0.20
Blue Ridge Preservation Inc Real Estate Development 16,944,700      0.19
Highland Crossing-B, LLC Real Estate Development 15,727,420      0.18
Templeton Properties LP Commercial Rental Properties 14,998,700      0.17
Wm Land Boone LTD Ptnrp Real Estate Development 13,689,900      0.15

$ 274,507,420    3.08 %

Watauga County, North Carolina
Ten Largest Taxpayers

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

88

111516 BCC Meeting

113

111516 BCC Meeting

113



Statement 18

Beech Mtn.
Rural Blowing Rock Boone

Fire Service Rural Rural Cove Creek
Fire District District Fire District Fire District Fire District

Tax rate 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05

Net levy $ 116,724 $ 1,478 $ 467,848 $ 767,682 $ 244,730

Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2016 2,515 2 5,544 10,216 4,615

Current year's taxes collected $ 114,209 $ 1,476 $ 462,304 $ 757,466 $ 240,115

Current levy collection percentage 97.85% 99.86% 98.81% 98.67% 98.11%

Cove Creek Foscoe
Rural Rural

Fire Service Deep Gap Foscoe Fire Service Meat Camp
District Fire District Fire District  District Fire District

Tax rate 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05

Net levy $ 324 $ 195,126 $ 466,807 $ 70,421 $ 220,138

Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2016 -                     3,427 3,877 845 5,817

Current year's taxes collected $ 324 $ 191,699 $ 462,930 $ 69,576 $ 214,321

Current levy collection percentage 100.00% 98.24% 99.17% 98.80% 97.36%

Shawnheehaw
Rural Stewart

Shawnheehaw Fire Service Simmons Todd Zionville
Fire District District Fire District Fire District Fire District

Tax rate 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.07 0.05

Net levy $ 97,275 $ 6,590 $ 122,705 $ 63,601 $ 116,214

Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2016 1,551 394 1,729 585 2,727

Current year's taxes collected $ 95,724 $ 6,196 $ 120,976 $ 63,016 $ 113,487

Current levy collection percentage 98.41% 94.02% 98.59% 99.08% 97.65%

Watauga County, North Carolina
Analysis of Current Tax Levy

Fire Districts
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Northwest 
Watauga

89

111516 BCC Meeting

114

111516 BCC Meeting

114



COMPLIANCE SECTION

111516 BCC Meeting

115

111516 BCC Meeting

115



MISTY D WATSON, CPA, P.A. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT 

PO BOX 2122 
BOONE, NORTH CAROLINA 28607 

TELEPHONE (828) 263-1100 
Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting And On Compliance and Other Matters 

Based On An Audit Of Financial Statements Performed In Accordance With Government Auditing 
Standards 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
 

 
To the Board of Commissioners 
Watauga County, North Carolina 
 

I have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the accompanying financial statements of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Watauga County, North Carolina, as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprises Watauga County’s basic financial statements, and have issued my report thereon 
dated October 7, 2016.  My report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial 
statements of AppalCART, as described in my report on the County’s financial statements.  This report 
does not include the results of other auditors testing of internal control over financial reporting or 
compliance and other matters that are reported separately by those auditors.  The financial statements of 
the Watauga County District U Tourism Development Authority were not audited in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  
In planning and performing my audit of the financial statements, I considered Watauga County’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing my opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Watauga County’s internal control.  Accordingly, 
I do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

My consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during my audit I did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that I consider material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may 
exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Watauga County’s financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, I performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of my audit, and accordingly, I do not express 
such an opinion.  The results of my tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
 

90

111516 BCC Meeting

116

111516 BCC Meeting

116



 
 
 
 
 
Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of my testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
Misty D Watson, CPA, P.A. 

Boone, NC 
October 7, 2016 

91

111516 BCC Meeting

117

111516 BCC Meeting

117



MISTY D. WATSON, CPA, P.A. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT 

PO BOX 2122 
BOONE, NORTH CAROLINA 28607 

TELEPHONE (828) 263-1100 
 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program; Report on Internal Control Over 
Compliance; In accordance with OMB Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit 

Implementation Act 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Board of Commissioners 
Watauga County, North Carolina 
 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
I have audited Watauga County, North Carolina, compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement and the Audit Manual for 
Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, issued by the Local Government Commission, that could 
have a direct and material effect on each of Watauga County’s major federal programs for the year 
ended June 30, 2016.  Watauga County’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of 
auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management’s Responsibility 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
My responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Watauga County’s major federal 
programs based on my audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. I conducted 
my audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of 
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and the State Single 
Audit Implementation Act. Those standards, the Uniform Guidance, and the State Single Audit 
Implementation Act require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have 
a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a 
test basis, evidence about Watauga County’s compliance with those requirements and performing 
such other procedures, as I considered necessary in the circumstances.   

I believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, my audit does not provide a legal determination of Watauga County’s 
compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
In my opinion, Watauga County complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major 
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2016. 
 
 
 

  
92

111516 BCC Meeting

118

111516 BCC Meeting

118



Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
Management of Watauga County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning 
and performing my audit of compliance, I considered Watauga County’s internal control over 
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major 
federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for 
the purpose of expressing my opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and 
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.  
Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over 
compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, 
such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

My consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses.  I did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that I consider to be material weaknesses.  However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of my 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements 
of the Uniform Guidance.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
Misty D. Watson, CPA, PA 
Boone, NC 28607 
October 7, 2016 

  
93

111516 BCC Meeting

119

111516 BCC Meeting

119



MISTY D. WATSON, CPA, P.A. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT 

PO BOX 2122 
BOONE, NORTH CAROLINA 28607 

TELEPHONE (828) 263-1100 
 

Report On Compliance For Each Major State Program; Report on Internal Control Over 
Compliance; In accordance with OMB Uniform Guidance; and the State Single Audit 

Implementation Act 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Board of Commissioners 
Watauga County, North Carolina 

Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program 
I have audited Watauga County, North Carolina, compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, issued by 
the Local Government Commission, that could have a direct and material effect on each of Watauga 
County’s major state programs for the year ended June 30, 2016.  Watauga County’s major state 
programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs 

Management’s Responsibility 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants applicable to its state programs. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
My responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Watauga County’s major state 
programs based on my audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. I conducted 
my audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and applicable sections of Title 2 
US Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), as described in the Audit Manual 
for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act.  Those 
standards, Uniform Guidance, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act require that I plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major 
state program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Watauga 
County’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures, as I 
considered necessary in the circumstances. 

I believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion on compliance for each major 
state program. However, my audit does not provide a legal determination of Watauga County’s 
compliance. 
Opinion on Each Major State Program 
In my opinion, Watauga County complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major state 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2016. 
 
 

  
94

111516 BCC Meeting

120

111516 BCC Meeting

120



Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
Management of Watauga County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning 
and performing my audit of compliance, I considered Watauga County’s internal control over 
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major 
state program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing my opinion on compliance for each major state program and to test and 
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.  
Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over 
compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a state program on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, 
such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state 
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

My consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses.  I did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that I consider to be material weaknesses.  However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of my 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements 
of Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
Misty D. Watson, CPA, PA 
Boone, NC 28607 
October 7, 2016 
  
 
 
 

  
95

111516 BCC Meeting

121

111516 BCC Meeting

121



I. Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness identified? Yes X No

Yes X None reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted Yes X No

Unmodified

Federal Awards

Internal control over major Federal programs:

Material weakness identified? Yes X No

Yes X No

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major Federal programs: Unmodified

Yes X No

Identification of major Federal programs:

Program Name CFDA#

Subsidized Childcare Cluster 93.596
93.575
93.558
93.658

Title XIX Medicaid 93.778

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee X Yes No

State Awards

Internal control over major State programs:

Material weakness identified? Yes X No

Yes X None reported

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in 
accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

769,642$             

WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Significant deficiency identified that is not considered to be material
weaknesses

Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be
material weaknesses

Significant deficiency identified that is not considered to be material
weaknesses

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B
Programs:

Type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial statements 
audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP

96

111516 BCC Meeting

122

111516 BCC Meeting

122



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major State programs: Unmodified

Yes X No

Identification of major State programs:

Title XIX Medicaid

II. Financial Statement Findings

None reported.

III. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported.

IV. State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported.

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with the State Single Audit Implementation Act

97

111516 BCC Meeting

123

111516 BCC Meeting

123



FINDING 2015-1

FINDING 2015-2

WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

The County implemented adequate checks and balances and the finding was not repeated.

The County implemented adequate checks and balances and the finding was not repeated.

98

111516 BCC Meeting

124

111516 BCC Meeting

124



Watauga County, North Carolina
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
Federal

Federal Pass-Through (Direct & Pass- Passed-through
Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Grantor's Through) State to Local
Grantor/Program/Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures Expenditures Subrecipients Expenditures

Federal Awards:

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed-through the N.C. Department of Health and Human Services:
Division of Social Services:

State Administrative Matching Grants for the
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program 10.561 $ 211,686           $ -                    $ -                   $ 211,686          

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 211,686           -                    -                   211,686          

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Passed-through the N.C. Department of Commerce:
  Community Development Block Grant 14.228 12-C-2431 137,873           -                    -                   -                     
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 137,873           -                    -                   -                     

U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Passed-through the N.C. Department of Public Safety:

Homeland Security Training Grant 20.703 HM-MHP-0446-14-01-00 9,575               -                    -                   -                     
Emergency Management Performance Grant 97.042 EMPG-2015-37189 38,542             -                    -                   38,542            

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 48,117             -                    -                   38,542            

U.S. Department of Justice
State Criminal Alien Assistance Program 16.606 2015-AP-BX-0395 7,914               -                    -                   -                     

Total U.S. Department of Justice 7,914               -                    -                   -                     

U.S. Department of Transportation
Passed-through the N.C. Department of Transportation:

Federal Aid Highway Grants 20.205 EB-5612 362,843           90,711          -                   22,217            
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 362,843           90,711          -                   22,217            

U.S. Department of Health & Human Services
 Administration on Aging
  Aging Cluster:
Passed-through High Country Council of Governments:

Home and Community Care Block Grant (HCCBG) - 
Special Programs for the Aging - Title III B - Access Services 93.044 12,165             716               -                   1,431              
90% State Funds -                       121,090        -                   13,454            
Special Programs for the Aging - Title III C - Congregate 
Meals 93.045 41,028             2,413            -                   4,827              
Special Programs for the Aging - Title III C - Home Delivered 
Meals 93.045 73,969             4,351            -                   8,702              

Senior Center -                       15,200          -                   5,067              
Nutrition Services Incentive Program (NSIP) 93.053 26,733             -                    -                   -                     

Total Aging Cluster 153,895           143,770        -                   33,481            

Passed-through N.C. Department of Insurance:
Seniors Health Insurance Information Program 93.779 3,051               -                    -                   -                     
Medicare Improvements for Patients and Providers Act 93.779 1,131               -                    -                   -                     

 Administration for Children and Families
Passed-through the N.C. Department of Health and Human Services:
Division of Social Services:

Family Preservation 93.556 G1501NCFPSS 12,147             -                    -                   -                     
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families

Administration 93.558 G1602NCTANF 33,844             -                    -                   38,957            
Direct Benefit Payments 93.558 G1602NCTANF 210,512           21,600          -                   179,850          

Child Support Enforcement 93.563 192,368           -                    -                   99,083            

       Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Block Grant
Administration 93.568 G16B1NCLIEA 31,306             -                    -                   -                     
Direct Benefit Payments 93.568 G16B1NCLIEA 79,575             -                    -                   -                     

Crisis Intervention Payments 93.568 G16B1NCLIEA 188,908           -                    -                   -                     
Permanency Planning 93.645 G1501NCCWSS 13,854             -                    -                   4,618              
Social Services Block Grant 93.667 G1601NCSOSR 146,952           13,084          -                   51,760            

Total Division of Social Services 909,466           34,684          -                   374,268          

Foster Care and Adoption Cluster (Note 3)
Title IV-E Foster Care 93.658 170,423           9,348            -                   148,746          
Foster Care - Direct Benefit Payments 93.658 302,624           74,826          -                   80,690            
Adoption Assistance - Direct Benefit Payments 93.659 157,995           39,965          -                   41,153            
Adoption/Foster Care Special Provision 93.658 13,431             -                    -                   8,398              

Total Foster Care and Adoption Cluster (Note 3) 644,473           124,139        -                   278,987          

99

111516 BCC Meeting

125

111516 BCC Meeting

125



Watauga County, North Carolina
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
Federal

Federal Pass-Through (Direct & Pass- Passed-through
Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Grantor's Through) State to Local
Grantor/Program/Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures Expenditures Subrecipients Expenditures

    Subsidized Child Care (Note 3)
      Child Care Development Fund Cluster
      Division of Social Services
      Child Care Development Fund - Administration 93.596 80,000             -                    -                   -                     
      Child Care and Development Fund - Discretionary 93.575 G1601NCCCCDF 200,384           -                    -                   -                     
      Child Care and Development Fund - Mandatory 93.596 82,245             -                    -                   -                     
      Child Care and Development Fund - Match 93.596 239,635           108,654        -                   -                     
        Total Child Care Development Fund Cluster 602,264           108,654        -                   -                     

      Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) 93.558 1601 NCTANF 71,772             -                    -                   -                     
      Foster Care Title IV-E 93.658 1601NCFOST 4,747               2,432            -                   -                     
      Smart Start State Maintenance of Effort -                       117,695        -                   -                     

TANF - Contingency 93.575 G1601NCCCCDF 47,242             -                    -                   -                     
      TANF - Maintenance of Effort -                       24,861          -                   -                     
         Total Subsidized Child Care (Note 3) 726,025           253,642        -                   -                     

 Health Care Financing Administration
  Passed-through the N.C. Department of Health and Human Services:

Division of Medical Assistance:
Direct Benefit Payments:

Medical Assistance Program 93.778 20,782,916       11,316,462   -                   -                     
State Children's Insurance Program - NC Health Choice 93.767 702,506           33,487          -                   -                     

    Division of Social Services:
Medical Assistance Program

Administration 93.778 898,686           1,511            -                   347,675          
Health Choice 93.767 45,530             1,739            -                   249                 
LINKS - Direct Benefit Payments 93.674 G1501NCCILP 18,607             2,478            -                   -                     

Total Division of Medical Assistance 22,448,245       11,355,677   -                   347,924          

Total U.S. Department of Health & Human Services 24,886,286       11,911,912   -                   1,034,660       

Total Federal Awards 25,654,719       12,002,623   -                   1,307,105       

State Awards:

N.C. Department of Health and Human Services
 Division of Social Services

Adoption Subsidy -                       90,943          -                   29,523            
State/County Special Assistance for Adults - Direct Benefit Payments -                       226,128        -                   226,128          
State Foster Care Benefits Program -                       108,249        -                   90,670            

Total N.C. Department of Health and Human Services -                       425,320        -                   346,321          

N.C. Department of Public Safety
Division of Administration, Community Programs

Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Programs -                       134,900        134,900        33,251            
Total N.C. Department of Public Safety -                       134,900        134,900        33,251            

N.C. Department of Public Instruction
NC Public School Building Capital-Lottery Proceeds -                       435,763        435,763        -                     
NC Public School Building Capital-ADM -                       123,914        123,914        155,686          
Public School National Forest Service -                       575               575               -                     

Total N.C. Department of Public Instruction -                       560,252        560,252        155,686          

N.C. Department of Transportation
Employment Transportation Operating Assistance DOT-16CL -                       14,153          14,153          -                     
Elderly and Disabled Transportation Assistance DOT-16CL -                       54,262          -                   -                     
Rural General Public Program DOT-16CL -                       73,928          73,928          8,214              

Total N.C. Department of Transportation -                       142,343        88,081          8,214              

N.C. Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services
Farmland Preservation -                       14,018          -                   8,731              
Soil Conservation Assistance -                       3,600            -                   71,971            
Soil Conservation Technician Cost Sharing -                       22,983          -                   22,983            

Total N.C. Department of Agriculture -                       40,601          -                   103,685          

N.C. Department of Environment and Natural Resources
Division of Environmental Assistance and Customer Service

Community Waste Reduction and Recycling - HHW Building Contract #6478 -                       25,523          -                   5,105              
Community Waste Reduction and Recycling - Mercury Collection Contract #6447 -                       8,570            -                   1,123              

Total N.C. Department of Environment and Natural Resources -                       34,093          -                   6,228              

N.C. Division of Veteran's Affairs
Veteran's Service Program -                       2,288            -                   111,785          

Total State Awards -                       1,339,797     783,233        765,170          

Total Federal and State Awards $ 25,654,719       13,342,420   783,233        2,072,275       

100

111516 BCC Meeting

126

111516 BCC Meeting

126



Watauga County, North Carolina
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
Federal

Federal Pass-Through (Direct & Pass- Passed-through
Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Grantor's Through) State to Local
Grantor/Program/Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures Expenditures Subrecipients Expenditures

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Financial Awards:

1.  Basis of Presentation:

2.  Summary of Significant Account Policies:

3.  The following are clustered by the NC Department of Health and Human Services and are treated separately for state audit requirement purposes:

Subsidized Child Care
Foster Care and Adoption

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards (SEFSA) includes the federal and State award activity of Watauga County under the programs of the
federal government and the State of North Carolina for the year ended June 30, 2016. The information in this SEFSA is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2
US Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and the State Single Audit
Implementation Act. Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of Watauga County, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position,
changes in net position or cash flows of Watauga County.

Expenditures reported in the SEFSA are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in Uniform
Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from
amounts presented or used in the preparation of the basic financial statements. Benefit payments are paid directly to recipients and are not included in the County's basic financial
statements.  However, due to the County's involvement in determining eligibility, they are considered Federal awards to the County and are included in this schedule.

101

111516 BCC Meeting

127

111516 BCC Meeting

127



Blank Page 
 
 

111516 BCC Meeting

128

111516 BCC Meeting

128



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

REQUEST TO MODIFY CUSTODIAL SERVICES CONTRACT 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:   
 
Mr. Robert Marsh, Maintenance Director, will request the Board approve an increase in service 
to the existing custodial service contract for additional trips to Parks and Recreation facilities 
Saturday and Sunday to lock the facilities.  Recently, the facilities have experienced extensive 
vandalism, theft, and loitering at night.   
 
Staff gave prior approval to the increase in service and the measure has reduced the incidents at 
the facilities.  Funds are available to cover the cost of the additional service.   
 
Staff requests the Board approve the modification to the existing custodial contract for the 
increase in service.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

111516 BCC Meeting

129

111516 BCC Meeting

129



111516 BCC Meeting

130

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

WATAUGA COUNTY 
MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT 

969 West King St. , Boone, NC 28607 - Phone (828) 264-1430 
Fax (828) 264-1473 

MEMORANDUM 

Deron Geouque, County Manager 

Robert Marsh, Maintenance Director ;v..__-;> 

October 25, 2016 

.Contract for Custodial Services (Contract Modification) 

I've attached an addendum to the existing weekend custodial service contract that 
provides for a trip to each of our P&R restroom facilities Saturday and Sunday evenings 
in order to clear and secure the buildings. We have experienced an extended period of 
vandalism, theft and loitering that is occurring mostly at night. 

I verbally gave permission for our contractor to begin this service back in September in 
order to protect the county facilities from damage. The evening lockups have helped to 
deter the misuse of the facilities. 

The addition of this service will be on an as-needed basis and will not exceed $3,200 per 
year. 

111516 BCC Meeting

130



111516 BCC Meeting

131

ADDENDUM TWO 

CONTRACT FOR CUSTODIAL SERVICE 

This is an Addendum to the Contract for Custodial Services which began July 1, 2014, and continues until 

June 30, 2019. 

All parties agree to the following: 

1) Lock entrance doors to the restrooms Saturday and Sunday nights at Rocky Knob Park, Industrial 

Fields, Optimist Club, Ted Mackorell Soccer Complex and Complex Fields on an as-needed basis. 

Cost to provide this service is $50.00 per day, not to exceed $3,200 per year. 

This addendum is effective September 10, 2016, and is subject to all terms of the Contract for Custodial 

Service. 

Owner/Watauga County 

By: 

Deron Geouque 
County Manager 
Watauga County Administration 

814 West King Street 

Boone, NC 28607 

Contractor: 

Darren Wallace 
Estate Maintenance Company, Inc. 
P.O. Box 1418 

Blowing Rock, NC 28605 

Date 

;tJ·-cZU" 
Date 

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and 

Fiscal Control Act . 

Margaret Pierce 

Watauga County Finance Director 

111516 BCC Meeting

131



111516 BCC Meeting

132

TO: 

FROM: 

JcoUNTY MANAGER 

!Maintenance 

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT 

DATE: 110-2S-2016 

WATAUGA COUNTY 
ADM INISTRATIVE BUDGET AMENDMENT 

REQUEST FORM 

DEPARTMENT HEAD'S SIGNATURE 

Print Form 

Per Budget Ordinance, Section XI I A & B, p lease authorize the following administrative budget amendment.. 

Account Number Account Description 

l 1 0-4260-449900 II w 
Miscellaneous Expense 

" . - ~- . ·- -
I 1 0-4282-469500 I Contracted Services 

I 1 0-4283-469500 ;I_ Contracted Services . " -*W ·- . 
I 10-4287-469500 I Contracted Services 

I I 1 0-4288-469500 Contracted Services 
- ,.,.__ - ·~ ·-- ---- -~ 

" 

- . -- . - ...,. 

I . ---

L . ·s,,< . & • 

. ' ··- ·····- ... . 

I = ·- ,. ,. ·- I -~= -· 

TOTALS 

Justification/ Explanation: 

Unexpected expense to lock park restrooms on w eekends. 

I Approved 

I Disapproved 

~· I 
~ 

I 
_."". Jl 

I 
-.JI 

n. 

J - ~ 

- "'-
; I 

.J t 

- ~~.· 1 
I 

Increase by: Decrease by: 

-Jl 2,400 
~ Q --

480 

960 J I . -"""'- ..."". -
480 

j I ~ 480 --- -

··- ~ ~J I ~ ~- ~ ~ 

,j 
= -~ -· ~ = 

= -"'- Jl -· 

... II -· 

~ I .. ~ 

2,400 I 2,400 

J Board of Commissioners 

J Requesting Department 

I Finance Department 

I 

' 

111516 BCC Meeting

132



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

TAX MATTERS  
A. Monthly Collections Report 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Larry Warren, Tax Administrator, will present the Monthly Collections Report and be 
available for questions and discussion. 
 
The report is for information only; therefore, no action is required. 
 
  

111516 BCC Meeting

133

111516 BCC Meeting

133



111516 BCC Meeting

134

Montltlv Collections Report 

Watauga County 

Bank deposits of the following amounts have been made and credited to the account of Watauga County. The 
reported 

totals do not include small shortages and overages reported to the Watauga County Finance Officer 

Monthly Report October 2016 

Current Month Current Month Current EX Current FY Previous FY 
Collections Percenta&e Collectioos Percenta2,e Percenta2,e 

General Coun!l:: 
Taxes 2016 3,953,904.22 16.75% 7,218,908.12 26.85% 26.76% 
Prior Year Taxes 32,491.90 205,307.26 
Solid Waste User Fees 326,354.23 14.58% 615,000.62 23.64% 24.52% 

Green Box Fees 443.63 NA 3,249.16 NA 

Total County Funds $4,313,193.98 $8,042,465.16 

Fire Districts 
Foscoe Fire 75,978.38 19.75% 147,399.59 31.89% 32.34% 

Boone Fire 128,133.16 16.38% 225,438.14 25.28% 25.60% 

Fall Creek Service Dist. 1,405.44 14.63% 2,120.49 20.15% 16.62% 

Beaver Dam Fire 15,376.50 17.25% 28,451.27 26.89% 27.63% 

Stewart Simmons Fire 16,956.22 14.67% 30,860.53 23.67% 25.21% 

Zionville Fire 16,567.19 16.86% 29,241.80 25.46% 28.61% 

Cove Creek Fire 33,772.84 16.39% 63,466.68 25.82% 27.00% 

Shawneehaw Fire 13,021.32 15.11% 24,880.92 25.48% 27.14% 

Meat Camp Fire 29,170.51 16.24% 52,553.32 25.33% 26.54% 

Deep Gap Fire 26,138.58 16.18% 48,715.80 25.77% 24.80% 

Todd Fire 8,603.83 16.57% 18,242.67 28.97% 25.73% 

Blowing Rock Fire 72,288.27 18.78% 155,121.40 32.68% 32.08% 

M.C. Creston Fire 1,290.87 20.29% 1,793.00 23.85% 26.56% 

Foscoe Service District 9,138.84 14.74% 17,385.19 24.33% 27.11% 

Beech Mtn. Service Dist. 365.32 24.98% 372.55 25.35% 22.80% 

Cove Creek Service Dist. 79.00 25.32% 91.20 28.14% 28.14% 

Shawneehaw Service Dis! 1,103.41 18.61% 1,744.39 25.19% 31.83% 

$447,984.24 $845,758.45 

Towns 
Boone 659,638.62 1,117,901.93 19.56% 19.19% 

Municipal Services 8,659.51 17,014.27 1286% 16.26% 

Boone MY Fee 13.75 28.08 NA NA 
Blowing Rock 0.00 0.00 NA NA 
Seven Devils 0.00 0.00 NA NA 
Beech Mountain 0.00 183.23 NA NA 

Total Town Taxes $668,31 1.88 $1,135,127.51 

Total Amount Collected $5,429,490.10 $111;023;351:12 

/lfrl04dd~ Tax Collections Director 

~~ Tax Administrator 

111516 BCC Meeting

134



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

TAX MATTERS  
B. Refunds and Releases 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Warren will present the Refunds and Releases Reports. 
 
Board action is required to accept the Refunds and Releases Reports. 
 
 
  

111516 BCC Meeting

135

111516 BCC Meeting

135



 

10/31/2016 15:52    |WATAUGA COUNTY |P      1
Larry.Warren        |RELEASES - 10/01/2016 TO 10/31/2016 |tncrarpt

 
CAT YEAR BILL EFF DATE VALUE
PROPERTY JUR

OWNER NAME AND ADDRESS REASON REF NO CHARGE AMOUNT
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

  1410976 ANDREWS, GLENN D JR AND PAULANNE        RE 2016    42378 10/31/2016         207,600 F02                      124.56
130 BIRCHWOOD DR                        2920-34-6878-000        F02 G01                      649.79
BOONE, NC 28607                         TAX RELEASES                  5955 SWF                       80.00
                                        HOUSE IS CONDEMNED                      _______________
                                                                                         854.35

 
  1573736 BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE ENDOWMENT FUND RE 2016    34023 10/31/2016               0 F02                       39.00

.APPALACHIAN STATE UNIVERSITY BOARD OF T 2900-47-4742-000        F02 G01                      203.45
PO BOX 32126                            TAX RELEASES                  5953 _______________
BOONE, NC 28608                         SHOUILD HAVE BEEN EXEMPT ASU                     242.45

 
  1596072 BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE ENDOWMENT FUND RE 2016    37498 10/31/2016               0 C02                    3,468.19

.APPALACHIAN STATE UNIVERSITY BOARD OF T 2910-08-2068-000        C02 G01                    2,647.67
PO BOX 32126                            TAX RELEASES                  5952 SWF                      480.00
BOONE, NC 28608                         SHOULD HAVE BEEN EXEMPT PROPERTY ASU    _______________
                                                                                       6,595.86

 
  1278852 BOONE UROLOGY CENTER PA                 PP 2016     1676 10/31/2016               0 G01                      273.09

935 STATE FARM ROAD                     278852999               C02 C02                      357.73
BOONE, NC 28607                         TAX RELEASES                  5960 _______________
                                        ASSETS PURCHASED BY ARHS DEC 2015                630.82
                                        PROPERTY IS EXEMPT                      

 
  1505358 BRASWELL, LARRY EUGENE                  PP 2016      945 10/31/2016               0 F09                         .50

BRASWELL, IMOGENE                       1733                    F09 G01                        3.13
119 PRO ST                              TAX RELEASES                  5933 _______________
TODD, NC 28684-9018                     SHOULD HAVE BEEN BILLED LARRY EUGENE               3.63
                                        BRASWELL JR                             

 
  1611542 ELK CREEK DEVELOPMENT LLC               RE 2011    32766 10/31/2016               0 F05                       47.00

837 JOKERS WILD                         2859-64-6826-000        F05 G01                      294.22
SHOW LOW, AZ 85901                      TAX RELEASES                  5957 _______________
                                        DISCHARGED THROUGH BANKRUPTCY                    341.22
                                        UNCOLLECTIBLE MSD ON TAX CERT           

 
  1513335 ELLIOTT MORTIMER AND ASSOCIATES         PP 2016     2212 10/31/2016               0 G01                        2.85

P O BOX 144                             513335999               C02 C02                        3.73
NEWLAND, NC 28657                       TAX RELEASES                  5951 _______________
                                        BUSINESS CLOSED 9/15                               6.58

 
  1762169 GRAHAM, WILLIAM F AND JANE              PP 2016     1037 10/31/2016               0 C02                      123.00

PO BOX 3000                             1837                    C02 G01                       93.90
BOONE, NC 28607-3000                    TAX RELEASES                  5954 _______________
                                        DOUBLE BILLED UNDER 1762610                      216.90

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

111516 BCC Meeting

136

111516 BCC Meeting

136



 

10/31/2016 15:52    |WATAUGA COUNTY |P      2
Larry.Warren        |RELEASES - 10/01/2016 TO 10/31/2016 |tncrarpt

 
CAT YEAR BILL EFF DATE VALUE
PROPERTY JUR

OWNER NAME AND ADDRESS REASON REF NO CHARGE AMOUNT
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

  1606092 GREENE, JOSH ELLIS                      PP 2016     3301 10/31/2016               0 G01                        9.77
PO BOX 3204                             606092999               F02 F02                        1.87
BOONE, NC 28607                         TAX RELEASES                  5936 G01L                        .98
                                        NO LONGER OWN BOAT  BEFORE JAN 1 15     F02L                        .19
                                                                                _______________

          12.81
 

  1762604 HANESBRANDS DIRECT LLC                  PP 2016     1078 10/31/2016               0 G01                      586.28
1000 E HANES MILL RD 4A                 1880                    C03 
WINSTON SALEM, NC 27105-1384            TAX RELEASES                  5932
                                        LISTED UNDER 2 DIFFERENT NAMES          

 
  1735172 HUDSON, JERALD L                        RE 2015    20200 10/31/2016          17,800 F02                        8.90

12517 LAKE RIDGE CIR                    1990-60-2292-000        F02 G01                       55.71
CLERMONT, FL 34711-8585                 REFUND RELEASE                5959 _______________
                                        VALUE WAS REDUCED IN 2014                         64.61
                                        BUT DID NOT REMAIN FOR 2015 & 2016      

 
  1735172 HUDSON, JERALD L                        RE 2016    20225 10/31/2016          17,800 F02                       10.68

12517 LAKE RIDGE CIR                    1990-60-2292-000        F02 G01                       55.71
CLERMONT, FL 34711-8585                 TAX RELEASES                  5958 _______________
                                        VALUE WAS REDUCED IN 2014                         66.39
                                        BUT DID NOT REMAIN FOR 2015 & 2016      

 
  1336577 MOSES, DAVID P JR AND MAUREEN           RE 2016    24149 10/31/2016         421,600 F02                      252.96

2203 RUSS CORNETT RD                    2809-26-3750-000        F02 G01                    1,319.61
BOONE, NC 28607-8067                    TAX RELEASES                  5935 _______________
                                        SOFTWARE CALCULATION ERROR                     1,572.57

 
  1118728 NICELY, JAMES E AND PEGGY W             RE 2016    18072 10/31/2016           5,600 F07                        2.80

2385 LINVILLE CREEK RD                  1981-69-3765-000        F07 G01                       17.53
VILAS, NC 28692                         TAX RELEASES                  5934 _______________
                                        CLERICAL ERROR                                    20.33

 
  1604664 PAYNE, VILAS RAY                        RE 2011    33157 10/31/2016           3,500 F10                        1.75

233 FOX RD                              2869-74-9612-000        F10 G01                       10.96
WILKESBORO, NC 28697                    REFUND RELEASE                5937 _______________
                                        BUILDINGS ON WRONG PARCEL                         12.71

 
  1604664 PAYNE, VILAS RAY                        RE 2012    33010 10/31/2016           3,500 F10                        1.75

233 FOX RD                              2869-74-9612-000        F10 G01                       10.96
WILKESBORO, NC 28697                    REFUND RELEASE                5938 _______________
                                        BUILDINGS ON WRONG PARCEL                         12.71

 
  1604664 PAYNE, VILAS RAY                        RE 2013    32625 10/31/2016           3,500 F10                        1.75

233 FOX RD                              2869-74-9612-000        F10 G01                       10.96
WILKESBORO, NC 28697                    REFUND RELEASE                5939 _______________
                                        BUILDINGS ON WRONG PARCEL                         12.71

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

111516 BCC Meeting

137

111516 BCC Meeting

137



 

10/31/2016 15:52    |WATAUGA COUNTY |P      3
Larry.Warren        |RELEASES - 10/01/2016 TO 10/31/2016 |tncrarpt

 
CAT YEAR BILL EFF DATE VALUE
PROPERTY JUR

OWNER NAME AND ADDRESS REASON REF NO CHARGE AMOUNT
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

  1604664 PAYNE, VILAS RAY                        RE 2014    33324 10/31/2016           3,500 F10                        1.75
233 FOX RD                              2869-74-9612-000        F10 G01                       10.96
WILKESBORO, NC 28697                    REFUND RELEASE                5940 _______________
                                        BUILDINGS ON WRONG PARCEL                         12.71

 
  1604664 PAYNE, VILAS RAY                        RE 2015    33306 10/31/2016           3,500 F10                        1.75

233 FOX RD                              2869-74-9612-000        F10 G01                       10.96
WILKESBORO, NC 28697                    REFUND RELEASE                5941 _______________
                                        BUILDINGS ON WRONG PARCEL                         12.71

 
  1604664 PAYNE, VILAS RAY                        RE 2016    33315 10/31/2016           3,500 F10                        1.75

233 FOX RD                              2869-74-9612-000        F10 G01                       10.96
WILKESBORO, NC 28697                    TAX RELEASES                  5942 _______________
                                        BUILDINGS ON WRONG PARCEL                         12.71

 
  1610601 PERRY, THOMAS L                         RE 2016    10220 10/31/2016           8,800 G01                       27.54

PERRY, BETTY S                          1941-71-0523-000        C05 
609 W WESTVIEW ST                       TAX RELEASES                  5956
GASTONIA, NC 28052                      INCORRECT SQ FOOTAGE                    

 
  1500589 POPLAR GROVE BAPTIST CHURCH             RE 2016    33401 10/31/2016               0 G01                      109.55

1228 POPLAR GROVE ROAD S                2900-01-7956-000        F02 F02                       21.00
BOONE, NC 28607                         TAX RELEASES                  5950 _______________
                                        SHOULD HAVE BEEN EXEMPT                          130.55

 
  1633944 WATSON, TIMOTHY RAY                     PP 2009  1031523 10/31/2016               0 G01                       17.09

229 THE GLADE RD                        633944999               F11 F11                        2.73
BOONE, NC 286075137                     TAX RELEASES                  5943 LF                        62.00
                                        LISTED UNDER JAMES BROWN                GB                        25.00
                                                                                _______________

         106.82
 

  1633944 WATSON, TIMOTHY RAY                     PP 2010  1034682 10/31/2016               0 G01                       16.59
229 THE GLADE RD                        633944999               F11 F11                        2.65
BOONE, NC 286075137                     TAX RELEASES                  5944 LF                        62.00
                                        LISTED UNDER JAMES BROWN                GB                        25.00
                                                                                _______________

         106.24
 

  1633944 WATSON, TIMOTHY RAY                     PP 2011     3445 10/31/2016               0 LF                        62.00
229 THE GLADE RD                        633944999               F11 GB                        25.00
BOONE, NC 286075137                     TAX RELEASES                  5945 F11                        3.60
                                        LISTED UNDER JAMES BROWN                G01                       16.09
                                                                                _______________

         106.69
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

111516 BCC Meeting

138

111516 BCC Meeting

138



 

10/31/2016 15:52    |WATAUGA COUNTY |P      4
Larry.Warren        |RELEASES - 10/01/2016 TO 10/31/2016 |tncrarpt

 
CAT YEAR BILL EFF DATE VALUE
PROPERTY JUR

OWNER NAME AND ADDRESS REASON REF NO CHARGE AMOUNT
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

  1633944 WATSON, TIMOTHY RAY                     PP 2012     3955 10/31/2016               0 LF                        62.00
229 THE GLADE RD                        633944999               F11 GB                        25.00
BOONE, NC 286075137                     TAX RELEASES                  5946 G01                       15.62
                                        LISTED UNDER JAMES BROWN                F11                        3.49
                                                                                G01L                       1.56

F11L                        .35
_______________
         108.02

 
  1633944 WATSON, TIMOTHY RAY                     PP 2013     4006 10/31/2016               0 SWF                       62.00

229 THE GLADE RD                        633944999               F11 GB                        25.00
BOONE, NC 286075137                     TAX RELEASES                  5947 G01                       15.15
                                        LISTED UNDER JAMES BROWN                F11                        3.39
                                                                                G01L                       1.52

F11L                        .34
_______________
         107.40

 
  1633944 WATSON, TIMOTHY RAY                     PP 2014     3601 10/31/2016               0 SWF                       80.00

229 THE GLADE RD                        633944999               F11 G01                       15.15
BOONE, NC 286075137                     TAX RELEASES                  5948 F11                        3.39
                                        LISTED UNDER JAMES BROWN                G01L                       1.52
                                                                                F11L                        .34

_______________
         100.40

 
  1633944 WATSON, TIMOTHY RAY                     PP 2015     3511 10/31/2016               0 SWF                       80.00

229 THE GLADE RD                        633944999               F11 G01                       15.15
BOONE, NC 286075137                     TAX RELEASES                  5949 F11                        3.39
                                        LISTED UNDER JAMES BROWN                G01L                       1.52
                                                                                F11L                        .34

_______________
         100.40

 
DETAIL SUMMARY COUNT: 29    RELEASES - TOTAL         700,200       12,185.12

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

111516 BCC Meeting

139

111516 BCC Meeting

139



 

10/31/2016 15:52    |WATAUGA COUNTY |P      5
Larry.Warren        |RELEASES - 10/01/2016 TO 10/31/2016 |tncrarpt

 
   RELEASES - CHARGE SUMMARY FOR ALL CLERKS

 
YEAR CAT CHARGE AMOUNT

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

2009 PP F11   TODD FIRE PP                             2.73
2009 PP G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                       17.09
2009 PP GB    GREEN BOX PP                            25.00
2009 PP LF    SOLID WASTE PP                          62.00

_______________
2009 TOTAL          106.82

 
2010 PP F11   TODD FIRE PP                             2.65
2010 PP G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                       16.59
2010 PP GB    GREEN BOX PP                            25.00
2010 PP LF    SOLID WASTE PP                          62.00

_______________
2010 TOTAL          106.24

 
2011 RE F05   STEWART SIMMONS FIRE RE                 47.00
2011 RE F10   DEEP GAP FIRE RE                         1.75
2011 RE G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                      305.18
2011 PP F11   TODD FIRE PP                             3.60
2011 PP G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                       16.09
2011 PP GB    GREEN BOX PP                            25.00
2011 PP LF    SOLID WASTE PP                          62.00

_______________
2011 TOTAL          460.62

 
2012 RE F10   DEEP GAP FIRE RE                         1.75
2012 RE G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                       10.96
2012 PP F11   TODD FIRE PP                             3.49
2012 PP F11L  TODD FIRE LATE LIST                       .35
2012 PP G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                       15.62
2012 PP G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST                 1.56
2012 PP GB    GREEN BOX PP                            25.00
2012 PP LF    SOLID WASTE PP                          62.00

_______________
2012 TOTAL          120.73

 
2013 RE F10   DEEP GAP FIRE RE                         1.75
2013 RE G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                       10.96
2013 PP F11   TODD FIRE PP                             3.39
2013 PP F11L  TODD FIRE LATE LIST                       .34
2013 PP G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                       15.15
2013 PP G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST                 1.52
2013 PP GB    GREEN BOX PP                            25.00
2013 PP SWF   SOLID WASTE PP                          62.00

_______________
2013 TOTAL          120.11

 
2014 RE F10   DEEP GAP FIRE RE                         1.75
2014 RE G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                       10.96
2014 PP F11   TODD FIRE PP                             3.39
2014 PP F11L  TODD FIRE LATE LIST                       .34
2014 PP G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                       15.15
2014 PP G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST                 1.52
2014 PP SWF   SOLID WASTE USER FEE                    80.00

_______________
2014 TOTAL          113.11

 

111516 BCC Meeting

140

111516 BCC Meeting

140



 

10/31/2016 15:52    |WATAUGA COUNTY |P      6
Larry.Warren        |RELEASES - 10/01/2016 TO 10/31/2016 |tncrarpt

 
   RELEASES - CHARGE SUMMARY FOR ALL CLERKS

 
YEAR CAT CHARGE AMOUNT

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

2015 RE F02   BOONE FIRE RE                            8.90
2015 RE F10   DEEP GAP FIRE RE                         1.75
2015 RE G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                       66.67
2015 PP F11   TODD FIRE PP                             3.39
2015 PP F11L  TODD FIRE LATE LIST                       .34
2015 PP G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                       15.15
2015 PP G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST                 1.52
2015 PP SWF   SANITATION USER FEE                     80.00

_______________
2015 TOTAL          177.72

 
2016 RE C02   BOONE RE                             3,468.19
2016 RE F02   BOONE FIRE RE                          448.20
2016 RE F07   COVE CREEK FIRE RE                       2.80
2016 RE F10   DEEP GAP FIRE RE                         1.75
2016 RE G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                    5,041.81
2016 RE SWF   SANITATION USER FEE                    560.00
2016 PP C02   BOONE PP                               484.46
2016 PP F02   BOONE FIRE PP                            1.87
2016 PP F02L  BOONE FIRE LATE LIST                      .19
2016 PP F09   MEAT CAMP FIRE PP                         .50
2016 PP G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                      969.02
2016 PP G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST                  .98

_______________
2016 TOTAL       10,979.77

 
SUMMARY TOTAL       12,185.12

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

111516 BCC Meeting

141

111516 BCC Meeting

141



 

10/31/2016 15:52    |WATAUGA COUNTY |P      7
Larry.Warren        |RELEASES - 10/01/2016 TO 10/31/2016 |tncrarpt

 
   RELEASES - JURISDICTION SUMMARY FOR ALL CLERKS

 
JUR  YEAR CHARGE AMOUNT

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

C02 2016 C02   BOONE PP                             3,952.65
C02 2016 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                    3,017.51
C02 2016 SWF   SANITATION USER FEE                    480.00

_______________
C02 TOTAL        7,450.16

 
C03 2016 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                      586.28

_______________
C03 TOTAL          586.28

 
C05 2016 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                       27.54

_______________
C05 TOTAL           27.54

 
F02 2015 F02   BOONE FIRE RE                            8.90
F02 2015 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                       55.71
F02 2016 F02   BOONE FIRE RE                          450.07
F02 2016 F02L  BOONE FIRE LATE LIST                      .19
F02 2016 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                    2,347.88
F02 2016 G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST                  .98
F02 2016 SWF   SANITATION USER FEE                     80.00

_______________
F02 TOTAL        2,943.73

 
F05 2011 F05   STEWART SIMMONS FIRE RE                 47.00
F05 2011 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                      294.22

_______________
F05 TOTAL          341.22

 
F07 2016 F07   COVE CREEK FIRE RE                       2.80
F07 2016 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                       17.53

_______________
F07 TOTAL           20.33

 
F09 2016 F09   MEAT CAMP FIRE PP                         .50
F09 2016 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                        3.13

_______________
F09 TOTAL            3.63

 
F10 2011 F10   DEEP GAP FIRE RE                         1.75
F10 2011 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                       10.96
F10 2012 F10   DEEP GAP FIRE RE                         1.75
F10 2012 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                       10.96
F10 2013 F10   DEEP GAP FIRE RE                         1.75
F10 2013 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                       10.96
F10 2014 F10   DEEP GAP FIRE RE                         1.75
F10 2014 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                       10.96
F10 2015 F10   DEEP GAP FIRE RE                         1.75
F10 2015 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                       10.96
F10 2016 F10   DEEP GAP FIRE RE                         1.75
F10 2016 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                       10.96

_______________
F10 TOTAL           76.26

 
F11 2009 F11   TODD FIRE PP                             2.73
F11 2009 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                       17.09

111516 BCC Meeting

142

111516 BCC Meeting

142



 

10/31/2016 15:52    |WATAUGA COUNTY |P      8
Larry.Warren        |RELEASES - 10/01/2016 TO 10/31/2016 |tncrarpt

 
   RELEASES - JURISDICTION SUMMARY FOR ALL CLERKS

 
JUR  YEAR CHARGE AMOUNT

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

F11 2009 GB    GREEN BOX PP                            25.00
F11 2009 LF    SOLID WASTE PP                          62.00
F11 2010 F11   TODD FIRE PP                             2.65
F11 2010 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                       16.59
F11 2010 GB    GREEN BOX PP                            25.00
F11 2010 LF    SOLID WASTE PP                          62.00
F11 2011 F11   TODD FIRE PP                             3.60
F11 2011 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                       16.09
F11 2011 GB    GREEN BOX PP                            25.00
F11 2011 LF    SOLID WASTE PP                          62.00
F11 2012 F11   TODD FIRE PP                             3.49
F11 2012 F11L  TODD FIRE LATE LIST                       .35
F11 2012 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                       15.62
F11 2012 G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST                 1.56
F11 2012 GB    GREEN BOX PP                            25.00
F11 2012 LF    SOLID WASTE PP                          62.00
F11 2013 F11   TODD FIRE PP                             3.39
F11 2013 F11L  TODD FIRE LATE LIST                       .34
F11 2013 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                       15.15
F11 2013 G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST                 1.52
F11 2013 GB    GREEN BOX PP                            25.00
F11 2013 SWF   SOLID WASTE PP                          62.00
F11 2014 F11   TODD FIRE PP                             3.39
F11 2014 F11L  TODD FIRE LATE LIST                       .34
F11 2014 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                       15.15
F11 2014 G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST                 1.52
F11 2014 SWF   SOLID WASTE USER FEE                    80.00
F11 2015 F11   TODD FIRE PP                             3.39
F11 2015 F11L  TODD FIRE LATE LIST                       .34
F11 2015 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                       15.15
F11 2015 G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST                 1.52
F11 2015 SWF   SANITATION USER FEE                     80.00

_______________
F11 TOTAL          735.97

 
SUMMARY TOTAL       12,185.12

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

111516 BCC Meeting

143

111516 BCC Meeting

143



Blank Page 
 
 

111516 BCC Meeting

144

111516 BCC Meeting

144



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

TAX MATTERS  
C. Property Tax Appeal 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
His High Places, Inc. in Blowing Rock applied for tax exemption on properties owned by the 
organization.  The deadline to file for tax exemption is June 1st of each year.  The reason for the 
untimely application was the organization rented the properties previously and was unaware that 
they could file for exemption now that they owned the property.   Staff understands that the 
application would be granted going forward so long as the application was submitted in a timely 
manner.  The total reduction in taxes including county and fire is $1,805.      
 
The appeal would have been filed with the Board of Equalization and Review but since this 
Board has adjourned the appeal is required to be heard by the Board of Commissioners.   
 
Board action is required to accept or deny His High Places, Inc.’s application for tax exemption 
on the requested properties.         
 
 
  

111516 BCC Meeting

145

111516 BCC Meeting

145



 
WATAUGA COUNTY TAX ADMINISTRATION 
 

Courthouse, Suite 21 – 842 West King Street – Boone, NC 28607 
(828) 265-8021 – FAX (828) 264-3230 

 
 
 

 
MEMO 

 
TO:      Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 
FROM:    Larry Warren, Tax Administrator 
 
RE:     Late Application for Exemption 
 
DATE:    October 7, 2016 
 
 
 
 
My office received an application for exemption today which is outside the normal listing period. 
The application is from His High Places, Inc in Blowing Rock, NC which is a Christian Biblical 
short-term residential counseling center. 
 
NC General Statute 105-282.1(a1) addresses a late application as follows: “Upon a showing of 
good cause by the applicant for failure to make a timely application, an application for 
exemption or exclusion filed after the close of the listing period may be approved by the 
Department of Revenue, the board of equalization and review, the board of county 
commissioners, or the governing body of a municipality, as appropriate. An untimely application 
for exemption or exclusion approved under this subsection applies only to property taxes levied 
by the county or municipality in the calendar year in which the untimely application is filed.” 
 
The reason provided as to why the application is untimely is that previously, the organization had 
always rented properties, not owned them and didn’t know that they would otherwise be entitled 
to a tax exemption. 
 
I respectfully request that this matter be placed on the commissioners board meeting agenda for 
November 2, 2016 so that the board may decide whether or not to grant the exemption. 
 
Thank you. 

 

111516 BCC Meeting

146

111516 BCC Meeting

146



PAR ID: 1887-55-6179-000 I Map#: 1887-02 I JURIS CD: F12 BLOWING ROCK [Route#: 
PIN#: 1887-55-6179-000 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA- Property Card Printed: 11/10/16 Card: 1 of 0 Appraiser: VBR 

Ownership: 1754988 SITUS: 
HIS HIGH PLACES, INC 
PO BOX 1418 
BOONE NC 28607 

Legal Descril:!tion: 
Remainder Of 312/363 

Subd: 

Parcel: ROO residential vacant Sale Dt I s Price Db/Pg Valid. Code 

Fronting: 9 residential 08/26/15 DEE 725,000 1821 /1 VALID SALE 
Location: 6 neighborhood or spot 12/09/94 DEE 10,000 312/363 
Parking: 0 none No Valid Sale 
Utility: 7 none; 

Zoning: 

Sketch Vectors 
V ector 

Improvement Description: R1 Assessment: 2016 

Story: FP Stacks: Bsmt: Phys Cond: %Complete: 
$32,700 

Openings: BSMT Gar: CDU: Grade: 
Land: Excluded: 

Class: 
BLDG: $0 Ag Use: 

Ext Wall: Prefab FP: Attic: Over Depr Tb: C&D Fact: SWF: 0 Market: $32,700 
Yr Bit: Rooms : Baths: Fnct Dep %: C&D Desc: 

Eft Year: Bedrooms: Half: Fnct Desc: TV/SF 0.00 Deferred: $0 
Heating : Unfin Area: Extra Fixt: Econ Dep%: SP/SF 0.00 Exempt: $0 
Fuel: Fin Bsmt Area: Mise 1: Econ Desc: RCN/SF Taxable: $32,700 
System: Rec Room Area: Mise 2: N-Fact: RCNLD/SF 

L# Low 1st 2nd 3rd Description Area Value(RCN) Yr Bt EfYr Bt Grd CDU %Gd Table %Cm!:! RCNLD Entrances 
D 
w Revisit: 
E .. .... .. ... ... .. .. .. 

L Reason: ..... ....... . ..... 
L ~ Date Code Rev2 .. ............. 

A JL 04/28/13 REVIEW .... 
D 
D .. -· .. .. ........ . ...... 
N ..... ....... ... ········ . .................. 
s 

.. ... 
.. ... . .... ···-·· 

.. .. .... ... . ......... ..... .... Building Permit 

Date Permit# Permit~ CO Date 

.. . . ... . .. ··-· . .... 

..... .. 

HSF: TSF: 0 Total: 

111516 BCC Meeting

147



PAR ID: 1887-55-6179-000 
PIN#: 1887-55-6179-000 

Land Description: LUC: ROO 

N-Fact: Topo1 : rolling 
Zoning: Topo2: 

L# ~Code Desc 
1 A A1 Primary Res Site 

Total Parcel Size: AC 0.9400 

I Comments: 
# Comment 

OB&Y 

Map#: 1887-02 JURIS CD: F12 BLOWING ROCK 
WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA- Property Card Printed: 11/10/16 Card : 1 of 0 

NBHD: 0302 Hwy 221 South/Caldwell Line 

Topo3: 
Traffic: 

Size BaseRate ~ 
0.9400 40000 -15 

Rate/AC 34,787.23 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

Road 1: dirt road 
Road 2: 

AdjRate Value 
34000 32,700 

Value 32,700 

Ag Use LN Soil 

Rate Ovrd Rte 

Route#: 
Appraiser: VBR 

Acres Rate Value 

Value 

Total: 

111516 BCC Meeting

148



PAR ID: 1887-55-8426-000 I Map#: 1887-02 I JURIS CD: F12 BLOWING ROCK I Route#: 
PIN#: 1887-55-8426-000 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA- Property Card Printed: 11/10/16 Card : 1 of 1 Appraiser: VBR 

Ownership: 1754988 SITUS: 
HIS HIGH PLACES, INC 206 1208 ALDERL Y CIR fo ;I DECK 
PO BOX 1418 BLOWING ROCK 28605 6 (60) 10 6 
BOONE NC 28607 

26 20 

Legal Descri(!tion: RES/RES RES 

Lot 1 r Graggs Woods 
9 (234) 9 (1801 9 

Subd: 

Parcel: R01 residentia/1 family Sale Dt I s Price Db/Pg Valid. Code 30 26 20 

Fronting: 9 residential 08/26/15 DEE 725,000 1821/1 VALID SALE 
Location: 6 neighborhood or spot 13 

BSMT UNFINlRES.•RES 
3 07/20/05 PLA 018/328 (338) 

Parking: 0 none 18 
RES/RES 

18 No Valid Sale (540) 
Utility: 4 private water; 5 septic 21 

Zoning: 26 

Sketch Vectors 30 Main Bt.rilding 

Vector 25 5 
(992) 

--- OFP 20 

AOOCU22R26U13R20D21 L20D14L26 A01 U22CU13R26D13L26 A02U35CU9R26D9L26 8 (200) 8 12 24 

A03U35R26CU9R20D9L20 A04CD7R30U7R20U14L24D14L26 A05U44R1 OCU6R 1 OD6L 10 25 f;,~ 22 

A06U5CL5U12R5D12 A07U17L5CD8L25U8R25 A08U17CL30U18R30D18 
12 

14 14 
~ 

DECK 
(546) 

26 20 

7 
71 

30 

Improvement Description: R1 log Assessment: 2016 

Story: 1 FP Stacks: 1 Bsmt: full Phys Cond: %Complete: 100 
$48,800 

Openings: 1 BSMTGar: 2 CDU : VG Grade: B-
Land: Excluded: 

Class: 
BLDG: $415,700 Ag Use: 

Ext Wall : log Prefab FP: 1 Attic: none Over Depr Tb: C&D Fact: SWF: 1 Market: $464,500 
Yr Bit: 1995 Rooms: 5 Baths: 4 Fnct Dep %: C&D Desc: 

Eft Year: Bedrooms: 2 Half: 0 Fnct Desc: TV/SF 121 .72 Deferred : $0 
Heating: central Unfin Area: Extra Fixt: 2 Econ Dep%: SP/SF 189.99 Exempt: $0 
Fuel: gas Fin Bsmt Area: 420 Mise 1: Econ Desc: RCN/SF 94.05 Taxable: $464,500 
System: electric Rec Room Area: Mise 2: N-Fact: 1 RCNLD/SF 88.41 

L# Low 1st 2nd 3rd Description Area Value(RCN) Yr Bt EfYr Bt Grd CDU %Gd Table %Cm(! RCNLD Entrances 
D 

w 0 Log 992 180,_9_90 1995 B- VG 94 100 170,131 Revisit: 
E 

.... ------- --···· ............... 

L 1 60 10 10 1 S_tory Frame/1 Story 338 _48._3.5.0 1995 B- VG 94 100 ....... -:15. ,~5_() Reason: ... 
L 2 10 10 1 Story FramE)/1 Story 234 28,_9?0 1995 B- VG 94 100 _2?,:2_4_() ~Date Code Rev2 .... .... . .. 
A 3 10 1 Story_ Frame 180 13.~_?0 1995 B- VG 94 100 ..... 1_;2,!).7.() JL 04/28/13 REVIEW ... . .... . .. 
D 4 31 Wood Deck 546 10,480 1995 B- VG 94 100 9,850 VBR 09/29/05 ESTIMATE 
D - .... . .... . .. .. . ..... ····-· ..... ······--·· 
N 5 31 Wood Deck 60 1 '1_5() . 1995 B- VG --·····-- 94 100 .. 1.()?() 
s 6 11 _()pen Frame Porch 60 1,9_90 1995 B- VG 94 100 1,!37.0 ........... . .... . ... 

7 11 ()pE:)n FrameP(lrch 200 6,620 1995 B- VG 94 100 ... . .... _€),:2_20 

8 10 10 1 Story Frame/1 Story 540 66,870 1995 B- VG 94 100 62,860 

.... . .... Building Permit 

Date Permit# Permit$ CO Date 

.. 

HSF: 3,816 TSF: 5,020 358,910 Total: 337,371 

111516 BCC Meeting

149



PAR ID: 1887-55-8426-000 Map#: 1887-02 I JURIS CD: F12 BLOWING ROCK Route#: 
PIN#: 1887-55-8426-000 WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA- Property Card Printed: 11/10/16 Card: 1 of 1 Appraiser: VBR 

Land Description: LUC: R01 NBHD: 0305 Graggs Woods Ag Use LN Soi l Acres Rate Value I 

N-Fact: Topo1: rolling Topo3: Road 1 : paved road 

Zoning: Topo2: Traffic: Road 2: 

L# ~Code Desc Size BaseRate MJ AdjRate Value 

1 A A1 Primary Res Site 1.0000 40000 0 40000 40,000 

2 A A8 Resid Acreage 0.8800 10000 0 10000 8,800 

Total Parcel Size : AC 1.8800 Rate/AC 25,957.45 Value 48,800 Value 
- ----

I Comments: I 
!!_ Comment 

OB&Y 
L# ~oae Yr Bit Eft Yr 

2002 

Area Grd Units Mod Cd -- ---- ·-· - ..... -- ·-· -. - ·-· --·· ...... - .... ,... ,.,_, .............. ...... Rate Ovrd Rte 

111.97 

RCN Cnd Fnct %Cmp %Gd RCNLD 

!8_. ~~~ 

Wxl 

38 X 20 2 RG7 Fr/Ga With Apt 

X 

X 

X 

X 

760 c 85,100 G 92 

Total: 78,300 

111516 BCC Meeting

150



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

FINANCE MATTERS 
A. Proposed Juvenile Crime Prevention Council (JCPC) Budget Amendment 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Margaret Pierce, Finance Director, will request the Board approve a revised Juvenile Crime 
Prevention Council (JCPC) FY 2016-17 Funding Allocation form.  One of the original programs 
was unable to accept funds so the Council is requesting to transfer $2,100 to the Administrative 
line to be used for a State of the Child event and other miscellaneous expenses.   No additional 
County funding is required.   
 
Board approval of the revised funding allocation is requested. 
 
 
 
  

111516 BCC Meeting

151

111516 BCC Meeting

151



W A T A U G A   C O U N T Y 
FINANCE OFFICE 

   814 West King St., Room 216 - Boone, NC  28607  - Phone (828) 265-8007  Fax (828) 265-8006 

M E M O R A N D U M 

TO: Deron Geouque, County Manager 
FROM: Margaret Pierce, Finance Director 
SUBJECT: JCPC Budget Change 
DATE: October 27, 2016 

Attached please find a revised Juvenile Crime Prevention Council 2016-17 Funding Allocation 
form. One of the original programs was not able to accept the funds awarded so the Council is 
requesting the $2,100 be transferred to the Administrative line to be used for a State of the Child 
event and other miscellaneous expenses. 

I will be available for any questions and to present this request. Board approval of the revised 
Funding Allocation is requested.  

111516 BCC Meeting

152

111516 BCC Meeting

152



$33,567      Rate: 30%

OTHER OTHER
# Program Provider DPS-JCPC 

Funding
County Cash 

Match
Local Cash 

Match
Local In-

Kind
State/ 

Federal
Funds Total % Non 

DPS-JCPC 
Program 

Revenues

1 JCPC Administrative Funds $2,400 $2,400

2 Juvenile Mediation $10,750 $3,225 $13,975 23%

3 Project Challenge $42,595 $12,779 $55,374 23%

4 Youth Resource Center $42,475 $12,743 $55,218 23%

5 Crossnore School $16,065 $4,820 $20,885 23%

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

TOTALS: $114,285 $33,567 $147,852 23%

County
2016-2017 .

Amount of Unallocated Funds      

Amount of funds reverted back to DPS      Chairperson, Juvenile Crime Prevention Council           (Date)

Discretionary Funds added      

check type                             initial plan    update    final    

Chairperson, Board of County Commissioners             (Date)
or County Finance Officer

Reviewed by_____________________________________
Area Consultant Date

Reviewed by_____________________________________
Program Assistant Date

Verified by_____________________________________
Designated State Office Staff Date ver 03/04/2016

Watauga County
  NC DPS - Community Programs - County Funding Plan

Available Funds:        $ $114,285      Local Match:          $

DPS JCPC funds must be committed with a Program Agreement submitted in NC Allies and electronically signed by authorized officials.

LOCAL FUNDING

The above plan was derived through a planning process by the  Watauga
Juvenile Crime Prevention Council and represents the County’s Plan for use of these funds in FY 

 -----DPS Use Only-----
X

111516 BCC Meeting

153

111516 BCC Meeting

153



Blank Page 
 
 

111516 BCC Meeting

154

111516 BCC Meeting

154



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

FINANCE MATTERS 
B. Vaya Health (Formerly Smoky Mountain Center) Quarterly Report 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Margaret Pierce, Finance Director, will present the Vaya Health Quarterly Financial Report 
as required by Statute.   
 
No action is required. 
 
 
 
  

111516 BCC Meeting

155

111516 BCC Meeting

155



                 W A T A U G A   C O U N T Y 
                               FINANCE OFFICE 
 814 West King St., Room 216 - Boone, NC  28607  - Phone (828) 265-8007  Fax (828) 265-8006 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M     
 
 
 TO:  Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 FROM: Margaret Pierce, Finance Director 
 SUBJECT: Vaya Health Quarterly Reports  
 DATE: November 1, 2016 
 
 
Attached is a copy of the quarterly fiscal monitoring report (FMR) from Vaya Health, 
formerly Smoky Mountain Center, for the quarter ended September 30, 2016.  This fiscal 
monitoring report was provided by Vaya Health to comply with the G.S. 122C-117(c).   
 
excerpt from G.S. 122C-117(c) 
 

(c)        Within 30 days of the end of each quarter of the fiscal year, the area 
director and finance officer of the area authority shall provide the quarterly report 
of the area authority to the county finance officer. The county finance officer shall 
provide the quarterly report to the board of county commissioners at the next 
regularly scheduled meeting of the board. The clerk of the board of 
commissioners shall notify the area director and the county finance officer if the 
quarterly report required by this subsection has not been submitted within the 
required period of time. This information shall be presented in a format prescribed 
by the county. At least twice a year, this information shall be presented in person 
and shall be read into the minutes of the meeting at which it is presented. In 
addition, the area director or finance officer of the area authority shall provide to 
the board of county commissioners ad hoc reports as requested by the board of 
county commissioners. 

111516 BCC Meeting

156

111516 BCC Meeting

156



# of month in the fiscal year  (July = 1, August = 2, . . . , June = 12)  ========> 3

1. REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL

Basis of Accounting: Modified Accrual X (1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6)

(check one) Accrual

2015-2016 ACTUAL BALANCE ANNUALIZED

ITEM BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET YR-TO-DATE (Col. 3-4) PERCENTAGE **

REVENUE

Service Fees from LME-Delivered Services 370,416          385,087          50,000            114,233               (64,233)                913.86%
Medicaid Pass Through Funds 60,000            50,344            60,000            32,686                27,314                 217.91%
Interest Earned 141,000          229,841          211,000          54,395                156,605               103.12%
Rental Income 53,772            53,772            53,772            13,443                40,329                 100.00%
Budgeted Fund Balance * (Detail in Item 4, below) 17,736,308     -                 35,558,863     -                      35,558,863          0.00%
Other Local 4,670,325       3,734,467       2,451,849       599,401               1,852,448            97.79%

Total Local Funds 23,031,821     4,453,511       38,385,484     814,158               37,571,326          8.48%

County Appropriations (by county, includes ABC Funds):
Alexander County 37,825            37,825            50,000            12,500                37,500                 100.00%
Alleghany County 115,483          115,483          115,483          28,871                86,612                 100.00%
Ashe County 189,566          189,566          189,566          47,392                142,175               100.00%
Avery County 89,600            89,600            89,600            22,400                67,200                 100.00%
Buncombe County 600,000          600,000          600,000          150,000               450,000               100.00%
Caldwell County 118,538          119,377          119,628          29,757                89,871                 99.50%
Cherokee County 75,000            75,000            75,000            18,750                56,250                 100.00%
Clay County 15,000            15,000            15,000            3,750                  11,250                 100.00%
Graham County 6,000              6,000              6,000              1,500                  4,500                   100.00%
Haywood County 101,900          116,762          101,900          25,258                76,642                 99.15%
Henderson County 528,612          528,612          528,612          132,153               396,459               100.00%
Jackson County 123,081          123,081          123,081          30,770                92,311                 100.00%
Macon County 106,623          106,623          106,623          26,656                79,967                 100.00%
Madison County 30,000            30,000            30,000            7,500                  22,500                 100.00%
McDowell County 67,856            67,856            67,856            16,964                50,892                 100.00%
Mitchell County 18,000            18,000            18,000            4,500                  13,500                 100.00%
Polk County 76,991            78,314            77,991            19,656                58,335                 100.81%
Rutherford County 102,168          102,168          102,168          25,542                76,626                 100.00%
Swain County 25,000            25,799            32,260            6,643                  25,617                 82.37%
Transylvania County 99,261            99,261            99,261            24,815                74,446                 100.00%
Watauga County 171,195          171,195          171,194          42,799                128,396               100.00%
Wilkes County 264,200          266,718          266,810          66,613                200,197               99.87%
Yancey County 26,000            26,000            26,000            6,500                  19,500                 100.00%
Total County Funds 2,987,899       3,008,241       3,012,033       751,286               2,260,746            99.77%

LME Systems Admin. Funds (Cost Model) -                      
DMH/DD/SAS Administrative Funds (% basis) 2,441,587       2,441,587       -                  -                      -                      
DMH/DD/SAS Services Funding 64,720,453     62,587,966     54,619,285     11,756,411          42,862,874          86.10%
DMA Capitation Funding 304,657,129   307,814,900   314,745,445   78,664,610          236,080,835        99.97%
DMA Risk Reserve Funding 6,217,492       6,258,689       6,423,376       1,572,762            4,850,614            97.94%
All Other State/Federal Funds 101,000          80,566            128,000          56,278                71,722                 175.87%

Total State and Federal Funds 378,137,661   379,183,708   375,916,106   92,050,061          283,866,045        102.66%

TOTAL REVENUE 404,157,381   386,645,460   417,313,623   93,615,505          323,698,117        89.73%

EXPENDITURES:

System Management/Administration/Care Coordination 52,065,620     46,275,865     57,173,485     10,104,954 47,068,531          70.70%
LME Provided Services 4,042,644       2,850,572       2,240,935       943,406               1,297,529            168.40%
Provider Payments (State Funds) 335,399,045   324,388,145   346,246,877   76,350,017          269,896,860        88.20%
Provider Payments (Federal Funds) 7,853,268       6,677,173       6,995,011       2,647,747            4,347,264            151.41%
Provider Payments (County/Local) 3,235,764       3,016,429       3,229,290       569,954               2,659,336            70.60%
All Other 1,561,040       1,296,009       1,428,025       314,299               1,113,726            88.04%
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 404,157,381   384,504,193   417,313,623   90,930,377          326,383,246        87.16%

Net Income (from Operations and Risk Reserve) 2,141,267       2,685,126            

Beginning Unrestricted/Unassigned Fund Balance 67,730,176     8,031,041            
Balance in Restricted DMA Risk Reserve 24,877,639     26,450,400          

Current Estimated Unrestricted/Unassigned Fund Balance 1.99% 8,031,041       1.41% 5,885,921            
and percent of budgeted expenditures

2. CURRENT CASH POSITION

Current Cash in Bank (Including Risk Reserve)

3. SERVICE EXCEPTIONS ( Provided Based on System Capability)

Services authorized but not billed (IBNR) 16,435,197                               

120,888,788                             

LME / MCO NAME: VAYA HEALTH FOR THE PERIOD ENDING: September 30, 2016

PRIOR YEAR CURRENT YEAR

(See Note Below about FB)

Page 1 of 2

111516 BCC Meeting

157

111516 BCC Meeting

157



4. DETAIL ON BUDGETED FUND BALANCE Budgeted

Utilized         

Year-to-Date

Remaining 

Balance % Utilized

Payments to Providers FY1516 MOE unspent-alloc to FY1617 138,039 0 138,039               0.00%
Payments to Providers Single Stream Replacement Funding 20,512,488 5,128,122 15,384,366          100.00%
Other Initiatives C3@356 Urgent Care Funding 2,850,000 412,984 2,437,016            57.96%
Other Initiatives Western Region Crisis Expansion 100,000 100,000               0.00%
Other Initiatives Northern Region Crisis Expansion 9,500 9,500 -                      400.00%
Other Initiatives Child Facility Based Crisis 500,000 0 500,000               0.00%
Other Initiatives FBC in Caldwell County 100,000 0 100,000               0.00%
Other Initiatives IDD Crisis Service Expansion 1,000,000 0 1,000,000            0.00%
Other Initiatives Integrated Collab Care Svc Initiatives 4,350,579 339,314 4,011,265            31.20%
Other Initiatives Admin Office - Relocation Fund 38,895 42,315 (3,420)                 435.17%
Other Initiatives Technology Enabled Care and Expo 61,900 14,862 47,038                 96.04%
Other Initiatives Youth Villages LifeSet Program 629,027 629,027               0.00%
Other Initiatives Mediation, Transcription & Other Legal 470,000 19,735 450,265               16.80%
Other Initiatives Equipment & Leasehold Improvements 807,338 3,500 803,838               1.73%
Other Initiatives TCLI Legal Aid 450,000 37,500 412,500               33.33%
Other Initiatives Replacement Bridge Funding 192,467 48,117 144,350               100.00%
Other Initiatives Data Security Initiatives 0 26,994 (26,994)                -
Other Initiatives Medicaid Reform Readiness 125,000 0 125,000               0.00%
Other Initiatives Community Engagement/Awareness 619,130 33,450 585,680               21.61%
Other Initiatives Peer Run Recovery Centers 75,000 2,000 73,000                 10.67%
Other Initiatives MAHEC 330,000 1,198 328,802               1.45%
Other Initiatives Jail Diversion 65,000 0 65,000                 0.00%
Other Initiatives Medication Assisted Tx for Opioid Users 250,000 0 250,000               0.00%
Other Initiatives Project Search 70,000 0 70,000                 0.00%
Other Initiatives Substance Use Recovery Housing 200,000 0 200,000               0.00%
Other Initiatives Veteran's Program 225,000 0 225,000               0.00%
Other Initiatives Rebranding 1,389,500 51,776 1,337,724            14.90%

Total Fund Balance Appropriated/Utilized to Date 35,558,863 6,171,366 29,387,497 69.42%

LME / MCO Director Date LME/MCO Finance Officer Date Area Board Chair Date

Quarterly Fiscal Monitoring Report - Explanation of Revenue and Expenditure Variances

VAYA HEALTH

For the period ending: September 30, 2016

ITEM Explanation

Revenues Less than 90%

Fund Balance Appropriated (0.00%) Fund Balance Appropriation is budgeted - but no actual will be recorded on the financial statements.
Swain County MOE (82.4%) Swain County ABC funds are under the estimated Budget amount as of 9/3082016.

Expenditures Exceeding 110%

LME Provided Services (168.4%) There are Leasehold Improvement Expenses in the c3@356 project that do not have a budget at 9/30/2016.
Provider Payments (Federal Funds) (151.4%) In programs such as GERO and Housing - the Federal Portion is utilized first causing the overutilization as of 9/30/2016.

(This variance will get less and less as the year goes by)

Other Notes

County MOE funds are recorded on an accrual basis - therefore the amount shown in the report above may not reflect the actual amount of funds received from each county.

If County Funds of less than 25% of the Annual Budgeted amount have been received - the remaining has been accrued and is considered a receivable at 9/30/2016.

If County MOE funds in excess of 25% of the Annual Budgeted amount have been received - the excess has been deferred and not reflected as income as of 9/30/2016.

Please note that any ABC funds collected will be shown in the same line as MOE funds for that county.   ABC Funds are recorded on a Cash Basis.

The reason that the Unrestricted/Unassigned Fund Balance at the beginning of FY 15-16 is so much lower than Unrestricted/Unassigned Fund Balance at the beginning of
of FY 16-17 is due to all the Commitments that the Board of Directors for Vaya Health have approved.  These amounts have been removed from the
Unrestricted/Unassigned Fund Balance Section and are now being considered Board Committed Fund Balance.

* We certify (a) this report to contain accurate and complete information, (b) explanations are provided for any expenditure item with an annualized expenditure rate greater then 110% and 
for any revenue item with an annualized receipt rate of less than 90%, and (c) a copy of this report has been provided to each county manager in the catchment area".

Page 2 of 2

111516 BCC Meeting

158

111516 BCC Meeting

158

mailto:C3@356%20Urgent%20Care%20Funding


AGENDA ITEM 8: 

FINANCE MATTERS 
C. Proposed Inmate Catastrophic Insurance Contract 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Margaret Pierce, Finance Director, will present the contract renewal with Insurance 
Management Consultants for catastrophic insurance for inmates housed in the County jail.  The 
insurance shields the County from large medical claims that occur while inmates are being 
housed in the Watauga County Jail. 
 
Board action is requested to approve the contract with Insurance Management Consultants, Inc. 
for catastrophic insurance coverage in the amount of $28,208.88 with a $10,000 deductible.  This 
is a $701 reduction from last year’s renewal.  Adequate funds are available to cover the 
contracted cost. 
 
Board action is required to renew the contract with Insurance Management Consultants, Inc. in 
the amount of $28,208.88.   
 
  

111516 BCC Meeting

159

111516 BCC Meeting

159



                  W A T A U G A   C O U N T Y 
                               FINANCE OFFICE 
   814 West King St., Room 216 - Boone, NC  28607  -  Phone (828) 265-8007  Fax (828) 265-8006 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M     
 
 
 TO:  Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 FROM: Margaret Pierce, Finance Director 
 SUBJECT: Inmate Catastrophic Insurance Contract  
 DATE: October 27, 2016 
 
Attached please find information on the renewal contract from Insurance Management Consultants, 
Inc/Hunt Insurance Group LLC for the insurance policy for large medical claims incurred on behalf 
of inmates in the County’s care. The renewal amount is $28,208.88 with the $10,000 deductible. 
This is a $701 decrease from last year’s premium. Funds are available in the current jail budget for 
this contract. I recommend acceptance of option 1 with the $10,000 deductible. 
 
Board approval is requested for the contract. 
 
  

111516 BCC Meeting

160

111516 BCC Meeting

160



 

CATASTROPHIC INMATE MEDICAL INSURANCE QUOTE 
      
 
  Name of Insured:       Watauga County Sheriff’s Office 
   Date of Quote:    10/26/2016 
  Effective Date:   12/1/16    
  Insurance Carrier:  United HealthCare-OptumHealth 
  Inmate Count:   58 Inmates 
 
 
 
COVERAGE BENEFITS: 
 

 Off-Site Inpatient Hospital Services and Outpatient Surgical and attending Physician Services. The 
maximum eligible expenses shall be limited to the lesser of the amount paid, or up to an “Average 
Daily Maximum” (ADM) per admission of UNLIMITED All Days.  

 
 

Option 1 Option 2

$250,000 $250,000
$10,000 $15,000

58 58
$40.53 $38.24

$28,208.88 $26,615.04

 - All charges in connection with security or guarding an inmate
 - All charges paid outside the terms of the Plan Document

Total Estimated Annual Premium:

 - All charges for which government authorities are not legally obligated to pay
 - All charges in connection with the rehab portion of a substance abuse claim
 - All charges in connection with the rehab portion of a mental/nervous claim
 - All charges which are incurred after the release from custody

Rate per Inmate, per Month:

EXCLUSIONS OR LIMITATIONS: (For a complete list refer to policy)

COVERAGE & PREMIUM BASIS:

Limit of Coverage per Inmate:
Specific Deductible per Inmate:
Current Inmate Population:

 

         

 
ASSUMPTIONS AND CONDITIONS: 
 

 This quote is an estimate based on data provided & subject to a completed application 
 This quotation contains general information & is not a contract or binder of insurance 
 Eligible claims are those occurring in 12 months and paid in 18 months 
 The Company reserves the right to audit the inmate count 
 This proposal directly reflects administration over ride 5% 
 This proposal directly reflects commission of 17% 
 AIDS/HIV and Pregnancy claims included 
 No pre-existing conditions exclusions 
 Large claim updates may be required 
 Prior to Booking claims covered  
 Quote is valid until 11.30.16 

 

Hunt Insurance Group LLC 
3606 Maclay Boulevard S, Ste 204 

Tallahassee, FL 32312 
(850) 385-3636 • (850) 385-2124 

111516 BCC Meeting

161

111516 BCC Meeting

161



Blank Page 
 
 

111516 BCC Meeting

162

111516 BCC Meeting

162



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A.  Proposed Forest Service Lease  

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The Forestry Service currently leases a one-half acre site at the County landfill.  The lease was 
entered into in 2004 and was an open ended lease which is no longer acceptable under state 
policy.   
 
The Forest Service wishes to enter into a three (3) year lease effective December 1, 2016.  
 
Board approval, contingent upon County Attorney review, is required to approve the lease and 
completion of PO-28 Lease proposal form.   
 
Staff seeks direction from the Board.  
 
 
    
 
 
  

111516 BCC Meeting

163

111516 BCC Meeting

163



1

Anita.Fogle

From: Deron.Geouque
Sent: Friday, November 04, 2016 2:41 PM
To: Anita.Fogle
Subject: FW: draft email New NCFS lease with Watauga 
Attachments: 2016_11_03_14_47_03.pdf; PO-28 WATAUGA LAND AT LANDFILL.doc; D-2 Watagua 

County Lease (2016).docx

 
 
Deron Geouque 
Watauga County Manager 
814 West King Street 
Boone, NC 28607 
(P) 828-265-8000 
(F) 828-264-3230 
Email Deron.Geouque@watgov.org 
 
From: Jones, Frances [mailto:frances.jones@ncagr.gov]  
Sent: Friday, November 04, 2016 2:08 PM 
To: Deron.Geouque 
Cc: Jones, Frances 
Subject: FW: draft email New NCFS lease with Watauga  
 

Mr. Geouque, the NC Forest Service entered into a lease with Watauga County in 2004 for land 
at the former county landfill.  It is an open ended lease which is no longer acceptable under 
state policy  (I have attached the old lease for your convenience)   We wish to enter into a new 
three year lease effective December 1, 2016.  I have enclosed a PO‐28 Lease Proposal that I 
need you to complete and also I have attached a new lease.  Please take a look at the new 
lease and if you are good with it, please print and execute two copies and return them by mail 
to me at the address below.  Also scan one to me.  Do not hesitate to contact me if you have 
any questions. 
 
Frances Jones 
NCFS Property Manager 
1616 Mail Service Center 
Raleigh NC  27699 
Phone:  919-857-4837 
Fax:  919-857-4802 
 

111516 BCC Meeting

164

111516 BCC Meeting

164



Watauga County  Page 1 of 6 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 

LEASE AGREEMENT 
COUNTY OF  _WATAUGA_ 
 
 
 THIS LEASE AGREEMENT (hereinafter "Lease"), made and entered into 
as of the last date set forth in the notary acknowledgements below by and between,  
THE COUNTY OF WATAUGA, hereinafter designated as Lessor, and the STATE OF 
NORTH CAROLINA through the North Carolina Department of Agriclture & 
Consumer Services hereinafter designated as Lessee; 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 
 THAT WHEREAS, authority to approve and execute this lease agreement was 
delegated to the Department of Administration by resolution adopted by the Governor 
and Council of State on the 1st day of September, 1981; and as amended on September 8, 
1999 and December 7th, 1999, and April 1, 2003 
 
WHEREAS, the Department of Administration has delegated to the Department of 
Agriculture the authority to execute this lease agreement by a memorandum dated the 26th 
day of March, 1982; and 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the parties hereto have mutually agreed to the terms of this lease 
agreement as hereinafter set out, 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the rental hereinafter agreed to be paid 
and the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, Lessor does hereby let and lease unto 
Lessee and Lessee hereby takes and leases from Lessor for and during the period of time 
and subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set out certain space in the Township 
of Boone, County of Watauga, North Carolina, more particularly described as follows: 
 

A certain tract located east of the Town of Boone, at the end of Landfill Road, and more 
particularly described as follows. Beginning at a point 16 feet South off of Landfill Road, 
and being 28 feet South of the currant Animal Control office, running in an eastwardly 
direction 205 feet parallel with and 28 feet from the existing Animal Control office to a 
point; thence 115 feet in a Southward direction; thence 180 feet In a Westward direction; 
thence following an arc in a northwest direction 102 feet to the point of beginning, and 
being a part of a 27.99 acre tract currently owned by Watauga County, being upon the 
site of the former county landfill (hereinafter the “Premises) 
 

The above contains approximately 0.4734 acres of land. (See Attachment A) 
 

 
 THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS LEASE AGREEMENT ARE AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The term of this lease shall be for a period of Three (3) Years commencing 
on the 1st day of  December, 2016, or as soon thereafter as the leased premises are ceded 
to the Lessee and terminating on the 30th  day of November, 2019. 

2. During the term of the lease, the Lessee shall pay to the Lessor as rental for 
said premises the sum of  One ($ 1) Dollar for term. 

111516 BCC Meeting

165

111516 BCC Meeting

165



Watauga County  Page 2 of 6 

 
3. Lessor grants free and unrestricted ingress and egress to the Premises during 

the term of this lease and any renewals thereof. 
 
4. During the lease term, the Lessor shall keep the leased premises in good repair 

and tenantable condition, to the end that all facilities are kept in an operative condition.  
In case Lessor shall, after notice in writing from the Lessee in regard to a specified 
condition, fail, refuse, or neglect to correct said condition, or in the event of an 
emergency constituting a hazard to the health or safety of the Lessee's employees, 
property, or invitees, it shall then be lawful for the Lessee in addition to any other remedy 
the Lessee may have, to make such repair at its own cost and to deduct the amount 
thereof from the rent that may then be thereafter become due hereunder.  Lessor reserves 
the right to enter and inspect the leased premises, at reasonable times, and to make 
necessary repairs to the premises. 

 
5. It is understood and agreed that Lessor shall, at the beginning of said lease 

term as hereinabove set forth, have the leased premises in a condition satisfactory to 
Lessee, suitable for the purposes for which the leased premises will be used by Lessee. 

 
6.  Lessee shall have the right during the existence of this lease, with the Lessor's 

prior consent, to make alterations, attach fixtures, and erect additions, structures or signs 
in or upon the leased premises. Such fixtures, additions, structures or signs so placed in or 
upon or attached to the leased premises under this lease or any prior lease of which this 
lease is an extension or renewal shall be and remain the property of the Lessee and may 
be removed therefrom by the Lessee prior to the termination of this lease or any renewal 
or extension thereof, or within a reasonable time thereafter.  

 
7. If the said premises be destroyed by flood or other casualty without fault of 

the Lessee, this lease shall immediately terminate and the rent shall be apportioned to the 
time of the damage.  In case of partial destruction or damage by flood or other casualty 
without fault of the Lessee, so as to render the premises untenantable in whole or in part, 
there shall be an apportionment of the rent until the damage has been repaired.  During 
such period of repair, Lessee shall have the right to obtain similar office space at the 
expense of Lessee or the Lessee may terminate the lease by giving fifteen (15) days 
written notice to the Lessor. 

 
8.   Lessor shall be liable to Lessee for any loss or damages suffered by Lessee 

which are a direct result of the failure of Lessor to perform an act required by this lease, 
and provided that Lessor could reasonably have complied with said requirement. 

 
9. Upon termination of this lease, the Lessee will peaceably surrender the leased 

premises in as good order and condition as when received, reasonable use and wear and 
damage by fire, war, riots, insurrection, public calamity, by the elements, by act of God, 
or by circumstances over which Lessee had no control or for which Lessor is responsible 
pursuant to this lease, excepted. 

 
10. Lessor agrees that the Lessee, upon keeping and performing the covenants and 

agreements herein contained, shall at all times during the existence of this lease 
peaceably and quietly have, hold, and enjoy the leased premises free from the adverse 
claims of any person. 

 

111516 BCC Meeting

166

111516 BCC Meeting

166



Watauga County  Page 3 of 6 

11. The failure of either party to insist in any instance upon strict performance of 
any of the terms and conditions herein set forth shall not be construed as a waiver of the 
same in any other instance.  No modification of any provision hereof and no cancellation 
or surrender thereof shall be valid unless in writing and signed and agreed to by both 
parties. 

 
12. Any hold over after the expiration of the said term or any extension thereof, 

shall be construed to be a tenancy from month to month, and shall otherwise be on the 
terms and conditions herein specified, so far as applicable; however, either party shall 
give not less than sixty (60) days written notice to terminate the tenancy. 

 
13. The parties to this lease agree and understand that the continuation of this 

lease agreement for the term period set forth herein, or any extension or renewal thereof, 
is dependent upon and subject to the appropriation, allocation or availability of funds for 
this purpose to the agency of the Lessee responsible for payment of said rental.  The 
parties to this lease also agree that in the event the agency of the Lessee or that body 
responsible for the appropriations of said funds, in its sole discretion, determines, in view 
of its total local office operations that available funding for the payment of rents are 
insufficient to continue the operation of its local offices on the premise leased herein, it 
may choose to terminate the lease agreement set forth herein by giving Lessor written 
notice of said termination, and the lease agreement shall terminate immediately without 
any further liability to Lessee. 

 
14.  All notices herein provided to be given, or which may be given by either 

party to the other, shall be deemed to have been fully given when made in writing and 
deposited in the United States mail, certified and postage prepaid and addressed as 
follows: To the Lessor at Watauga County, 842 West King Street, Suite 1, Boone, 
North Carolina  28807; the Lessee at NC Department of Agriculture & Consumer 
Services, Attn:  Real Property Agent, 1001 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North 
Carolina 27699-1001.  Nothing herein contained shall preclude the giving of such notice 
by personal service.  The address to which notices shall be mailed as aforesaid to either 
party may be changed by written notice. 

 
15. N.C.G.S. § 133-32 and Executive Order 24 prohibit the offer to, or acceptance 

by, any State Employee of any gift from anyone with a contract with the State, or from 
any person seeking to do business with the State.  By execution of any response in this 
procurement, you attest, for your entire organization and its employees or agents, that you 
are not aware that any such gift has been offered, accepted, or promised by any 
employees of your organization. 

 
16. Lessee shall not assign this lease or sublet any part of the Leased Premises 

without the written consent of the Lessor. 
 
17. Lessor agrees that the Lessee's decision to self insure satisfies all insurance 

requirements of this lease applicable to the Lessee. 
 
18. The State of North Carolina is an immune sovereign and is not ordinarily 

subject to suit. However, the State has enacted the North Carolina Tort Claims Act, 
pursuant to which the State may be liable for the torts of its officers and employees, 
within the terms of the  Act. Accordingly, the Lessee will be primarily liable for any 
claims within the coverage of the Tort Claims Act. 

 

111516 BCC Meeting

167

111516 BCC Meeting

167



Watauga County  Page 4 of 6 

19. This Lease Agreement shall be binding upon and enforceable against, and 
shall inure to the benefit of, Lessor and Lessee and their respective legal representatives, 
successors and permitted assigns. 

 
20. Lessor understand and acknowledges that Lessee will use the Premises as a 

county headquarters site. 
 
21. It is understood and agreed that Lessee shall the right to remove from the 

Premises all items of personal property and other items used in connection with Lessee’s 
operations on the Premises belonging to Lessee.  Lessor shall be responsible for all storm 
water fees and real property taxes assessed against the Premises. 

 
22. If Lessee is unable to secure all necessary permits or governmental approvals 

to construct or install its desired improvements on the Premises, then Lessee, at its option 
and in its sole discretion, may terminate this lease without any further obligation 
hereunder. 
   
  
  

111516 BCC Meeting

168

111516 BCC Meeting

168



Watauga County  Page 5 of 6 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, this lease has been executed by the parties hereto, in 
duplicate originals, as of the date first above written. 
 

 
LESSEE: 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

 
 
 

By:_____________________________ (SEAL) 
G. Kent Yelverton, P.E. 
Director 
NCDA&CS Property & Construction Division 

 
 

 
 
 
STATE OF NORTH  CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF WAKE 
 

 I, __________________________, A Notary Public in and for the County 
and State aforesaid, do hereby certify that G. Kent Yelverton personally came before me 
this day and acknowledged the due execution by him of the foregoing instrument as 
Director of Property and Construction Division for the North Carolina Department of 
Agriculture and Consumer Services, in accordance with the authority vested in him and 
for the purposes therein expressed.  
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and Notarial Seal this the 
____day of ____________________, 20___. 
 
 
              
                                                                        Notary Public 
      Printed Name:      
 
 
My Commission expires ______________________ 
 
 
  

111516 BCC Meeting

169

111516 BCC Meeting

169



Watauga County  Page 6 of 6 

 
 

LESSOR:  County of Watauga 
 

 
 

By: _______________________________ (SEAL) 
     Signature 
 _______________________________ 
 Print Name  and Title 
 
 
 
  
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF __________________________ 
 
    
 I, ______________________________, a Notary Public in and for the County 
and State aforesaid, do hereby certify that _____________________, Manager of 
__________________________________ personally came before me this day and 
acknowledge the due execution of the foregoing instrument on behalf of the company. 
   

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and Notarial Seal this the 
____day of ____________________, 20___. 

 
                                                             
                                                     Notary Public 
      Printed Name:      
 
My Commission expires       

111516 BCC Meeting

170

111516 BCC Meeting

170



THE STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY  EXPENSES 
INCURRED BY THE PROPOSER IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS PROPOSAL. 

FAXED PROPOSALS ARE NOT ACCEPTABLE. 
PROPOSAL TO LEASE TO THE STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA   - PO-28 

1.  NAME OF LESSOR: 
COUNTY OF WATAUGA 

2.  LESSOR’S AGENT: DERON GEOUQUE 
 

INDICATE EACH LESSOR’S BUSINESS CLASSIFICATION AS APPLICABLE:   
___A.  PROPRIETORSHIP ______B.  PARTNERSHIP ____C.  CORPORATION  _____D.  X 
GOVERNMENTAL  ____E.  NON-PROFIT ____F. ***(HUB) HISTORICALLY UNDERUTILIZED 
BUSINESSES ____G.  OTHER:__________ 
MAILING ADDRESS:842 WEST KING ST SUITE 1 MAILING ADDRESS 
CITY:     BOONE NC  28607 CITY:                                ZIP: 
PHONE# 828 265 8000   FAX#:  828 264 3230 PHONE#:                          FAX#: 
E-MAIL:    deron.geouque@watgov.org E-MAIL: 
3.  SPACE LOCATION:(including building name, floors involved & suite or room numbers unless entire 
floor)  .473 ACRES OF LAND ON FORMER COUNTY LANDFILL  
STREET ADDRESS                                              CITY                              COUNTY         ZIP CODE 
671 LANDFILL ROAD,                                    BOONE NC                        WATAUGA           28607 
4.  ATTACH FLOOR PLAN TO SCALE SHOWING THE SIZE AND LAYOUT OF SPACE OFFERED) 
5.  GROSS SQUARE 
FOOTAGE BEFORE 
NET USAGE 
COMPUTED 

A. OFFICE B.  WAREHOUSE C.  OTHER   
.43 AC LAND 

6.  All proposals must be submitted on the basis of net square footage as defined on reverse side of this 
sheet and in Specifications  (PO-27) 
A.  DESIRED PROPOSAL (See PO-27 Items VI and XII-A) 

TYPE OF 
SPACE 

TOTAL 
NET SQ. 

FT. 

ANNUAL 
RENTAL 

ANNUAL 
RENT 

PER SQ. 
FT. 

UTILITIES JANITORIAL 
SERVICES 

REQUIRED 
CLIENTELE 
PARKING 
SPACES 

OFFICE       
WAREHOUSE       
OTHER .43 AC 1.00     
TOTALS    XXXX XXXX XXXX 
Lessor will provide (___) employee parking spaces in above proposal at no additional charge to the State. 
(See explanation in PO-27 Item VI - Parking) 
Comments: 

ERRORS BY PROPOSERS IN CALCULATING NET SQUARE FOOTAGE WILL REDUCE THE 
ANNUAL RENTAL WITHOUT CHANGING THE PROPOSED RATE PER SQUARE FOOT IN THE 

PROPOSAL 
 
B.  OPTIONAL ALTERNATE PROPOSAL NO. 1 (See PO-27 ITEMS VI AND XII-B) 

(FOR PROPOSALS NOT INCLUDINING UTILITIES AND/OR JANITORIAL SERVICES) 
TYPE OF 
SPACE 

TOTAL 
NET SQ. 

FT. 

ANNUAL 
RENTAL 

ANNUAL 
RENT 

PER SQ. 
FT. 

UTILITIES JANITORIAL 
SERVICES 

 

OFFICE       
WAREHOUSE       
OTHER       
TOTALS   XXXX XXXX XXXX  
Lessor will provide (___) clientele parking spaces and (____) employee parking spaces 
Comments: 

7.  LEASE TERM :    3 Years   BEGINNING DATE:  DECEMBER 1, 2016 – NOV 30, 2019 
8.  RENEWAL OPTIONS, IF ANY:  NONE 
 
 
NOTE:  RATES THAT INCLUDE INDETERMINABLE PERCENTAGE INCREASES, SUCH AS 
UNCAPPED CPI INCREASES ETC., ARE NOT ACCEPTABLE DURING EITHER THE INITIAL TERM 
OR ANY RENEWAL PERIOD(S) 
The State of North Carolina supports the use of products and materials having recycled content in 
renovation and construction.  Will the proposed building provide facilities for handling materials to be 
recycled such as waste paper and cardboard?________YES    _________NO 
THE PROPOSED BUILDING MUST BE COMPLETELY FREE OF ANY HAZARDOUS ASBESTOS OR 
HAZARDOUS LEAD PAINT THROUGHOUT THE STATE’S TENANCY. 
Is the proposed building free of 
hazardous asbestos? 

YES ___________ NO__________________ 

Is the proposed building free of 
hazardous lead paint? 

YES ___________ NO__________________ 

DEPARTMENT:  DIVISION:   
CITY:   SQUARE FEET:              AGENT:  
CUT-OFF FOR RECEIVING PROPOSALS IS 4:00 PM       DATE:  

 

111516 BCC Meeting

171

111516 BCC Meeting

171



 
LESSOR: COUNTY OF WATAUGA 
9.  ADDITIONAL INFORMATION (Including any deviations from furnished specifications) 
 
 
 
 
 
10.  Does this space comply with local and State Building safety and zoning codes specifically including 
OSHA provisions for the handicapped, and applicable sections of the State Building Code  Volumes I-V? 
_________ _______YES _________________NO  ______________PARTIALLY 
EXPLAIN IF OTHER THAN “YES” IS CHECKED ABOVE: 
 
 
 
 
 
11.  This proposal is made in compliance with the specifications furnished by the Department of  
NCDA&CS.  I realize that the State reserves the right to reject this proposal for any reason it deems 
warranted.  This proposal is good until_ ___________________.  I ACKNOWLEDGE AND FURTHER 
AFFIRM THAT I am aware of and familiar with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 United 
States Code, Section 12101 et seq.) and if the above firm is awarded the contract, it will comply with the 
provisions of said Act. 
 
I AM AWARE THAT THERE WILL BE NO NEGOTIATION OF THE PER SQUARE FOOT PRICE THAT I 
HAVE PRESENTED IN THIS PROPOSAL.  I am further aware that annual per square foot rental rate(s) 
which include indeterminable percentage increase(s) such as uncapped Consumer Price Index increases 
etc., are not acceptable during either the initial term or any renewal period(s): 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
***(HUB) HISTORICALLY UNDERUTILIZED BUSINESSES (HUB) CONSIST OF  MINORITY, WOMEN 
AND DISABLED BUSINESS FIRMS THAT ARE AT LEAST FIFTY-ONE PERCENT OWNED AND 
OPERATED BY AN INDIVIDUAL(S) OF THE AFOREMENTIONED CATEGORIES.  ALSO INCLUDED 
IN THIS CATEGORY ARE DISABLED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES AND NON-PROFIT WORK 
CENTERS FOR THE BLIND AND SEVERELY DISABLED. 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Printed Name of Lessor 
 
_________________________________________        _______________________ 
Signature of Lessor                                                          Date 

MAILING /DELIVERY INSTRUCTIONS 
To be considered this proposal must be received by the State Property Office prior to 4:00 PM on 
the cutoff.  No faxed proposals will be accepted. PHONE: 919-807-4650 
Delivery Address If Delivered In Person:  Director, State Property Office, Room 4055, Administration 
Building, 116 West Jones Street, Raleigh, North Carolina 
Mailing Address If Sent Through Mail Service:  State Property Office, 1321 Mail Service Center, 
Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1321 

ENVELOPE SHOULD BE MARKED: 

(a) Lease proposal Enclosed   
(b) Cutoff Date for Receiving Proposals  
(c) Name of State Agency involved. 

 
NOTE:  Net square footage is a term meaning the area to be leased for occupancy by State Personnel 
and/or equipment.  To determine net square footage: 
1.  Compute the inside area of the space by measuring from the normal inside finish of exterior walls or 
the roomside finish of fixed corridor and shaft walls, or the center of tenant separating partitions. 
2.  Deduct from the Inside area the following: 
     *a.  Toilets and lounges 
     *b.  Entrance and elevator lobbies 
     *c.  Corridors 
      d.  Stairwells 
      e.  Elevators and escalator shafts 
       f.  Building equipment and service areas 
       g.  Stacks, shafts, and interior columns 

h. Other space not usable for State purposes 
 
*Deduct if space is not for exclusive use by the State.   Multiple State leases require a, b, and c to be 
deducted.  The State Property Office may make adjustments for areas deemed excessive for State use. 
DEPARTMENT:  DIVISION:   
CITY:  SQUARE FEET:       AGENT:  
CUT-OFF FOR RECEIVING PROPOSALS IS 4:00 PM       DATE:  
FORM (PO-28)                                                                                                                                  (2005) 

 
 
 

111516 BCC Meeting

172

111516 BCC Meeting

172



111516 BCC Meeting

173

IJ.C . Foresl S G~v,c£

C 7/ L Af0DFI Lc eJ) 
BootJE 1\lC.. aaa.or 

This Instrument drawn by: Eggers, Eggers, Egger&, and Eggers, AHorneys at Law, Boone, NC 281507 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
LEASE AGREEMENT 

COUNTY OF WATAUGA 

THIS LEASE AGREEM·ENT, made and entered into this ~ +tfay of 
-{'Oa....~ , 2004, by and between Watauga County, hereinafter referred to as 
Lessor; and the North Carolina Forestry Service, hereinafter referred to as 
Lessee; 

WITNESSETH: 

1. PREMISES: That for and In consideration of the mutual covenants and 
agreements herein contained and subject to the terms and conditions 
hereinafter set forth , the Lessor does hereby demise and lease unto the 
Lessee and the Lessee does hereby lease from the Lessor, a certain tract 
located east of the Town of Boooe, at the end of Landfill Road, and more 
particularly described as follows: Beginning at a point 16 feat South off of 
Landfill Road, and being 28 feet South of the current Animal Control office, 
running in an eastwardly direction 205 feat parallel with and 28 feat from 
the existing Animal Control office to a point; thence 115 feat in a 
Southward diraction; .thence 180 feet In a Westwardly direction; thence 
following an arc in a northwest direction 102 feat to the point of beginning, 
said tract containing approximately .473461 acres by coordinate geometry, 
and being a part of a 27.99 acre tract currently owned by Watauga County, 
being upon the site of the former county landfill . 

2. ACCEPTANCE OF PROPERlY; Neither the Lessor nor their agents have 
made any repr:esentatlons with respect to the building, the land upon which 
il is erected, or the leased property except as expressly set forth therein 
and no rights, easements, or licenses are acquired by the Lessee by 

111516 BCC Meeting

173



111516 BCC Meeting

174

' · 

implicaUon or otherwise except as expressly set forth in the provision of 
this Lease. The taking of possession of the leased property by the Lessee 
shall be conclusive evidence that the Lass&e accepts the satne" as bii" 
with the exception of the provision for Improvements as set forth herein. 

3. TERM : This contract of rental shall exist and continue for a term of three (3) 
year(s), commencing on the 15t day of June, 2004, and ending on the 31't 
day of May, 2007. 

4 . RENT: The Lessee shall pay to the Lessors, rant as follows: one dollar 
($1.00} per year beginning June 1, 2004, to be paid by the beginning of 
each year of the lease term. If both parties agree, this lease will 
automatically renew for successive one (1) year periods, unless either 
party gives written notice that they are not renewing this tease at least 
sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the currant lease term. provided 
further, that this option as granted herein, shall be subject to and 
conditioned upon Lessor and Lessee renegotiating and agreeing upon a 
modified rental amount for each option period. Except for the modified 
rent, the extended tarms shall ba upon the same terms, covenants and 
conditions as provided in this lease for the initial term. As a condition of 
the reduced rant contemplated by this lease, the Lessor shall haVQ the right 
to relocatQ the Lessee to a similarly sized tract of property in the event the 
Lessor requires usa of this property for other business of the Lessor. In 
the event Lessor requires the property for such other governmental 
purpose, Lessor shall give lessee notice In writing at least thirty (30) days 
before the relocation. A decision as to where such relocation shall occur 
shall be in the sole discretion of the Lessor. Lessor shall not Incur any 
expenses of tha Lessee incident to any relocation. 

5. REPAIRS: Except as otherwise provided herein, the Lassaa shall, at the 
Lessee's own expense, make all necessary repairs and replacements to the 
demised pramlses. Upon default of the Lessee in making necessary 
repairs or replacements, the Lessor, niay, but shall not be required to, 
make such repairs or replacements for the Lessee's account and the 
expense thereof which shaH constitute and be collectable as additional 
rant. 

The Lessor shall not be responsible for nor be liable for any such 
repairs which are necessita-ted by the negllgent actions or negligent 
failures to act on the part of the Lessee or any of the Lessee's agents. 

6. USE OF THE PROPERTY: The Lessee shall not usa or knowingly permit 
any part of the demised premises to be used for any unlawful purpose and 
the property shall only be used for North Carolina forestry service offlca 
use. 

7 . IMPROVEMENTS OF THt;; PROPERTY: The Lessee may make reasonable 
alterations and additions to the datnised premises during the first six {6) 
months of the lease, including buildings, ate. Any other or future 

111516 BCC Meeting

174



111516 BCC Meeting

175

i I 

.. 

alterations or improvements may only be made by the Lessee with the 
written ·consent of the Lesaort which shaU not be unreasonably withheld. 
Any alteration, addition or improvement made by Lessee, and any fixtures 
installed as a part thereof, shalf. at Lessor's option become tha property of 
the Lessor, upon the axpjratlon,. relocation, or othar termination of this 
Lease; provided, however, that Lessor shaJI have the right to require the 
Lessee to remove such fixtures at the Lessee's cost upon such termination 
of this lease. It sha·n be the sole responsibility of the Lessee to obtain and 
comply with all regulations of the Wa~auga County Building Code and other 
appticabla laws and ordinances If the Lessee wishes to make 
Improvements to tha property~ 

8. UTILITIES: The Lessee shall pay aU charges for gas, electri-city, lights haat, 
power, water, sewer, and telephone or other communication service used, 
rendered or supplied upon or in connection wlth the demised premises and 
shall indemnify Lessor against any liaJJIIIty or damages on such account. 

9. ASSIGNING AND SUB.LETTING: The Lessee shall not assign thfs lease or 
sublet any part of the demised premises without the prior written consent 
of Lessor, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.. Any transfer of the 
property interest ownad by tha Lessor shall be subject to this Lease, and 
shall not affect the val"idity or enforceability of this lease by .either tha 
Lessor or the Lessee .. 

10. SURRENDER OF THE DE.MISEP PREMIS.ES: At tha expiration oftha Lease 
term, the Lessee shall surrender the demised prarnises In as good a 
.condition as they were In the beginnlhg of the term, reasonable wear and 
tear and damages by tha elements excepted .. 

11. DAMAGE OR o·ESTRU·CTlON·BY FlRE: In the event that the darnised 
premises shall be damaged or destroyed by fire, the elements or other 
casualty, during the eontinuance of this Lease, to such extant that sam~ 
cannot be restored to as good a condition as same ware in prior to such 
damage within one hundred twenty (120) days thereafter, althertha Lessor 
or Lessee shall have the right to cancel or terminate this Lease with the 
rants to ba adjusted as of the data of the damage or destruction. Las&ee 
shall be responsible fe~r all of its personal property on or about the 
demised premises and shall keep the same adequately Insured against 
loss by fire or the elements. 

12. CONDEMNAnON: If the whole of tha dem-Ised premises shall be 
condemned and taken by any governmental authority or other entity having· 
a power of eminent.dotnain, than this lease shalllmmedlataly terminate, 
and tha Tenant shall have no I-nterest In any damages and/or rnonies paid 
by virtue of su~h cond-emnation. 

In the event of a partial appropriation or condemnation of the 
demised premi·sas that doas not materially affect the Lessee's use thereof, 
the Lessee shall continue i-n possessi·on. of the unappropriated part of the 

111516 BCC Meeting

175



111516 BCC Meeting

176

demised premises under the terms and conditions hereof, except that In 
such if the Lessee actually loses th~ usa of part of the demises premises, 
the Lessee sha=ll be entitled to an equitable reduction in rent payable 
hereunder. In the avent such parti·aJ appropriation or condemnation 
materially affects the Lessee's u~e of the demised premises, the Lessee 
may, at his/har option, term·inate this lease and Lessor·shall refund the 
Lessee any unaerned rent existing at tha time of said termination. 
However, the Lessee shall have no interest in any damag~s •nd/or monies 
paid by virtue of such condemnation.. · 

Notwithsta·nding the foregoing, Lassee shall ba entitled to a separate 
award made to Lessee for loss of business, moving expense or the taking 
of Lessees fixtures or equipment, if a separate award for such lt~ms Is 
made. 

13. INDEMNITY: Except where ·caused by g.ross negligence or fault of the 
Lessor, or its agents, employees, licensees or assigns, the Lessee shall 
indemnify and save Lessor harmless from and against any and all claims, 
actions, damages, liabUity and axpense In connection with loss of life, 
personal injury and/or damage to property arising from or out of any 
occurrence in, upon or at the demised premises or any part thereof, or 
occasioned wholly or in part by any act or omission Qf the lessee, his/her 
agents, employees or lnvlt•es. In case the Lessor (the Indemnified party) 
shall, without fault on its part, be made a part to any litigation Instituted 
against the Lessee (the Indemnifying party), then the Indemnifying party 
shall protect and hold the Indemnified party harmless and shall pay all 
costs, expenses and reasonable attorneys' faas that may be Incurred or 
paid by the Indemnified party in such litigation. In addition, Lessee shall 
pay au· costs, expanses and ra-.sonable a.ttorneys' fees that may be 
incurred or paid by lessor In enforcing the covenants and agraatnents of 
the Lessee contained in this Lease. 

14.. DAMAGES: If the demised premises shall ba deserted or vacated, or If the 
proceedings are commenced against the Lessee In any court under a 
bankruptcy act or for the appointment of a trustee or recehter of the 
Lessaas• property either before or after the com·mencement of the lease 
termt or if there shdll be a default I~ the payment or raht or any part thereof 
for mora than five (5) days after written notice that rant is past due by 
Lessor or Lessee, or if there shall be a default in the performance of any 
othar covenant, agreement, condition, rule or regulation herein contained, 
or hereafter established on the p·art of the Lessaa for more than twenty (20) 
days after written notice of such default by Lessor, thl~ Lease (If Lessor so 
elects) shall thereupon become null and void, and the Lessor shall have 
the right to ra .. anter or repossess the demised premises, either by force, 
surnmary proceedings, surrender or otherwise and dispossess and remove 
therefrom the Lessee, or other occupants thereof, and their affacts, without 
being liable to any prosecution thereof. In such case, Lessor may, at Its · 
option, relet the demised premises or any part thereof, as the agent of the 
Lessee, and tha Lessee shall pay lessor the differenca between the rent 

111516 BCC Meeting

176



111516 BCC Meeting

177

., . 
I t : & 

hereby reserved and agreed to be ·paid by the Lessor for the portion of the 
term remaining at the time of re-entry or repossession and the amount, If 
any, received or to be received under s·uch ralettlng for such portion of the 
tenn. 

15. Nonce: All notices, consents, ra.quests, instructions or other 
communications provided for herai·n, shall be deemed validly glve·n, made 
and served if In writing and either delivered personal.ly or sent by certified 
or registered mall, postage prepaid and, pending the designation of 
·another address, addressed as follows: 

IFTOLESSEE: 0,"~uislorJ of' Fc>r-e,~ Re.-so4rc.e..s 
1 ~'I:~ W tJ l'k s. boro 8tvc!', JU r; 

IF TO LESSOR: 

l-e,JJ (!) i ,... • fJ c... a-~ (Q 'I 5 

Watauga County 
ATTN: CQunty Manager 
842 West King Street, Suite 1 
Boone, NC 28607 

Any such naticas, consents, raquasts, instructions or other 
communications sent by c;;artifiad or regfste·rad mail shall for the purpose 
of this Lease be considered received two (2) days after it Is deposltad In 
the United S·tates M·an, postage prepaid. 

16. INSURANCE: Lessee shatl at all times maintain a ganeralliability insurance 
policy upon the demised premises in an amount of not less than 
$500,000.00, which shall name the Lessor as an additional insured.. Lessee 
shall provide proof of Insurance to tha Watauga County Manager and 
maintain such coverage for the duration of all lease periods .. 

17. MISCELLANEOUS: All riJJhts and liabilities herein given to or imposed 
upon either of the parties hereto, shall extend to the heirs, eKacutors, 
administrators and assigns of such parties. Unless the context expressly 
or impliedly requires or indicates a contrary meaning whenever used In 
this Lease, a noun or pronoun in any gender shall Include the remaining 
genders, the singular shall include the pturaf and the plural shall include 
the singular. The laws of the State of North Carolina shall control this 
Lease. This agreement comprises the etltlra understanding of the parties 
and may only be modiflad In writing, properly executed by tha parties. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF., the said. Lassor and lessea have caused 
this instrument to be duly executed and sealed, the day anti year first 
above vvrttten. 

111516 BCC Meeting

177



111516 BCC Meeting

178

. . . .. 
• i 

Lessor, County ofWatauga 

Watauga County/Forestry Service Lease 

Lessee: N.C. Forestry Service 

· c·ouJJ +·y 
~ ~ R"'-r-J<?}er 
By:~~~-----------------
Authorlzed Agaht 

ATTEST: 

·sTATE OF NORTH CAMOLINA COUNlY OF WATAUGA 

I, }OS~., M: ~ , Notary Public do certify that James Coffey, 
C~alnna~.:·~~le, Clark to tha Board persana!IY appeared before me 
th1s daf: . ilcknow~dtft!d her signature to the forago1ng Instrument. 

- • trt~ . .. .. . 8.~ ..... 
~ Cl:' £ "..!.'Nit~~ j\and and notarial seal, this the _j_ day of YYl OJ f , 
~oo~. ue" : ...... : .&,. -:. .._p ..-~; "\ 
~ .. .. ~ ~ .......... #f,,;·· ....... Co'!.···· _.II L ~ 

,,,,[AUGA. ,,,, N·otary Public ......... ,, 
My commission explres:.B)/qiDY 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA COUNTY OF WATAUGA 

~~~:;...._...-.~J..I:..I_..__., Notary Public do certify that 
'-+~~~~~~~.......,..___ __ , on behalf of the North Carolina Forestry Service 
pers il11y appeared before ma thjs day a-nd acknowledged her signature to tha 
foregoing lnstrNf~Rnt .. 

,,,,,, 1\..Ra.·~'''•~,. ,, ' '6"' .,. £. f'~ ,/) /Y} 
~,~~f.ffff! i~-~t-~and and notarial seal, this the ~ day of /tU2jl , 

2rf1i.:· -tr'*Av ·.. ~ ~ 
: : ~u~ ... .,- ~ = · ~-~A. , c) 
E : ..- ,CJ : o : './ I ~ ,tt--_;;j,._ 
~ \PuS'-' /~§ 4cJoaf'iPubllc-
~~··. • .. ~ .. $ ~ . 

M;~;~~~~~i-res0 . ~ 0 7 ........... ._,,, 

111516 BCC Meeting

178



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
B.  Out-of-State Travel Request – Parks and Recreation  

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Karen Poteat, Recreation Specialist II, is requesting Board authorization for herself and Mr. 
Paul Krause, Assistant Athletic Director, to travel to Abingdon, VA.  The purpose of the trip is to 
serve the older adult population in providing transportation and assistance for a play and lunch.   
County policy requires all out-of-state travel to be approved by the Board.   
 
Board action is required to authorize the out-of-state travel.    
 
 
  

111516 BCC Meeting

179

111516 BCC Meeting

179



111516 BCC Meeting

180

To: 

From: 

Subject: 

Date: 

Watauga County Parks and Recreation 

231 Complex Drive • Boone, NC 28607 

Phone : (828) 264-9511 

Fax : (828) 264-9523 

M 

. J JCounty Commissioners 

ij}fKeron J. Poteat, Recreation Specialist II 

Out of State Travel to Barter Theater 

Friday, October 21, 2016 

E M 0 

We are requesting approval of out-of-state travel to the Barter Theater on December 20, 2016. This trip will serve our 

older adult population in providing transportation and assistance to see a play and have lunch in Abingdon, Virginia prior 

to the show. 

We will take 20 senior adults and 2 Watauga County staff members. In the past, this has proven to be a highly popular 

and anticipated program offered by Watauga County Parks and Recreation. 

Thank you in advance for your consideration. 

111516 BCC Meeting

180



111516 BCC Meeting

181

Watauga County Updated 1-12-05 

Travel Authorization and Travel Advance Request 

10/6/2016 106126-429807 

Name: Keron J. Poteat Title: Recreation Specialist If Department: WCPR 

Des~~~~~ ) ~ ~ Meeting Dates: 12/20/20 16 J 

Is this out of state travel? iY es 1 No Departure Date 12/20/2016 
Return Date: 12/20/2016 

If yes, Board of County Commissioners 
approval is required and must be signed by 
the County Manager. Time: 10 a.m. 

Time 5:30p.m. 
Purpose of Trip: 
Senior Trip to the Barter Theater 
Overnight Accommodations Required? No Rate per night/person $ 

Name ofHotel/Mote1 Government Discount 

Method of Transportation: 

Cost$~v+J 3o.6D X ~ounty Vehicl~ D Personal Vehicle 

'IJ. ~ ,.f ~tJ.S 
D Other 

Explanation . 

Please indicate meals and/or banquets 
included in registration fee $ 
MEALS: Breakfast $ 

Lunch $ 15.88 
Dinner $ 

*LODGING: Single Rate $ 
*Other 

Total 

* Receipts Required for Reimbursement 

Are funds requested in advance: 

DYes 10: N~ Amount 
$ _ __ _ 

Form is Math~ally Correct: 

D Yes ~ ~as corrected 

Fmc£:~ 
Date 

If settlement has not been made on this 
advance within 20 working days after 
completion of travel, I authorize this 
amount to be deducted from my next 
paycheck. 

Date Date 

$15.88 

DYes 

DAir 

DNo 

' 

111516 BCC Meeting

181



111516 BCC Meeting

182

Watauga County Updated 1- 12-05 

Travel Authorization and Travel Advance Request 

10/20/2016 

Name: Title: Department: 
Paul Krause Assistant Athletic Director Watauga County Parks and Recreation 
Destination: Meeting Dates: 
Barter Theater December 20, 2016 
Ab ingdon, VA 

Return Date: December 20, 20 16 
Is this out of state travel? ./ Yes DNo 

Departure Date: December 20, 20 16 

If yes, Board of County Commiss ioners 
approval is required and must be signed by Time: 10:15 AM Time: 5:30PM 
the County Manager. 
Purpose of Trip: 
Barter Theater Senior Trip 

Overnight Accommodations Required? DYes ./No Rate per night/person $ 

Name of Hotel/Motel Government Discount DYes DNo 

Method ofTransportation: 

Cost$ ./ County Vehicle D Personal Vehicle DAir 

D Other 
Explanation 

~ ,...,.._ '"' '!;I 

... 
*REGISTRATION FEES: 

Please indicate meals and/or banquets 
included in registration fee $ $ 
MEALS: Breakfast $ X $ 

Lunch $ ~~ -~~ X $ /~ . 7)?f 
Dinner $ X 

*LODGING: S ingle Rate $ X 

*Other 

Total $ ; ,c;-. f~ 
* Receipts Required for Re imbursement 

Remarks: 

Are funds requested in advance: 

DYes ./No Amount$ ___ _ 

Form is Mathemajjeally Correct: 

D Yes IJl' ..A.f!~Ioved as corrected 

If settlement has not been made on thi s I believe this trip to be necessary and 
advance within 20 working days after beneficial to Watauga County and funds 
completion of travel , I authorize thi s were provided for thi s in this 
amount to be deducted from my next depaitment appropriate 

P'Y£2 ~ 
Employee 

m~f~ ~~~~~lv~f_;~---------
D~ D~ 

111516 BCC Meeting

182



111516 BCC Meeting

183

A H-oLL&iiA k1 TVtetAter TrL-p for A&iuLts 

#over tltle RLver § TltlrougV1 tltle Wooots" 
"Biilvter Tltteliltre, stage rr 

Tues~lA kj' Dee-ev-vtber 20tV1 MtAtLV'vee PerforVVtlA V've-e 
4r30I-perSOV'v 

Stelrt tjOUY vwL[o!Cltj seelsoVv off[VvtV!e -perfect frellfl..te of lfl..tLVvo!!Jo[Vv tjourfrteVvc{s 
ClVvo! VvetgV!bors for Cl tr[-p to AbtVvgo!oVv, v[rgLVvLCl to tV!e -g,Clrter TV!eeltre. we w[LL 

be see[Vvg "over tV!e RL.ver § tV!rougV! tV!e Wooo!s n oVv st~Age 11 of tV!e tV!e~Atre ...... ... . 
A H-ILARIOL-tS colfl..teo!tj ~About FAMILy, FAITH-§ FOOD. 
speelRLVvg of fooo!, -pr[or to tV!e lfl..teltLVvee sV!ow, we wtLL V1Clve LuVvcV! Clt tV!e 'Ptp-per

lfl..tLLL Oll'v MIALII'v Street Lll'v Ab[Vvgo!oVv, VA. LuVvcV! wtLL be tV!e res-poVvstbtLtttj of e~AcV! 
~AtteVvo!ee. TV!e .f1.5.gg cost of LuVvcV! [s ~ALL-tVvcLustve of !jOur lfl..teelL, bever~Age, H-p 

+ tel)(. 

s-pelce [s Ltlfl..ttteo! § eelrLtj regtstrelHoVv stroVvgLtj recolfl..tMeVvo!eo!! 

Trt-p scV!eo!uLe: 
1.0:1.5 Cl.lfl..t. 

1.:30 -p.lfl..t. 

2 -p.M. 

4 -p.M. 

5:30-p.M. 

Dtpelrt froM W~Atelugel Co 'PlAY~§ RecreelHoVv 

LuVvcV! Clt tV!e 'Ptp-perlfl..ttLL (.f1.5.ggf-persoVv) 

Arrtve Clt -g,Clrter TV!eeltre 

'PLIA tj -g,eg Lll'vS 

Dtpelrt Ab[VvgoloVv § TriAVeL "BC!CR to "goo 

Arrtve "g,ClcR. Lll'v "g,ooVve 

Weltelug~A COUVvttj 'PClY~ § RecYeeltLOV'v 
231. Colfl..t-pLex Dr[ve, "g,ooVve, NortV! CClroLt.Vvp 2gboJ
g2g .2G4 {)51.1. R.eroVv.-poteelt@watga.v~~.g( 

' - ..... 

111516 BCC Meeting

183



111516 BCC Meeting

184

Driving Directions from 231 Complex Dr, Boone, N01ih Carolina 28607 to Barter Theatr. .. Page 1 of 3 

mapquest· 

Sorry! When printing directly from the browser your directions or map may 
not print correctly. For best results, try the Print button above the map. 

Travel Options 

Hotel Air Car 

Location 

I Abingdon, VA I 
Check-in Check-out 

11 0/07/2016 blilll 110/08/2016 ~I 

Number of Rooms !1 Gl 

View Suggested Hotels 

Driving Directions 

231 Complex Dr 
Boone, NC 28607 

Online Offers: 

1=1 Boone Hotels 

,, Boone Restaurants 

I know the area, hide the first few steps 

( Book Now l 
Starting at $55 

1. Start out going southeast on Complex Dr toward Hunting Hills Ln. 

J+ 2. Turn right onto Hunting Hills Ln. 

,. 3. Turn right onto State Farm Rd. 

Turn left onto NC Highway 105 S/US-221 S/US-421 Trk S/NC-1 05. Continue to follow NC-1 05. 

r+ 5. Turn right onto NC Highway 105 Byp. 
NC Highway 105 Byp is 0.1 miles past Ambling Way 
If you reach Gulp Dr you've gone about 0.1 miles too far 

6. 

http://classic.mapquest.com/?q2=2977715+type:mqid 

0.08 mi 

0.1 mi 

1.0 mi 

2.5mi 

1.9 mi 

20.8 mi 

10/6/2016 

111516 BCC Meeting

184



111516 BCC Meeting

185

Driving Directions from 231 Complex Dr, Boone, North Carolina 28607 to Barter Theatr... Page 2 of3 

Turn left onto US Highway 421 N/US-421 N/US-321 N/NC-194. Continue to follow US-421 N (Crossing into 
Tennessee). 

,. 7. Turn right onto TN-418/S Church St. Continue to followS Church St. 
If you are on S Shady Stand reach Atwood St you've gone about 0.1 miles too far 

f 8. S Church St becomes Divide Rd. 

------------ ---·------------·----------
9. Turn right onto Highway 91 N/TN-91 (Crossing into Virginia). 

~.1_1 10. Highway 91 N/TN-91 becomes VA-91. 

lw<fsrl 11. Turn slight right onto Douglas Dr/US-58 WNA-91. 
@ Douglas Dr is 0. 1 miles past Fritz St 

liiim l 12. Take the 3rd left onto E 3rd St/US-58 W. Continue to follow US-58 W. 

(ill US-58 W is just pastE 4th St 
Cowboys is on the corner 
If you are on Damascus Dr and reach E 2nd St you've gone a little too far 

@ 13. Stay straight to go onto US-11 S/Lee Hwy. Continue to follow US-11 S. 

• 14. 127 E MAIN ST. 
Your destination is just past Chincapin Aly 
If you are on W Main Stand reach Park PI you've gone a little too far 

Barter Theatre 
127 E Main St, Abingdon, VA 24210 
(276) 628-3991 1 More Info 

Online Offers: 

1=1 Abingdon Hotels 

,, Abingdon Restat.; ;ants 

1.9 mi 

3.1 mi 

6.9mi 

2.4 mi 

0.2 mi 

10.8 mi 

2.3 mi 

Use of directions and maps is subject to the MapQuest Terms of Use. We make no guarantee of the accuracy of their content, road conditions or route usability . 
You assume all risk of use. 

http:/ /classic.mapquest.com/?q2=2977715+type:mqid 10/6/2016 

111516 BCC Meeting

185



Blank Page 
 
 

111516 BCC Meeting

186

111516 BCC Meeting

186



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
C.  Property Donation 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The County Manager was contacted by Richard Promin, who wishes to donate property which he 
owns to the County.  He is the owner of a one acre lot located in Saddle Hill (221 Blowing Rock) 
area.  The tax value is $52,000 on the lot.  Taxes are current.  Staff is unaware of any liens on the 
property or any property owner’s association dues.  Mr. Promin has spoken with the Blueridge 
Parkway and they indicated there were no funds available to pay for the necessary requirements 
to accept the donation.  Staff contacted the Blue Ridge Conservancy who had no interest in the 
property. 
 
Board direction was given to staff to further research the right-of-way issue with the property 
owner.  After further discussion the attached letter was provided by the property owner.  It would 
appear that the property owner wants the County to pay for the survey or just list the property 
with a disclaimer that there is no right-of-way.    
 
Direction from the Board is requested to accept the donation of the lot or decline the offer. 
 
 
  

111516 BCC Meeting

187

111516 BCC Meeting

187



111516 BCC Meeting

188

October 28, 2016 

Deron Geouque, 

Richard E. Promin, M.D. 
2210 Southeast Laurel Run Drive 

Ocala, Florida 34471-8394 

Re. Parcel / Account: 2808-00-5791-000 
Registration ID: 2634-9575-33TJ 

Property Description: Adj Saddle Hills 

Wautauga County Manager 
842 W. King Street, Ste 21 
Boone, NC 28607-3485 

Dear Mr. Geouque, 

I am replying to your telephone message which I received several days ago. 
I believe that the County Commission, when presented with my letter dated 
September 29, 2016, requested clarification regarding access to the above
referenced parcel of land and the right-of-way access. 

Although I have a copy of a "Deed For Road Right-of Way" (enclosed), I have 
been told that there is an inaccuracy in the original survey made by James M. 
Barker. Mr. Barker's survey may infringe upon the National Park's border by 
several feet in one area of the incoming road access. Another survey would be 
necessary in order to confirm the validity of the path of the road access. 
This would be very costly, and I do not wish to assume this cost. 
Under these circumstances, should Wautauga County decide to accept this 
land, and, subsequently, advertise it for sale by auction, it would need to state 
that this property was without road access. 

Please advise me of the County's decision. 

Very truly yours, 

/~L-!57 
Richard E. Promin, M.D. 

111516 BCC Meeting

188



111516 BCC Meeting

189

PREPI\REO aY · 

:! 'iG cR . WATS ON, 

Q, SA NTI & McGEE 

ATTOR NEYS 

P. 0 . BO X 193 

BOONE, N. C. 286 07 

PHON E: 264·6126 

: :'·'' ·~ ·: ... ,, !''-:' .. \ 

NORTH CAROLINA 

WATAUGA COUNTY RI-HT-OF-WAY DEED 

THIS CONVEYANCE, made this the ,;?3/L-_f day of July, 1983, by 

----RICHAR~ PROMIN and wife, JOAN G. PROMIN, hereinafter referred 

to as GRANTORS; and JOHN W. MERTING, hereinafter referred to as 

GRANTEE; 

W I T N E S S E T H 

THAT WHEREAS the Grantee is the owner of a certain tract of 

land in Blowing Rock Township, Watauga County, North Carolina, 

and desire access to said tract; and whereas the Grantors herein 

are owners of such a right-of-way; and 

WHEREAS, Grantors have agreed to convey to the Grantee a 

right-of-way as set out below. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the sum of ONE 

__ DOLLAR~.OO) and other good and valuable consideration, the 

receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, ~he Grantors do hereby 

grant and convey unto the Grantee, his heirs, successors and 

assigns, a right-of-way across the road as it presently exists, 

the center of said right-of-way being particularly described as 

follows: 

BEGINNING on a point in the center of an existing road in the 
line of Saddle Hills Subdivision and the Moses Cone Park line 
(located North 40° 49' West, 107.83 feet from a monument 
found, also South 40° 49' East, 10.00 feet from an iron 
found); thence from the beginning and with the center of said 
road thru Moses Cone Park as follows: North 45° 34' East, 
18.13 feet; South 84° 36' East, 26.96 feet; South 63° 34' 
East, 2g.oa feet; South 38° 02' East, 16.70 feet, South 31° 
04' East, 59.16 feet; South 24° 04' East, 31.28 feet; South 
06° 14' West, 33.25 feet to a point in the Cone Park and 
James Barker line; thence continuing thru the Barker property 
as follows: South 35° 3g• West, 38.03 feet; South 52° 11' 
West, 55.11 feet; South 63° 44' WestL 109.4g feet; South 46° 
57' West, 38.71 feet; South 33° 48' West, 37.7g feet; South 
54° 11' West, 143.45 feet; South 31° 26' West, 20.71 feet; 
South 11° 43' West, 4g.36 feet; South 16° 11' East, 111.33 
feet; South 09° 28' East, 40.89 feet; South 33° 19' East, 
56.68 feet; South 15° 57' East, 20.00 feet; South 07° 02' 
East, 56.29 feet to a point (located South 88° 01' West, 
30.44 feet from a found 4x4 post); thenc~ continuing thru 
Barker property South ago 13' East, 58.73- feet; South ago 50' 
East, 81.32 feet; South 28° 35' East, g4.21 feet; South 2go 
21' East, 87.51 feet; South 25° 54' East, 46.6g feet; South 
33° 58' East, 6l.O~ . feet to a point in the intersection of 
two roads; thence continuing with the ·center of a road South 
71° 45' West, 70.33 feet to a calculated point in John 

I 

! 

l 
i 

111516 BCC Meeting

189



111516 BCC Meeting

190

·: .. 

-2-

apple tree on John Merting property) as surveyed and shown on 
plat no. dated , by Hencle J. 
Matheson RLS No. L-2561. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD said right-of-way and easement unto the 

said Grantees and their heirs, successors and assigns. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Grantors have hereunto set their 

hands and seals the day and year 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

first above written. 

~-;-·~,__,::---=::::-'-~=----~~:--· ----(SEAL) 
Richard E. Promin 

sonally appeared before me and acknowledged the due execution of 

the foregoing Right~of-Way Deed for the purposes therein 

expressed. 

Witness my ha nd and notarial seal , this s131\...~' day of July, 

1983 . 

My commission expires: 
INCfAD'~IC,!'SjA;Il 0 1U.JUOA AT , _A. ~ .. : 

lljl CCJMM!SSI(J\1 fXP!Il5 UY 24 !98 ~ 
~ 1Hitll <:Il'£J.A1 tillS UNDli!W~ ! Tr >'::-

'' I 
I 

I 

111516 BCC Meeting

190



111516 BCC Meeting

191

PREPARED BY: 

FINGER, WA~SON, 

Oi SANTI & McGEE 

ATIDRNEYS 

P. 0. BOX 193 

BOONE, N. C. 28607 

PHONE: 264·6126 

NORTH CAROLINA 

WATAUGA COUNTY 

This Deed made this 

DEED FOR ROAD 
RIGHT OF WAY 

day of December, 1981, by and 

between James W. Barker and wife, Jean M. Barker; Earl Waldin 

and wife, Geneva Waldin; Robert Berge and wife, Abelene Berge; 

Richard E. Promin and wife, Joan Promin; Wallace Montgomery and 

wife, Clare Montgomery; Peter Stokley and wife, Marion Stokley, 

hereinafter referred to as Grantors; and Rufus E. Hallmark and 

Ann V. Hallmark, hereinafter referred to as Grantees. 

W I T N E S S E T H · 

That the said Grantors for and in consideration of the sum 

of $10.00 to them paid by Grantees, the receipt of which is hereby 

acknowledged, have bargained and sold, and by these presents do 

grant, bargain, sell, and convey unto said Grantees, their heirs, 

successors, and assigns, a perpetual easement for a 30 foot ease-

ment running from the end of the existing dedicated street through 

Saddle Hills Subdivision, through the Cone Park property and the 

properties of the Grantors to the property of the Grantee·s as 
ZJ,ll ::c •Wl8DC1·3 d 

more particularly described on~~ plat thereof by H.J. Matheson, 

R.L.S., being map #81095 and dated August 13, 1981. 
l, ~.} lJe J.:"' (·: c o l~ (JcC~ ··~ .1 i. 'Cl~ (~.:-.r·(t .:::I±tk:~f 
To have and to hold the aforesaid easement for road right-

of-way and all privileges thereunto belonging to the said Grantees, 

their heirs and assigns, to their use and behoof forever; the 

said Grantors reserving for themselves, their heirs, and assigns 

the right to enter upon and use said road jointly with Grantees. 

()Q,a.-~ J-.J Gos+c:= 
am c s t,J • 8 a r k e r ' 

. ~~- };, 4~/j,,,_,q/V'/' 
an M. Barker · 

Geneva Wald:J-n 

111516 BCC Meeting

191



111516 BCC Meeting

192

-2-

Robert Berge 

Abelene Berge 

Richard E. Promin 

Joan Promin 

Peter Stokley 

Marion Stokley 

S-f-ATE OF .r: .:.. c.uer ocs 
----~D~H~V~if~ __ COUNTY 

I , (/t( (L(. (t( ~ r'!./ r c o ~.t..- ...: • ;l v ?t·v ? N o t a r y P u b 1 i c , d o h e r e by 
7 

certify that Jame s W. Barker and wife, Jean M. Barker, personally 
appeared before me this day and acknow l edged the due execution of 
the for~going Deed for Road Right of Way for the purposes therein 
stated. 

Witness my hand and not a r i a 1 sea 1 , t hi s 1 t7 day of 

r-C-"" p ' :t-9-8-.¥. 
lj'~z 

My commission expires: 
Notary Public, Sta ~~ c: ::: -: · ·: l.z: 
My Rammission hp::: . ; .. · . :, ~ " .. 

STATE OF FIDRIDA 

----~D~~~D~E ________ COUNTY 

I, Duane Madeira . a Notary Public, do hereby ------------------------------
certify that Earl Waldin and wife, Geneva Waldin, personally 
appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of 
the foregoing Deed for Road Right of Way for the purpose s therein 
stated. 

W i t ness my hand and not a r i a 1 seal , t h i s ~ day of 

~~~~~~~~/ ___ , 1981. 

-A~Jr..J.L_~=-=.:::-~-,--:~=-------"---"~=-=---==--, _ ( SEAL ) 
~ cji~ry Public 

My commission expires: __ ~~-~~--~~~~~--~-------------

111516 BCC Meeting

192



111516 BCC Meeting

193

-3-

ST-ATE OF 

COUNTY --------------------
I, , a Notary Public, do hereby 

certify that Robert Berge and wife, Abelene Berge, personally 

appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of 

the foregoing Deed for Road Right of Way for the purpo s es therein 
stated. 

Witness my hand and notarial seal, this 

-----' 1981. 

day of 

=-~--~~~--- _________ (SEAL) 
Notary Publ1c 

My commission expires: -------------------------

SlATE OF 

COUNTY -----------------
I, ______________________________ , a Notary Public, do hereby 

certify that Richard E. Promin and wife, Joan Promin, personally 

appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of 

the foregoing Deed for Road Right of Way for the purpo s es therein 

stated. 
Witness my hand and notarial sea 1 , this day of 

' 1981. 

(SEAL) 
Notary Public 

My commission expires: 

STATE OF 
COUNTY ----------------------

I ' e ct (f v ,J , C,ff ( N ,r C\ ' a N 0 t a r y p u b 1 i c ' d 0 h e r e by 
certify that w£11ace Montgomery and wife, Clare Montgomery, per
sonally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due 

execution of the foregoing Deed for Road Right of Way for the 
purpose~ therein stated. 

Witness my hand and notarial seal, this ~ day of 

111516 BCC Meeting

193



111516 BCC Meeting

194

.. , ' ~· 

-4-

STATE OF 
_________________ COUNTY 

I , a Notary Public, do hereby 
certify that Peter Stokley and wife, Marion Stokley , personally 

appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution 

of the foregoing Deed for Road Right of Way for the purposes 
the~ein stated. 

Witne~s my hand and notarial seal, this 

-----------------' 1981. 

Notary Public 
My commission expires: 

day of 

iSEAL) 

111516 BCC Meeting

194



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
D. December Meeting Schedule 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Due to North Carolina General Statues, the County Board of Commissioners is required to meet 
the first Monday in December following each general election.  Therefore, the Board will need to 
reschedule the December 6, 2016, meeting to Monday, December 5, 2016 at 8:30 A.M.   
 
Staff would recommend the Board reschedule the December 6, 2016, meeting to Monday, 
December 5, 2016, at 8:30 A.M.    
 
Board direction is requested.   
 
  

111516 BCC Meeting

195

111516 BCC Meeting

195



Blank Page 
 
 

111516 BCC Meeting

196

111516 BCC Meeting

196



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
E. Proposed Amendment to the County’s Holiday Schedule 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Due to the County operating the State Tag Office, a conflict has arisen between the County’s 
Holiday Schedule and the State.  In an effort to provide consistency and continuity staff would 
recommend the Board follow the State schedule for days off during the Christmas period.  
Currently, Tag Office employees must use vacation leave when the State schedule provides for 
three (3) days off and the County two (2).   
 
Staff recommends following the State schedule regarding time off during the Christmas time 
period.  Board action is requested.        
 
 
 

  

111516 BCC Meeting

197

111516 BCC Meeting

197



111516 BCC Meeting

198

C. NEAL AL EXANDER , JR. 
Dir~ctor 

Stat-e Human Resources 

TO: Agency Heads and Chancellors 

FROM: Neal Alexander Jr. 

DATE: January 24, 2013 

SUBJECT: 2016 Holiday Schedule 

Listed below are the holidays that will be observed by State employees during 2016. 

New Year's Day January 1, 2016 Friday 

Martin Luther King, Jr. Birthday January 18, 2016 Monday 

Good Friday March 25, 2016 Friday 

Memorial Day May 30, 2016 Monday 

Independence Day July 4, 2016 Monday 

Labor Day September 5, 2016 Monday 

Veteran's Day November 11, 2016 Friday 

Thanksgiving November 24 & 25, 2016 Thursday and Friday 

Christmas December 23, 26 & 27 2016 Friday, Monday and 
Tuesday 

NOTE: The schedule shall be used by all State agencies operating under the policies, rules and 
regulations of the Office of State Human Resources. Institutions of higher education and 
agencies requiring a twenty-four hour operation may adopt varying holiday schedules in 
keeping with operational needs, provided the employees are given the same number of 
holidays as approved by the State Human Resources Commission. Such speciai holiday 
schedules must be filed with the Office of State Human Resources. 

!tis recognized that some agencies may need to adopt an additional holiday schedule 
applicable to employees working in twenty-four hour operation ; this schedule would 
designate as holidays the specific dates of the legal observances rather than the 
substitute weekdays when the observance occurs on Saturday or Sunday. This would be 
in keeping with the purpose of the holiday premium pay policy. 

--::?""Nothing Compares...-"'\...A_. 
i\n Equal Opportuntty Employer 

State ofNorth C~r·oiina I State Human Rrsourcts 
ll6 Wes r lonts Streer : t33l Mail Service Center I Raleigh. NC 27i>99-l331 

9l9 807 ·HlOO T ! 'll9 715 9750 f' 

111516 BCC Meeting

198



111516 BCC Meeting

199

C. NEAL ALEXANDER , JR. 
Dil·cctor 

State Human Resources 

TO: Agency Heads and Chancellors 

FROM: Neal Alexander Jr. 

DATE: January 24, 2013 

SUBJECT: 2017 Holiday Schedule 

Listed below are the holidays that will be obseNed by State employees during 2017. 

New Year's Day 

Martin Luther King, Jr. Birthday 

Good Friday 

Memorial Day 

Independence Day 

January 2, 2017 

January 16, 2017 

April14, 2017 

May 29, 2017 

July 4, 2017 

September 4, 2017 

November 10, 2017 

November 23 & 24, 2017 

Monday 

Monday 

Friday 

Monday 

Tuesday 

Monday 

Friday 

Thursday and Friday 

Labor Day 

Veteran's Day 

Thanksgiving 

Christmas December 25 , 26 & 27 2017 Monday, Tuesday & 
Wednesday 

NOTE: The schedule shall be used by all State agencies operating under the policies, ru les and 
regulations of the Office of State Human Resources. Institutions of higher education and 
agencies requ iring a twenty-four hour operation may adopt varying holiday schedules in 
keeping with operational needs, provided the employees are given the same number of 
holidays as approved by the State Human Resources Commission . Such special holiday 
schedules must be fi led with the Office of State Human Resources. 

It is recognized that some agencies may need to adopt an additional holiday schedule 
applicable to employees working in twenty-four hour operation; this schedule wou ld 
designate as holidays the specific dates of the legal observances rather than the 
substitute weekdays when the obseNance occurs on Saturday or Sunday. This would be 
in keeping with the purpose of the holiday premium pay policy. 

·-:::::>"Nothing Compares ............... ~..... 
/\n Equal Opportuntcy EmpiDyrr 

State ofNorth C3rolina I S tat~ Human Rtsources 
!16 West Jones Streer i 1331 Mail Service Center I R;.;leigh. NC l1699-l33! 

919 807 480 0 T I 'l l'l 7I:i ~750 F 

111516 BCC Meeting

199



Blank Page 
 
 

111516 BCC Meeting

200

111516 BCC Meeting

200



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
F. Announcements 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The Annual County Christmas Luncheon, scheduled on Tuesday, December 13, 2016, will be 
held at Dan’l Boone Inn from 11:45 A.M. to 2:00 P.M. 
 
  

111516 BCC Meeting

201

111516 BCC Meeting

201



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 11: 

BREAK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 12: 

CLOSED SESSION 
Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
 
 
 
 

111516 BCC Meeting

202

111516 BCC Meeting

202


	Tentative Agenda and Meeting Notice
	Approval of Minutes 
	Approval of the November 15, 2016, Agenda
	Public Hearing to Allow Citizen Comment on Proposed Road Names
	Presentation of Fiscal Year 2016 Audit
	Request to Modify Custodial Services Contract
	Tax Matters
	A.  Monthly Collections Report
	B.  Refunds and Releases
	C.  Property Tax Appeal

	Finance Matters
	A.  Proposed JCPC Budget Amendment
	B.  Vaya Health Quarterly Report 
	C.  Proposed Inmate Catastrophic Insurance Contract

	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	A.  Proposed Forest Service Lease
	B.  Out-of-State Travel Request - Parks and Recreation
	C.  Property Donation
	D.  December Meeting Schedule
	E.  Proposed Amendment to the County's Holiday Schedule
	F.  Announcements

	Public Comment
	Break
	Closed Session



